
Visit the Township's Web Site www.twp.ferguson.pa.us  and sign up for Notify Me! to receive email notices about 
Township Information 

FERGUSON TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Monday, February 3, 2020 

7:00 PM 

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. CITIZENS INPUT

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. January 20, 2020, Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting

IV. SPECIAL REPORTS

1. Centre Region Parks and Recreation Authority – Bill Keough

V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

1. Authorization of Public Hearing on 2020 Budget Amendment
2. Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan – Ad Hoc Advisory Committee
3. Donation Request - Central Pennsylvania Fourth Fest
4. Donation Request - Discovery Space
5. Traffic Signal System Consulting Services Contract Award
6. Construction Management Services Contract Award
7. Special Inspection Services Contract Award
8. Ferguson Township Zoning Map Amendments Discussion

VI. NEW BUSINESS

1. Consent Agenda
2. Zoning Appeals/Requests for Variances
3. Citizen’s Request – Pine Grove Mills Crosswalks
4. Street Tree Planting Contract Award

VII. REPORTS

1. COG Committee Reports
2. Other Regional Reports
3. Staff Reports

VIII. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD

IX. CALENDAR ITEMS – FEBRUARY

X. ADJOURNMENT



 

Board of Supervisors 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Monday, February 3, 2020 

7:00 p.m. 
 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. CITIZEN’S INPUT 
 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. January 20, 2020, Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting 
 

IV. SPECIAL REPORTS          10 minutes 

1. Centre Region Parks and Recreation Authority – Bill Keough 
 

V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

1. AUTHORIZATION OF A PUBLIC HEARING ON A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 
FERGUSON, CENTRE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA ON AMENDING THE FERGUSON TOWNSHIP 
2020 ANNUAL OPERATING BUDGET BY MODIFYING OR INCREASING EXPENDITURES AS 
DESCRIBED.           10 minutes 
 
Narrative 
As provided for in Section 7.08 of the Home Rule Charter, the Board of Supervisors may amend the 
Annual Operating Budget following its adoption by authorizing a resolution and public hearing. In 
reviewing the Capital Reserve projected expenditures in 2020, staff has identified several eligible 
equipment expenditures that may be transferred to Fund 35 (Liquid Fuels). The Liquid Fuels Fund is a 
segregated fund that can be used for transportation projects related to roadways and infrastructure, and 
revenue comes from state tax levied on liquid fuels.  In order to provide for increased anticipated 
expenditures in the Capital Reserve Fund including the Park Hills Drainageway design project, and 
construction management, utilities and contingency associated with the Public Works Maintenance 
Facility, staff is recommending that the items eligible for Liquid Fuels be transferred into the appropriate 
fund.  Furthermore, that the acquisition of the bucket truck be deferred until 2021.  Provided with the 
agenda is a draft resolution for advertisement for the public hearing.  Dave Pribulka, Township Manager, 
and Eric Endresen, Director of Finance, will review the proposed itemized changes.  This budget 
amendment will allow the Capital Reserve Fund to remain solvent and still accomplish the goals 
established in the 2020 Operating Budget.  
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors schedule a public hearing on a resolution 
amending the 2020 Operating Budget for Tuesday, February 18th.  
 

Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors authorize the public hearing. 

  



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, February 3, 2020 
Page 2 

2. PINE GROVE MILLS SMALL AREA PLAN AD HOC ADVISORY BOARD  10 minutes 
 
Narrative 
In October 2019, the Board of Supervisors adopted the Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan (SAP), 
concluding a year-long process facilitated by the Centre Regional Planning Agency.  The intent of the 
plan was to identify goals and action steps associated with the revitalization of the Village rooted in 
substantial community input and prioritization of desired outcomes.  In developing the plan, CRPA 
established a Steering Committee of residents and community stakeholders to provide input on areas of 
interest in the SAP.  Once the plan was adopted, the Steering Committee disbanded.  The Board is 
enabled under Chapter 1, Administration and Government; Part 4, Boards and Commissions to establish 
ad hoc advisory boards for specific, temporary purposes.  In this case, the ad hoc committee, if 
established, would be advisory to the Township Manager and Board of Supervisors for the 
implementation of the SAP.  In doing so, the board would review the plan and prioritize projects for 
consideration by the Township based on the needs of the community.  The board would not have 
budgetary authority and would not be a standing committee of the Township.  Provided with the agenda 
is the relevant section of the Administrative Code as it pertains to Ad Hoc Boards. 
 
Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan 
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors authorize the establishment of an ad hoc advisory 
board for the purpose of providing advice and recommendations to the Township Manager and Board 
of Supervisors relative to the implementation of the Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan. 
 

Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors establish an ad hoc advisory board to assist in the implementation of 
the Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan.  

 
3. DONATION REQUEST – CENTRAL PENNSYLVANIA FOURTH FEST, FRANK SAVINO, EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR            10 minutes 
 

Narrative 
Central Pennsylvania Fourth Fest has submitted a donation request form for a monetary contribution in 
the amount of $2,500 to enhance the celebration of Independent Day with better security, fireworks 
advertising for increased event awareness within the Centre Region.  Fourth Fest attracts families from 
the nation to celebrate Independence Day with celebratory fireworks, a parade and additional 
entertainment.  Other contributing partners that have committed to the project include State College 
Borough, College Township and Patton Township.  Mr. Savino is in attendance to present more 
information on the Central Pennsylvania Fourth Fest event.  
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors authorize a contribution in the amount of $2,500 
to the 2020 Central Pennsylvania Fourth Fest. 

 
4. DONATION REQUEST – DISCOVERY SPACE, MICHELE CROWL, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

10 minutes 
Narrative 
The Township previously agreed to provide a $1,000 monetary contribution each year for three years, 
ending in 2019.  Provided with the agenda is a letter from Ms. Crowl expressing interest for the Township 
and Discovery Space to grow the established partnership to benefit all Ferguson Township residents, 
and, in return, Discovery Space will post a plaque in the lobby of the building showing Ferguson 
Township’s generous support.  Ms. Crowl is in attendance to present more information on how Discovery 
Space programs enhance the Centre Region.  
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors authorize a contribution of $5,000 to Discovery 
Space.   

https://www.twp.ferguson.pa.us/sites/fergusonpa/files/uploads/2019_12_23_pgm_sap_jlw.pdf


Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, February 3, 2020 
Page 3 

 
5. AUTHORIZATION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH JACOBS ENGINEERING 

FOR TRAFFIC SIGNAL SYSTEM CONSULTING SERVICES.    5 minutes 
 

Narrative 
At the Board of Supervisors meeting held on January 20, 2020, the Board authorized an amendment to 
the 2015 ARLE PennDOT Grant to implement Automated Traffic Signal Performance Metrics for all 21 
traffic signals in the Township.  This amendment to the agreement extended the time for completion of 
the project from January 2020 to January 2022.  To assist in completing the project, the Township 
budgeted $50,000 in 2020 to retain a professional consultant to assist with the portion of the project that 
implements communications to all of the traffic signals.  Attached to the agenda is a Professional 
Services Agreement with Jacobs Engineering along with the Proposal for Traffic Signal System 
Consulting Services dated January 23, 2020.  This proposal limits the expenditures to the approved 
budget amount.  The selection of this consultant was non-competitive but based upon their extensive 
experience with this unique service as well as their specific experience with PennDOT District 2-0, 
communication strategies and tactics have been implemented with their design support. 
   
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors authorize the execution of the professional 
services agreement with Jacobs Engineering and the Proposal for Traffic Signal System Consulting 
Services dated January 23, 2020, with a maximum fee amount of $50,000. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors authorize the execution of the professional services agreement with 
Jacobs Engineering. 

 
6. AUTHORIZATION OF CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR THE 

FERGUSON TOWNSHIP PUBLIC WORKS MAINTENANCE FACILITY   10 minutes 
 

Narrative 
The 2020 Operating Budget includes funding for a construction manager for the public works building. 
Requests for proposals were sent to 3 firms that specialize in this service.  Two qualified firms submitted 
proposals.  Both firms were interviewed.  Based on the interviews, proposed staffing, and fee structure, 
Township staff recommends awarding the professional services contract to Whitman, Requardt & 
Associates, LLP (WRA) in the amount of $246,040 plus direct expenses. 
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors authorize the contract with WRA for construction 
management services for the Ferguson Township Public Works Maintenance Facility in an amount of 
$246,040 plus direct expenses. 
 

Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors authorize the contract. 
 

7. AUTHORIZATION OF CONTRACT FOR SPECIAL INSPECTION SERVICES FOR THE FERGUSON 
TOWNSHIP PUBLIC WORKS MAINTENANCE FACILITY     5 minutes 
 
Narrative 
Provided with the agenda is a professional services contract from CMT Laboratories, Inc., to conduct 
special inspection services as needed for the construction of the Public Works Maintenance Facility.  
The contract is for an estimated amount of $41,450.00 but will be dependent on the scope of special 
inspections needed throughout the construction.  Examples of special inspections include compaction 
of soil and aggregate; steel and welding certifications; fire resistant material inspections; stormwater 
management testing and inspections; and more.  The Township has utilized the services of CMT 
Laboratories for several capital project inspections in the past and is confident in the quality of their work. 
 



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, February 3, 2020 
Page 4 

Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors authorize the contract with CMT Laboratories, 
Inc., for special inspection services for the Ferguson Township Public Works Maintenance Facility in an 
estimated amount of $41,450.00. 

 
8. DISCUSSION - AMENDMENTS TO THE FERGUSON TOWNSHIP ZONING MAP 10 minutes 

 
Narrative 
On November 18, 2019, Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors held a public hearing and amended 
Chapter 22, Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance and Chapter 27, Zoning Ordinance.  This 
action concluded the first phase of the ordinance amendments by modifying the text of the law.   
 
The next step in amending the zoning ordinance is amending the Ferguson Township Zoning Map.  
Amending the zoning map modifies the district boundaries in areas identified by the Board.  The zoning 
map amendment is a technical, non-substantive (meaning uses and dimensional categories that apply 
to each zoning district do not change) exercise that will replace the current zoning district classifications 
of certain properties that were identified during the first phase of this process.  The Municipalities 
Planning Code has certain advertisement and notice requirements associated with comprehensive 
rezoning as described here. 
 
The areas that have been identified during the first phase of the rewrite process are outlined below and 
maps of these areas are attached to the agenda, along with a timeline outlined by Staff. 
 

 Pine Grove Mills (Village District) 
 The Meadows (Rural Agricultural) 
 Rock Springs (Rural Agricultural) 
 Penn State University lands (Agricultural Research) 
 Harner Farm Lots (Rural Agricultural) 
 Ridge Overlay District (Rural Residential) 
 Industrial Zoning District (Northwest corner of Blue Course Dr. & W. College) 

 
A general timeline for this phase of the project has also been provided with the agenda.  At this time, the 
Board is asked to provide any comments on the areas identified, or any that are not currently 
incorporated, and refer the item to the Planning Commission for further consideration.  
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors refer the Zoning Map Amendment to the Planning 
Commission for review and comment. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors refer the zoning map amendment to the Planning Commission. 

 
VI. NEW BUSINESS 

 
1. CONSENT AGENDA          5 minutes 

a. Treasurer’s Report – November 2019 
b. Treasurer’s Report – December 2019 
c. Sponsorship Request – Women’s Leadership Conference, $400.00 
d. Sponsorship Request – Leadership Centre County, $500.00 

 
2. ZONING APPEALS/REQUESTS FOR VARIANCES     5 minutes 

 
a. Zoning Appeal/Request for Variance – 900, 904, 906, 912, and 916 West College Ave./West 

Calder Way 
 



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, February 3, 2020 
Page 5 

Narrative 
York Acquisitions, LLC, the equitable owners of the properties described above, has submitted a zoning 
appeal and request for variance from the requirement to construct first-floor commercial in the Terraced 
Streetscape District.  On the appeal, the applicant has raised concerns about inconsistencies in two 
provisions of the zoning ordinance.  If the appeal is denied, the applicant will proceed with a variance 
requesting relief from Chapter 27, Section 304(B) 3. b., requiring the entire first floor of all structures 
located on lots that have frontage on West College Avenue to be devoted to retail or commercial uses. 
The proposed use of the property would be for multifamily housing.  A copy of the application has been 
provided with the agenda. 

 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors remain neutral on the request for variance 
submitted by York Acquisitions, LLC for properties on West College Avenue in the Terraced Streetscape 
District. 
 

Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors remain neutral on the request for variance.  

 
3. CITIZEN’S REQUEST – PINE GROVE MILLS CROSSWALKS    10 minutes 
 

Narrative 
In January, staff received a request from Mel Westerman, resident of Pine Grove Mills, petitioning the 
Township to consider painting crosswalks at certain intersections, driveways, and midblock areas in the 
Village of Pine Grove Mills.  Staff has prepared a map provided with the agenda illustrating Mr. 
Westerman’s locations of concern.  Depending on the locations of the requested crosswalks, they may 
be easily installed or may require an evaluation to determine whether warrants are met.  Additionally, 
some areas may not be within the Township’s right-of-way and, therefore, may be the responsibility of 
PennDOT or private property owners to install and maintain.  Dave Modricker, Director of Public Works, 
will review the map and discuss the request, as well as criteria that must be met for the installation of 
crosswalks.  The Board is asked to decide whether they want staff to pursue and evaluate some or all 
of these requests. 

 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors direct staff to evaluate the resident’s requests 
for the installation of crosswalks in Pine Grove Mills and, where warranted, include the painting of 
crosswalks in the 2020 line striping contract. 
 

4. AWARD OF CONTRACT 2020-C13, STREET TREE PLANTING    5 minutes 
 

Narrative 
The contract was advertised in the Centre Daily Times and there were seven plan holders.  The budget 
for tree planting in 2020 is $28,350.00.  The work for this contract was estimated at $15,400.00.  The 
remaining line item fund balance is budgeted for bare root trees to be purchased separately and planted 
by the Ferguson Township Public Works Department.  The contract base bid includes 44 trees and is 
the basis of award.  The results of the bid opening are summarized in a memorandum provided by David 
Modricker dated January 28, 2020.  
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors award Contract 2020-C13 Street Trees, in the 
amount of $11,094.78 to Luther Lawn Service LLC, as recommended in the Public Works Director’s 
memorandum of January 28, 2020. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors award Contract 2020-C13 Street Trees, as recommended in the Public 
Works Director memorandum dated January 28, 2020. 

 



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, February 3, 2020 
Page 6 

VII. STAFF AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

1. COG COMMITTEE REPORTS        10 minutes 
a. Executive Committee 
b. Transportation & Land Use (TLU) Committee 

 
2. OTHER REGIONAL REPORTS        5 minutes 

a. Solar Power Purchase Agreement Working Group (SPPAWG) 
b. Climate Action & Adaption Technical Advisory Group (TAG) 
c. Centre County Metropolitan Planning Organization (CCMPO) 
d. Centre Area Cable Consortium (CACC) 

 
3. STAFF REPORTS          15 minutes 

a. Manager’s Report 
b. Public Works Director 
c. Planning & Zoning Director 

 
VIII. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD 

IX. CALENDAR ITEMS – FEBRUARY 

X. ADJOURNMENT 





J  


 
AGREEMENT and CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 


 
 
 


THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into on the _____ day of  January,  2020, by and 
between the TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, a home rule municipality, with a principle 
business office located at 3147 Research Drive, State College, PA, hereinafter called 
TOWNSHIP, 


 
and 


 
_____________________________________________________, a 
_______________ corporation, hereinafter called the CONSULTANT.  
The TOWNSHIP engages the CONSULTANT to perform professional services for a 
project known and described as: ______________________________,  hereinafter called 
the 
"Project". 


 
 
 


SECTION  I • SERVICES OF THE CONSULTANT  
The CONSULTANT shall perform the following professional services to 


TOWNSHIP ordinances and standards in accordance with the usual and customary 
degree of professional care and skill that a registered professional in Pennsylvania would 
ordinarily exercise under similar conditions.  CONSULTANT agrees to perform only those 
services expressly set forth below.  CONSULTANT has not, nor shall it be presumed to 
have, agreed to perform any services not expressly specified herein. 


 
A.         The CONSULTANT shall perform the detailed Scope of Work shown in 


Exhibit "A" (a proposal from _______________ dated ____________  and revised 
___________ (__ pages)) in accordance with a Request for Proposals from the 
TOWNSHIP  dated _______ . Names and qualifications of individuals proposed by the 
CONSULTANT in the proposal to work on the project have been submitted to and approved 
by the TOWNSHIP and shall not be changed without prior written approval of the 
TOWNSHIP.  


B.        The CONSULTANT has prepared and submitted an estimated fee for 
the project,  shown in  Exhibit "A". 


 
C.        The CONSULTANT shall follow and comply with the TOWNSHIP Code 


of Ordinances and written direction received from the TOWNSHIP. 
 
 
SECTION II • PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE  


The CONSULTANT shall complete all professional services within the 
timeframe specified  in the Project Schedule shown in "Exhibit A"; provided, however, 
Consultant shall not be liable for delays beyond its reasonable control.







4  


 
SECTION Ill - CONSULTANT'S COMPENSATION  


A.         The method of payment for this Contract is NOT TO EXCEED 
$______________ based on actual costs incurred/billable hours per major task 
shown in  Exhibit "A", and Reimbursable  Expenses as described  in  Exhibit "A". 


 
B.        The TOWNSHIP shall pay the CONSULTANT based upon 


monthly progress reports and detailed invoices submitted  by the CONSULTANT 
in a form acceptable to the TOWNSHIP. IInvoices shall include a summary of 
costs to date by work element and report of man-hours worked by individuals. 


 
C.        The TOWNSHIP shall make payments to the CONSULTANT 
within thirty (30) days after receipt of the progress report and 
complete and accurate detailed invoice. 


 
 
 


SECTION IV • THE TOWNSHIP'S RESPONSIBILITIES  
A.         The TOWNSHIP shall designate a project manager during the 


term of this agreement. The project manager has the authority to administer this 
contract and shall monitor compliance with all terms and conditions stated herein.  
All requests for information from or a decision by the TOWNSHIP on any aspect 
of the work shall be directed to the project manager. The TOWNSHIP project 
manager for this Project is David J. Modricker, PE, Public Works 
Director.  


B.        The TOWNSHIP shall review submittals by the CONSULTANT 
and provide prompt response to questions and rendering of decisions pertaining 
thereto, to minimize delay in the progress of the CONSULTANT work.  The 
TOWNSHIP will keep the CONSULTANT advised concerning the progress of the 
TOWNSHIP review of the work. 


 
C.        The TOWNSHIP shall furnish the CONSULTANT available 


public records, design documents, drawings, or surveys for this Project and 
assist the CONSULTANT with obtaining such background information that may be 
helpful to the CONSULTANT,  however, the CONSULTANT shall be responsible for 
searching the records and requesting specific drawings or information and 
independently verifying  said information. 


 
D.        I f ,  at any time, TOWNSHIP or its designee becomes aware 


of any fault, defect or discrepancy with  respect to the services rendered by 
CONSULTANT, i t shall give prompt written notice thereof to CONSULTANT.  
CONSULTANT shall thereafter be given a reasonable opportunity to cure such 
fault,  defect or discrepancy. 


 
 
 
SECTION V - INSURANCE 







5  


 
A.         The CONSULTANT shall secure and maintain at its own 


expense the following insurance coverages: 
 


1.          Workers compensation insurance with statutory benefits as 
required by any state of Pennsylvania or Federal law, including standard "other 
states" coverage and employer's liability insurance with minimum limits of 


$100,000 each accident for bodily injury by accident; 
 


$100,000 each employee for bodily injury by disease; and 
 


$500,000 policy limit for bodily injury by disease. 
 


2.         Commercial general liability insurance  that  insures  against  
claims  for bodily injury,  property damage and personal and advertising  injury 
arising out of or in connection with  SERVICES under this AGREEMENT,  whether 
such operations  be by CONSULTANT,  its employees   or  Subcontractors  or  their  
employees. The minimum limits of liability for this insurance are as follows: 


 
 
 


$1,000,000 combined single limit - each occurrence 
 


$2,000,000 combined single limit - general aggregate - per project 
 


$2,000,000 combined single limit - products/completed operations 
aggregate 


 
 
 


This insurance shall include coverage for all the following: 
 


i)           Liability arising from premises and operations; 
 


ii)          Liability arising from the actions of independent contractors; 
 


iii)         Liability for bodily injury and property damage claims 
assumed by CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT; and  
iv)        This insurance shall name TOWNSHIP and its appointed and 


elected officials, directors, officers and employees as Additional 
I nsured with respect to liability arising out of or in connection  
with SERVICES under this AGREEMENT,  and the  certificate  of 
insurance,  must so state this. 


 
3.         Business  auto  liability  insurance  with  a minimum combined 
single limit of 


$1,000,000  per accident  and including  coverage  for bodily injury  and property 
damage  claims arising  out of: 


 
i)           The ownership, maintenance or use of any auto; and 


 







6  


ii)          Liability   for   bodily   injury   and   property   damage   claims   
assumed   by 


CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT. 
 


4.         Professional liability  insurance that insures  against errors and 
omissions in  rendering  or failure  to  render  CONSULTANT'• SERVICES required  
under this AGREEMENT.  A minimum annual aggregate limit of $2,000,000  is 
required.  Any deductible or retention   of  $5,000   or  greater  shall   be  disclosed   
by  CONSULTANT,  and  is  subject   to TOWNSHIP'•  written  approval.   Certificates  
of  insurance  shall evidence  a retroactive  date no later than the beginning of 
CONSULTANT'S SERVCES under this AGREEMENT. 


 
B      CONSULTANT shall  require  its   Subcontractors   to  maintain   


insurance during the term of this AGREEMENT, to the same extent required of 
CONSULTANT.  


C.        CONSULTANT shall  not commence  SERVICES until all of the  
required insurance has been approved by TOWNSHIP; nor shall CONSULTANT 
allow any subcontractor to  commence  work  on any  subcontract  until all  
insurance  required  of the  Subcontractor  has been approved  by CONSULTANT.   
Approval  of insurance required of CONSULTANT will be granted  only  after  
submission  to TOWNSHIP of original  certificates  of insurance  signed  by 
authorized  representatives  of the insurers. 


 
D.        All  insurers  underwriting  CONSULTANT'• or Subcontractor's   


insurance must  be allowed  to  do  business  in  the  Commonwealth   of  
Pennsylvania  and  be  reasonably acceptable  to  TOWNSHIP.   The  insurers  must  
have  a  rating  of "B"  or  better  in  the  latest evaluation   by  AM.   Best   Company,   
unless  TOWNSHIP grants  specific  approval   for  an exception, such approval 
shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 


 
E.        Required  liability  insurance  shall  be in  force  throughout  the 


term  of this AGREEMENT and for two years  after this AGREEMENT terminates  
or expires,  whichever is earlier.   Original certificates of insurance signed by 


authorized representatives  of the insurers evidencing  that  the  required liability  
insurance  is  in  effect,  shall be maintained  with TOWNSHIP throughout  the term 


of this AGREEMENT and for two years  after  this AGREEMENT terminates  or 
expires,  whichever  is 


earlier.  
F.        All  insurance  policies  required  hereunder shall  be endorsed  


to  provide that the  policy  is not subject  to cancellation or non-renewal  until thirty  
(30) days  prior written notice has been given to TOWNSHIP. 







7  


G.         No acceptance  and/or approval of any insurance by TOWNSHIP 
shall be construed as relieving or excusing CONSULTANT from any liability or 
obligation imposed by the provisions of this AGREEMENT. 


 
H.        I If  CONSULTANT does  not  meet  the  insurance  requirements  


of  this AGREEMENT,  CONSULTANT shall  forward  a written  request  to 
TOWNSHIP for a waiver  in writing  of the  insurance  requirement(s)   not met or 
approval  in writing  of alternate  insurance coverage  or self-insurance  
arrangements.    If TOWNSHIP denies  the request,  CONSULTANT must comply 
with the insurance requirements  as specified  herein. 


 
I.          If  any  liability  insurance  purchased  by CONSULTANT has  


been issued on a "claims  made' basis, CONSULTANT must comply with the 
following  additional  conditions. The limits of liability and the extensions to be 
included  remain the same. 


 
CONSULTANT must either:  


a)         Agree to provide  certificates of insurance to TOWNSHIP 
evidencing the above  coverages  for  a  period  of two  years  after  the  
AGREEMENT terminates  or  expires, whichever   is  earlier.    Such  certificates  
shall  evidence  a  retroactive  date  no  later  than  the beginning of the SERVICES 
under this AGREEMENT, or







Appendix A 
 


 
b)         Purchase    an    extended    (minimum    two    years)    reporting     


period endorsement  for  each  such  "claims  made"  policy  in  force  as of the  date 
this AGREEMENT terminates or expires, whichever  is earlier and evidence the 
purchase of this extended  reporting period  endorsement by means of a certificate  
of insurance  or a copy of the endorsement itself. Such certificate or copy of the 
endorsement  shall evidence  a retroactive  date no later than the beginning of the 
SERVICES under this AGREEMENT. 


 
 


SECTION VI • OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS  
A.         Upon payment of all sums due CONSULTANT under this 


Agreement, TOWNSHIP will  become the joint owner with CONSULTANT of all work 
products (electronically or manually generated)  including  but not limited to plans, 
specifications, cost estimates, studies, design analyses, original  Mylar drawings, 
computer aided drafting and design (CADD) files which reflect all final drawings, 
and other related work products which are prepared in the performance  of this 
Contract.   Copies (reproducible  Mylars) of all such documents are to be delivered 
to the TOWNSHIP upon final payment to the CONSULTANT.  To the extent 
required by law,  he/she shall endorse by his/her professional seal all plans and 
special provisions furnished by him/her.   The seal need not be supplied on 
reproducible  documents.   All documents are prepared for, and are appropriate 
for use in connection with, this Project only.   In the event the documents are used 
either for another project without or for the completion of this Project without the 
full continued  involvement of the CONSULTANT, such use shall be without liability 
to CONSULTANT and the TOWNSHIP releases CONSULTANT and its employees 
and agrees to indemnify and hold the CONSULTANT and its shareholders,  
officers,  directors and employees  harmless from any and all liability,  damage,  
demand, judgment, claim or expense (including  reasonable attorney's fees and 
defense costs) arising from the such use of the documents. 


 
 


SECTION VII • CONFLICT OF INTEREST  
A.         The CONSULTANT agrees to disclose any financial or 


economic  interest it has with the Project property,  or any property affected by the 
Project, existing prior to the execution of this Contract, which would give rise to a 
conflict of interest.   Further, the CONSULTANT agrees to disclose any such 
financial or economic interest with the Project property,  or any property affected 
by the Project,  if the CONSULTANT gains such interest 
during the course of this Contract.   If the CONSULTANT gains such financial or 
economic 







Appendix A 
 


interest in the Project during the course of this Contract, this may be grounds for 
terminating this 
Contract.   Any decision to terminate  the Contract shall be at the sole discretion of 
the 
TOWNSHIP.  


B.        The CONSULTANT shall not engage the services on this 
CONTRACT of any present or former TOWNSHIP employee who was involved as 
a decision maker in the selection or approval processes, or who negotiated  
and/or approved billings or contract modifications for this CONTRACT. 


 
SECTION VIII • COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES  


A.         The CONSULTANT affirms that he has not employed or 
retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working for the 
CONSULTANT to solicit or secure this Contract, and that he has not paid or 
agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee, any fee, 
commission,  percentage,  brokerage fee, gift,  or any other consideration,  
contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of the Contract.   For 
breach or violation of this clause, the TOWNSHIP may terminate this Contract 
without liability, or in its discretion may deduct from the Contract price or 
consideration,  or otherwise  recover, the full amount of such fee, commission,  
percentage brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee. 


 
 
SECTION IX - INDEMNIFICATION  


A.         CONSULTANT will indemnify and hold harmless FERGUSON 
TOWNSHIP its officers and employees from and against any and all liabilities,  
damages, or expenses (including  reasonable attorneys' fees and other costs 
recoverable by law) in connection with any personal injury or property damage to 
the extent caused by the negligence (whether by act, error or omission),  
recklessness or intentionally wrongful acts or omissions  by CONSULTANT,  its 
officers,  directors,  agents, employees and subconsultants. 


 
B.        FERGUSON TOWNSHIP will  indemnify and hold harmless 


CONSULTANT and subconsultants and each of their officers,  directors,  
shareholders or employees from and against any and all liabilities,  damages or 
expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees and other costs recoverable by 
law) to the extent caused by the negligence (whether by act,  error or omission),  
breach of this Agreement,  recklessness  or intentionally wrongful acts or 
omissions  by FERGUSON TOWNSHIP or its agents or employees. 


 
 
 
SECTION X • DISPUTE RESOLUTION 


 







Appendix A 
 


A.         A dispute escalation  process will  be utilized to resolve 
questions of fact during the course of this Contract.   Both the TOWNSHIP and the 
CONSULTANT agree to try to mediate in good faith and resolve disputes. 


 
 
 
SECTION XI -TERMINATION  


A.         The TOWNSHIP, at its sole discretion,  may terminate this 
Contract for convenience  or abandon any portion of the Project for which services 
have  not been performed by the CONSULTANT,  upon fourteen (14) days written 
notice delivered to CONSULTANT personally or by certified  mail and a reasonable 
opportunity for CONSULTANT to cure.  Immediately after receiving such notice, the 
CONSULTANT shall discontinue advancing the services under this Contract and 
proceed to close said operations under this Contract.   In the event of such 
termination or abandonment, the CONSULTANT shall be paid for services 
performed  prior to receipt of said notice of termination including 
reimbursable  expenses then incurred.   If the remuneration scheduled hereunder 
is  based upon a fixed fee or ascertainable  sum, the portion of such sum payable 
shall be proportionate to the percentage  of services completed  by the 
CONSULTANT based upon the scope of work set forth in  Exhibit A, and shall be 
agreed upon mutually by the CONSULTANT and the 
TOWNSHIP.   However,  in  no event shall the fee exceed that set forth in this 
Agreement.  


B.        The TOWNSHIP shall make final payment within sixty (60) 
days after the CONSULTANT has delivered the last of the partially completed 
items and the final fee has been agreed  upon.  


C.         In the event this agreement  is terminated, the TOWNSHIP 
shall have the option of completing the work, or entering  into an agreement with 
another party for the completion  of the work according to the provisions and 
agreements herein. 


D.        If the TOWNSHIP fails to fulfill in a timely manner its 
obligations under this Agreement, the CONSULTANT shall have to right to 
terminate this Agreement upon fourteen  (14) days written  notice delivered to 
TOWNSHIP personally or by certified  mail. 


 
 
 


SECTION XII • ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
 


A.         Additional  services, which are outside the scope of basic 
services contained  in this agreement, shall not be performed  by the 
CONSULTANT without prior written authorization from the TOWNSHIP.  Additional 
services, when authorized by a Contract Supplement for Professional Services, 







Appendix A 
 


shall be compensated  for by a fee mutually agreed  upon between the  
TOWNSHIP and the CONSULTANT. 


 
 
 
SECTION XIII • SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 


 
A.         This Contract and any claims arising there  under shall not be 


assignable except at the written consent of the parties hereto and it shall extend 
to and be binding upon the heirs, executors,  administrators, successors, and 
assigns of the parties hereto. 


 
 
SECTION XIV • SPECIAL PROVISIONS  


A.         The CONSULTANT shall exercise professional care to 
comply with all applicable  Federal, State, and local laws and ordinances  in effect 
at the time the plans are sealed which are applicable to the services required by 
this Agreement. 


B.        The CONSULTANT will  not discriminate against any person 
on the basis of race, color,  or national origin in the performance of this Contract. 


C. The CONSULTANT further agrees to insert the foregoing 
provisions in all subcontracts. 


D. This Contract shall be in full force and effect only when it has 
been executed by the duly authorized TOWNSHIP official(s) and the duly authorized 
agent of the CONSULTANT. 


 
  







Appendix A 
 


 
ACCEPTANCE AND AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED 


 
 
 
 


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON authorizes CONSULTANT to proceed 


with the work as outlined in the Scope of Work under the terms of this Agreement: 


 
 


Signed: ______________________ 
 


By:       David  Pribulka 
 


Title:   Township Manager 
 


Date:   January __,  2020  
 
 
 
 
CONSULTANT will proceed with the work as outlined in the Scope of Work under 


the terms of this Agreement: 


Corporate Officer Signature: _________________ 


By (Name): ____________________________________ 
 


Title:  ___________________________________







Project Name: Township of Ferguson Public Works Facility


Bidding , Award and Construction Phase Services


                          Firms   Whitman Requardt & Associates


Construction Phase Service Type   


 LEED QA


140 Working Days Adj for Weather Days = 270 Cal. Days  (34 Weeks/8 months incl 32 Weather Days)


USGBC Certified 


LEED A-B


Contract Mgr Sr Constr 


Manager/ QA


Resident CM Field Inspector/ 


Certified 


Technician 


Document 


Control Specialist


CPM Schedule 


Reviewer


Task # Task Activities/ Description $175 $185 $160 $115 $85 $75 $115


1.0 Services During Bidding/ Award Phase/NTP /Pre-Construction


Constructability Review of Issued Scope of Work- General/Plumbing/Mech-HVAC & Elec 8 8 16 16 8


Pre-Construction Support thru NTP 8 8 16 16 8


Sub-Total: 16 16 32 32 0 0 16


2.0 Construction Contract  Administration  


Overall Task Mangement/ Adminstration (4 hrs /mo) 32


Sr. Constr. Manager/ QA- Progress Meetings & General Contract Management (4 hrs/wk) 136


Document Control Set-up/ Mgmnt- SecureShares/SharePoint/Others; (24 hrs set-up + 8 hrs/wk) 296


CPM Schedule Reviews (24 hrs/ICPM + 10 hrs/mo) 104


Sub-Total: 0 32 136 0 0 296 104


3.0 Construction Management Services (Full-Time)


FT Resident CM thru Final Inspection/Final Completion (40 hrs /week over 34 weeks*) 1,360


Sub-Total: 0 0 0 1,360 0 0 0


4.0 SI IBC Special Inspections-Intermittent (Designated "SI By Owner")


Special Inspection Certification Compliance by Registered PE


Structural- Steel: Welding (IBC 2015- 1705.2.1/ AISC 360-10)


Structural- Steel: Bolting (IBC 2015- 1705.2.1/AISC 360-10)


Structural- Steel: NDE (IBC 2015- 1705.2.1/AISC 360-10)


Structural- Steel: Other (IBC 2015- 1705.2.1/AISC 341-10)


Structural- Steel: Cold-formed Metal Deck (SDI QA/QC-2011)


Structural-Open Web Joists: (IBC 2015- Table 1705.2.3)


Structural- Concrete: (IBC 2015-  Table 1705.3/ ACI 318 References)  


Structural- Masonry: Reinforced (IBC 1705.4/ ACI 530-13)


Geotechnical- Soils: Fnd.Excavation & Compaction (IBC 2015 Section 1705.5)


Geotechnical- Caissons (IBC 2015 Section XXXX)


Sub-Total: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


5.0 Other Services (LEED Compliance During Construction Phase)


Contractor LEED Compliance Verification Services (4 hrs/week) 152


Sub-Total: 0 0 0 0 0 152 0


TOTALS:                                                TOTAL HOURS 16 48 168 1392 0 448 120


TOTAL COST $2,800 $8,880 $26,880 $160,080 $0 $33,600 $13,800


* 140 Work Cays (28 weeks; 6.5mo) converted to 270 Calendar Days (34 weeks; 8 mo) incl. 32 Weather Days (Avg 4 Weather Days/mo)


$246,040


Construction Management & Inspection








 


  
 


Manager’s Report 
February 3, 2020 


 
1. Township and Centre Region Parks and Recreation staff met on January 29th to 


review the results of the Zoning Administrator’s playground safety inspections 
conducted last fall. Minor safety improvements were made by CRPR staff in 
Autumnwood, Fairbrook, Tudek, Homestead, and Haymarket Parks. Capital 
improvements will be made by the Township in Suburban, Fairbrook, and 
Homestead Park, as well. Generally, the inspection report concluded that the 
playgrounds in Ferguson Township meet safety standards. 


 
2. The reorganizational meeting of the Centre Area Cable Consortium was held on 


Tuesday, January 21st at the College Township Municipal Building. Patti Hartle 
from Halfmoon Township was elected Chair and Dan Trevino of Patton Township 
was elected Vice Chair. In addition to reorganizational items, the Consortium 
reviewed the process to conduct the biannual franchise fee review. There are no 
more anticipated meetings of the CACC this year. Mr. Miller is the Township’s 
representative on the Consortium. 
 


3. A meeting of the key decisionmakers of the Regional Permitting Software Working 
Group was held on January 21st to discuss the process to select from the two 
vendors who submitted responses to the Request for Quotes that was issued by 
Peter Marshall & Associates on behalf of the Centre Region COG. Two 
demonstrations are scheduled in February, and a survey of stakeholders has been 
prepared to evaluate each of the vendors. This is the selection process to replace 
the current regional permitting and code enforcement software that is used by 
participating municipalities and the Centre Region Code Administration. 
 


4. I attended a meeting at St. Paul Lutheran Church to discuss the potential formation 
of an ad hoc committee to assist in the implementation of the Pine Grove Mills 
Small Area Plan. The agenda item was discussed earlier this evening. 
 


5. A meeting of the Non-Uniformed Pension Advisory Committee was held on 
January 22nd and included Pat Geary of Cornerstone Wealth Advisory Services, 
the Township’s consultant to review the investment options in the 457 Deferred 
Compensation and 401(a) retirement plans. The Committee will vote on the 
issuance of a Request for Proposals for plan sponsors for the non-uniformed 
retirement plans. 
 







6. The Assistant to the Manager and I attended the Winter Workshop of the 
Association of Pennsylvania Municipal Management in Harrisburg on January 24th. 
Sessions on land use regulations, code enforcement, and legislation of interest 
were offered. 
 


7. The Chamber of Business of Industry of Centre County hosted an economic 
development summit on January 30th at Mountain View Country Club in Harris 
Township. The CBICC also hosted a “ribbon cutting” ceremony for the new KCF 
Technologies location on January 31st. Ferguson Township and the Ferguson 
Township Industrial and Commercial Development Authority contributed a total of 
$25,000 to assist other municipal and county contributions to the expansion 
project. 
 


8. Representatives of the Penn State College of Engineering will facilitate a meeting 
with the Stonebridge Property Owners Association at the Township building on 
February 4th. Township staff will attend the meeting.  
 


9. The Baileyville Community Hall hosted Coffee and Conversation on Saturday, 
January 25th at 8:00 a.m. The event was well-attended and topics included regional 
refuse collection, local police use of radar, and stormwater management. We 
appreciate the generosity of the folks at Baileyville Grange for graciously hosting 
us! 
 


10. I will be out of the office beginning Thursday, February 6th and returning on 
Monday, February 10th. David Modricker, Director of Public Works, has been 
designated as Acting Township Manager as I will be out of the state. A 
memorandum will be provided to the Board electronically with further details.  








 


 
 


CMT Laboratories, Inc. 
2701 Carolean Industrial Drive, State College, PA 16801 ■ Phone: 814-231-8845 ■ Fax: 814-231-8846 


 


 
December 30, 2019 


       CMT File No.: 1714101 
 
Ferguson Township 
3147 Research Drive 
State College, PA 16801 
 
Attn: David J. Modricker, P.E. 
 
Re: Special Inspections Proposal  


Ferguson Public Works Building 
3147 Research Drive 
State College, PA 


 
Dear Mr. Modricker:  
 
 As per the request for proposal, CMT Laboratories, Inc. (CMT) is pleased to 
provide a proposal for testing and inspection services for the above-referenced project.  
We have reviewed the civil, architectural and structural drawings for the project.  CMT 
specializes in special inspections in the Centre Region and also have an in-depth 
knowledge of this project based on our involvement as the geotechnical engineer-of-
record.  All inspection and testing services will be conducted under the guidance of 
registered Professional Engineers.   
 
Firm Information/Profile 
 
 CMT was founded in 1959 in State College, PA and has developed into a full-
service company providing its clients with a wide range of construction materials testing 
services, geotechnical engineering, exploratory drilling, infiltration testing, and geo-
structural design.  During all of that time, we have been dedicated to providing Penn 
State with the highest quality of those services.   
 
 CMT employs 24 engineers, scientists, technicians, and technical support staff in 
offices located in State College and South Williamsport, Pennsylvania.  Our engineers are 
licensed in Pennsylvania, Maryland, Ohio, Virginia and West Virginia.    
 
 CMT has been awarded accreditation through AASHTO’s Material Reference 
Laboratory (AMRL) and Cement and Concrete Reference Laboratory (CCRL).  
Highlights of this accreditation are AASHTO R18, ASTM D 3740, E329 (Soil, Concrete 







Proposal for Testing & Inspection Services (Cont’d)    December 30, 2019 
Re: Ferguson Public Works Building   CMT File No. 1714101 


Page 2 of 4 
 


and Aggregate) and C1077 (Concrete and Aggregate).  CMT is also a validated 
laboratory by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE).  A copy of our certifications 
is attached in Appendix A.   
 
 We have multiple technicians and engineers certified by IBC, ACI, PennDOT and 
AWS, and all of our technicians are certified to use nuclear density gauges.  
 
Project Team 
 
 An organizational chart that identifies the consultant team and key team members 
is included as Appendix B.  Resumes are available upon request.  The following 
professionals, all of whom are based in our State College office, will be key members of 
our project team: 
 
Shad E. Hoover, Ph.D., P.E. – Project Manager:  
Shad will be responsible managing the project for CMT, which will include attending 
project meetings, reviewing field reports, and providing engineering consultation as 
required for the project.  Shad will be available to provide immediate response to field 
issues during construction.  
 
Whitney Greenawalt, P.E. – Project Engineer: 
Whitney will be responsible for verifying that the Special Inspection items are followed 
in accordance with the International Building Code.  Whitney is also our field soils 
specialist and will be on site during foundation construction activities. 
 
Jeremy Tyson, C.P.S.S. – Soil Scientist: 
Jeremy will be responsible for testing and inspections related to construction of the 
stormwater management areas.  Jeremy will also provide inspection and repair 
observations for any sinkhole related issues.   
 
Adam Fenstermacher, C.W.I., S.I. – Laboratory Manager: 
Adam is CMT’s laboratory manager and will be responsible for generation of all 
laboratory testing documents submitted for the project.  Adam is also an experienced 
field technician and specializes in structural steel, SFRM and masonry inspections.   
 
Tyler Fishburn – Scheduling Technician:  
Tyler will be the primary point of contact for scheduling all technician field services. 
 
Ray Brown and Robert Struble: 
Ray, Bob and Adam are CMT’s most experienced technicians and will provide the 
highest quality soils, concrete, masonry, and steel inspection services.   
 
 Certificates of General and Professional Liability are provided in Appendix C.   
 
 
 
 
 







Proposal for Testing & Inspection Services (Cont’d)    December 30, 2019 
Re: Ferguson Public Works Building   CMT File No. 1714101 


Page 3 of 4 
 


Scope of Services and Cost Estimate 
 


CMT will provide the following Special Inspection and general testing and 
inspection services for this project: 


1.  Reinforcing Steel Inspections  
• A CMT technician will verify that the steel reinforcement intended 


for all structural members has been installed in accordance with 
approved structural drawings.   


2.  Compressive Strength of Concrete (cylinders molds and spare cylinders) 
• A CMT technician will be on site to perform fresh mix testing (air, 


slump, temperature, and cylinder cast) of all concrete in 
accordance with project specifications.  All concrete specimens 
will be transferred to our AMRL approved laboratory for 
compressive strength testing.   


3. Compaction Testing Including Laboratory Proctor and Classification Tests 
• A CMT technician will perform compaction testing with a nuclear 


density gauge in accordance with ASTM D6938.  Compaction 
testing will be performed on structural and non-structural backfill 
and fill materials throughout the project in accordance with the 
project specifications.  On-site soil and imported structural fill will 
be subjected to Standard Proctor (ASTM D698) and USCS 
Classification testing to determine placement applicability.  This 
testing will be performed at our State College laboratory. 


4. Field Steel Inspection (Welded & Bolted Connections and Cold Formed 
Steel Framing) 
• Visual weld inspection will be performed by an AWS Certified 


Technician in accordance with project specification (partial and 
fillet welds). 


• Non-Destructive Weld Inspection will consist of magnetic particle, 
liquid dye penetrant and/or ultrasonic testing in accordance with 
project specifications (full penetration welds or as required). 


5. Sprayed Fire Resistant Materials (SFRM) 
• A CMT technician will thickness, adhesion and density testing per 


the project specifications. 
  6. Masonry, Grout, and Mortar 


• A CMT technician will perform masonry inspections in accordance 
with the project specifications.  Field inspection will consist of 
visually verifying the placement, spacing and type of 
reinforcement in accordance with the project drawings. 


• A CMT technician will perform testing (ASTM C1019) in 
accordance with project specifications.  The CMT technician will 







Proposal for Testing & Inspection Services (Cont’d)    December 30, 2019 
Re: Ferguson Public Works Building   CMT File No. 1714101 


Page 4 of 4 
 


also verify that the grout has been consolidated properly in the cell 
blocks.   


7. Bearing Verification, and Miscellaneous Geotechnical Issues 
• Bearing verification will be performed by an experienced 


technician under the direct supervision of a geotechnical engineer.  
All geotechnical issues that may arise during construction will be 
handled by CMT’s experienced professional staff. 


• Our experienced geotechnical engineers will also provide guidance 
on karst instability, i.e. sinkholes, remediation procedures 
throughout construction should that issue arise. 


8. Stormwater Management Testing and Inspections 
• Our Certified Professional Soil Scientist will perform testing and 


inspection of the stormwater management areas.   
 
 Based on the above-referenced scope and our experience on projects of a similar 
size and scope, the estimated total cost for the requested testing and inspection services 
will be $41,450.00.  Our unit rate sheet is provided in Appendix D, which outlines a 
rough estimate of the quantity of services anticipated.  Note that this estimate also 
includes site work testing. 
 
 If you have any questions or require any additional information, please do not 
hesitate to contact me. 
 
   Respectfully submitted, 
 
   CMT LABORATORIES, INC. 
 
 
 
 
 
   Shad E. Hoover, P.E. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
APPENDIX A: CMT LABORATORIES, INC. CERTIFICATIONS 
APPENDIX B: CMT PROJECT ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 
APPENDIX C: CERTIFICATES OF GENERAL AND PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY 
APPENDIX D: CMT UNIT RATE SHEET 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


APPENDIX A 
 


CMT LABORATORIES, INC. CERTIFICATIONS 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 































 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


APPENDIX B 
 


CMT PROJECT ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







CMT LABORATORIES, INC.
STAFF FLOW CHART


Whitney Greenawalt, P.E.        


Project Engineer                


Cell: 814‐880‐3342


Shad E. Hoover, Ph.D., P.E.       


Project Manager                


Cell: 814‐883‐0952


Tyler Fishburn                   


Technician Scheduler            


Cell: 814‐883‐0261


Adam Fenstermacher            


Laboratory Supervisor           


Cell: 814‐880‐7852


Raymond Brown                


Field Technician (Soil/Concrete)   


Cell: 814‐883‐0259


Jeremy Tyson                   


Soil Scientist (Stormwater)       


Cell: 814‐883‐0686


Robert Struble                  


Field Technician (Soil/Concrete)   


Cell: 814‐883‐0582


Testing and Inspection Proposal
Re: Ferguson Public Works Building


12/30/2019
CMT File No. 1714101 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


APPENDIX C 
 


CERTIFICATES OF GENERAL AND PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







03/27/2019


Doty & Hench
100 Radnor Road


State College PA 16801


Allyce Boone
(814) 238-6725 (814) 238-5404


aboone@dotyhench.com


CMT Laboratories, Inc.
2701 Carolean Industrial Dr.


State College PA 16801-0000


Penn National Mutual Casualty 14990


2019-2020


A CL9 0028176 03/27/2019 03/27/2020


1,000,000
100,000
5,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000


Employment Practices
Liability Coverage


100,000


A AU9 0028176 03/27/2019 03/27/2020


1,000,000


A
10,000


UL9 0028176 03/27/2019 03/27/2020
5,000,000
5,000,000


A N WC9 0028176 03/27/2019 03/27/2020
100,000
100,000
500,000


CMT Laboratories, Inc.
2701 Carolean Industrial Drive


State College PA 16801


SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.


INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE


INSURER F :


INSURER E :


INSURER D :


INSURER C :


INSURER B :


INSURER A :


NAIC #


NAME:
CONTACT


(A/C, No):
FAX


E-MAIL
ADDRESS:


PRODUCER


(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE


INSURED


REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES


IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).


THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.


OTHER:


(Per accident)


(Ea accident)


$


$


N / A


SUBR
WVD


ADDL
INSD


THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.


$


$


$


$PROPERTY DAMAGE


BODILY INJURY (Per accident)


BODILY INJURY (Per person)


COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT


AUTOS ONLY


AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED


SCHEDULEDOWNED


ANY AUTO


AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY


Y / N
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY


OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)


DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under


ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE


$


$


$


E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT


E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE


E.L. EACH ACCIDENT


ER
OTH-


STATUTE
PER


LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP


(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF


POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR


DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)


EXCESS LIAB


UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE


$AGGREGATE


$


OCCUR


CLAIMS-MADE


DED RETENTION $


$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG


$GENERAL AGGREGATE


$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY


$MED EXP (Any one person)


$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED


$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)


COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY


CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR


GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:


POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC


CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)


CANCELLATION


AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE


ACORD 25 (2016/03)
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.


CERTIFICATE HOLDER


The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD


HIRED
AUTOS ONLY







ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?


INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD


PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:


FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):


E-MAIL
ADDRESS:


INSURER A :


INSURED INSURER B :


INSURER C :


INSURER D :


INSURER E :


INSURER F :


POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)


AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY


UMBRELLA LIAB


EXCESS LIAB


WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY


DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)


AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE


EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)


MED EXP (Any one person) $


PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $


GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 


OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT


$(Ea accident)


ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED


BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE


$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)


$


OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE
CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $


DED RETENTION $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER


E.L. EACH ACCIDENT


E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under


E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below


INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #


COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY


Y / N
N / A


(Mandatory in NH)


SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.


THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.


THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.


IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).


COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:


CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION


© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)


CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)


$


$


$


$


$


The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD


CMTLA-1 OP ID: TO


01/29/2019


Matthew Bonchack
The Hartman Agency
State College Office
1051 Shiloh Rd
State College, PA 16801
Matthew Bonchack


814-231-0100 814-272-0058
matt@hartmangroup1.com


Navigators Specialty Insur Co
CMT Laboratories, Inc.
Richard Williamson
2701 Carolean Industrial Drive
State College, PA 16801


A CE19MPLZ015KAQN 02/10/2019 02/10/2020 EACH 2,000,000
AGGREGATE 2,000,000


XXXXX-1


XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX, XX XXXXXXXXXX


814-231-0100


36056


PROFESSIONAL LIAB







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


APPENDIX D 
 


CMT UNIT RATE SHEET 
 


 


 


 


 







UNIT RATE SHEET


SPECIAL INSPECTIONS


INSPECTION DESCRIPTION
ESTIMATED 
QUANTITY UNIT


UNIT 
PRICE


ESTIMATED  
COST


Engineering Technician1 30 hr $45.00 $1,350.00 
Standard/Modified Proctor 2 ea $150.00 $300.00 
USCS Classification 1 ea $200.00 $200.00 


Engineering Technician1 200 hr $45.00 $9,000.00 


Senior Engineering Technician1 20 hr $70.00 $1,400.00 
Compressive Strength Testing - Cylinders (ASTM C39) 200 ea $15.00 $3,000.00 


Senior Engineering Technician1 60 hr $70.00 $4,200.00 
Field Masonry Mortar Testing (ASTM C780) 100 ea $15.00 $1,500.00 
Rectangular Grout Specimen (ASTM C1019) 80 ea $20.00 $1,600.00 


Structural Engineering Technician1 40 hr $70.00 $2,800.00 


Non-Destructive Testing Technician1 10 hr $95.00 $950.00 


Structural Engineering Technician1 20 hr $70.00 $1,400.00 
Density Testing 15 ea $50.00 $750.00 


Professional Engineer1 30 hr $130.00 $3,900.00 
1Portal-to-Portal $32,350.00 


SITE WORK 


INSPECTION DESCRIPTION
ESTIMATED 
QUANTITY UNIT


UNIT 
PRICE


ESTIMATED  
COST


Engineering Technician1 20 hr $45.00 $900.00 
Standard/Modified Proctor 2 ea $150.00 $300.00 
USCS Classification 1 ea $200.00 $200.00 


Engineering Technician1 60 hr $45.00 $2,700.00 
Compressive Strength Testing - Cylinders (ASTM C39) 60 ea $15.00 $900.00 


Soil Scientist1 20 hr $75.00 $1,500.00 


Professional Engineer1 20 hr $130.00 $2,600.00 
1Portal-to-Portal $9,100.00


$41,450.00


SPRAYED FIRE RESISTANT MATERIALS


PROJECT MANAGEMENT & ENGINEERING SUPPORT


Estimated Subtotal =


Estimated Subtotal =


STORMWATER MANAGEMENT TESTING AND INSPECTIONS


ESTIMATED TOTAL = 


SOIL/ASPHALT TESTING


CONCRETE TESTING


PROJECT MANAGEMENT & ENGINEERING SUPPORT


CMT LABORATORIES, INC.


SOIL TESTING


CONCRETE TESTING & FLOOR FLATNESS


MASONRY TESTING


CMT LABORATORIES, INC.


STRUCTURAL STEEL (WELDS, BOLTS & COLD FORM METAL FRAMING)


Testing and Inspection Proposal
Re: Ferguson Public Works Building


12/30/2019
CMT Proposal No. 1714101





		Firm Information/Profile

		CMT LABORATORIES, INC.

		Shad E. Hoover, P.E.










 


 


- A Home Rule Municipality - 


 


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
3147 Research Drive •  State College, Pennsylvania 16801 


Telephone: 814-238-4651 •  Fax: 814-238-3454 


www.twp.ferguson.pa.us 


 


  
 


Public Works Director’s Report to the Board of Supervisors 


for the regular meeting on February 3, 2020 


 


1. Renovations to Township Administration Building: Renovations continue in Phase 2 
(admin, finance, engineering/planning and zoning). Admin section is complete. GIS work area 
is substantially complete. “Quiet” work in Phase 3 (lobby, hallway, custodian area) is 
underway. The receptionist will relocate to another workstation when “loud” work including 
demolition and installation of walls takes place in the lobby. Walk-ins will be directed to another 
receiving station in the lobby or to the tax office windows. 


2. Proposed Public Works Maintenance Facility– A professional services coordination meeting 
is scheduled for February 10th with the Architect design team, Construction Management team, 
Special Inspections Firm, and the Owner. Following this meeting, a pre-construction meeting 
will be held with the prime contractors. A Notice to Proceed should be issued in early March for 
work to begin in mid-March. 


3. Stormwater Fee Study Phase 2 –Staff and the consultant, WOOD, have been addressing 
Stormwater Advisory Committee (SAC) concerns, reviewing the cost of service, better defining 
service areas, refining the scope of service to reduce costs, revising the time period of cost 
distribution, and reviewing the effect on an anticipated fee structure. A final fee structure was 
not proposed to the SAC at their last meeting in 2019. Two additional meetings of the SAC 
have been established; one on March 25th and one TBD in April. Once the SAC completes its 
work, the consultant will prepare a report for the BOS. Next steps starting in April include 
outreach and education, public meetings, and a work-session with the BOS to review the 
program and determine a course to move forward, “go or no-go” with a public hearing for 
adoption of a stormwater fee program. 


4. Arborist and Ferguson Township Tree Commission – The FTTC meets on February 18th. 
At the February meeting, it is expected the FTTC will again start work on the draft tree 
preservation ordinance, discuss bylaws for the group, and review a draft RFP for tree canopy 
survey. 


5. Maintenance Section: Winter operations continue. When not performing winter operations the 
road crew has been installing property line fence posts and rails in Songbird Sanctuary and 
Haymarket Park and completing various work orders, cleaning and repairing vehicles. 


6. Contract 2020-C1 Street Improvement Project (portions of Blue Course Drive and 
Saratoga Drive) Survey is complete. Design is underway for improvements to sections of 
these two roads including inlet repairs, curb repairs, asphalt repairs and an asphalt overlay. An 







 


 


 


open house is planned for February 18th. The project should be let in late February for a bid 
opening in March. 


7. Contract 2020-C2 Street Improvement Project (Dry Hollow Road, Deibler Road, portion 
of Whitehall Road) – Design is underway. Work includes base repair, asphalt milling, and 
paving a new asphalt wearing course on Whitehall Road from Timothy Lane to the County line. 
Similar work is planned for a section of Deibler Road and Dry Hollow Road. A utility 
coordination meeting is scheduled for January 31st. An open house is planned for February 
18th. The project should be let in late February for a bid opening in March. 


8. Contract 2020-C13 Street Tree Planting Reference separate award recommendation memo. 








( (


((
(


(


(


(


(


((
(


(
(
(


(
S K


IRK
 ST


SPO
RT


S R
D


SHAWVER LN


CH
EST


ER
DR


REED ALY
W PINE GROVE RD


S K
IRK


 ST


S N
IXO


N R
D


DE
EPW


OO
D D


R


N K
IRK


 ST


MARTZ ST


S W
ATE


R S
T


SMITH ALY


MA
YES


 ST


SAI
NT 


ELM
OS 


LN


CHESTER CT


E PINE GROVE RD


CH
EST


ER
 DR


BUTTERNUT ST


SHAWVER LN


DE
EPW


OO
D D


R


LEGEND
( Area of Concern


Street
Parcel


±0 0.040.02 Miles


 V:
\G


IS_
Da


ta\
Mi


sc
\re


sid
en


tcr
os


sw
alk


co
nc


ern
.m


xd


RESIDENT CROSSWALK CONCERN
PINE GROVE MILLS








 
 


- A Home Rule Municipality - 


 


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
3147 Research Drive  •  State College, Pennsylvania 16801 
Telephone: 814-238-4651  •   Fax: 814-238-3454 
www.twp.ferguson.pa.us 
 


PLANNING & ZONING DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Monday, February 3, 2020 


 


PLANNING COMMISSION 
Planning Commission will be meeting February 10, 2020. 


LAND DEVELOPMENT PLANS AND OTHER PROJECTS 


1. Active Plans are listed below for the Board of Supervisors (1/14/20). 
o West Cherry Lane Multi Use Building (114 W. Cherry Lane | 24-015-,038-,0000) 
o Whitehall Road Regional Park (intersection of Blue Course Drive and Whitehall Road) 
o Harner Farm Subdivision Plan (24-4-67 and replot 24-4-67C) 
o Whitehall Road Sheetz (24-4-67 and replot 24-4-67C) 


2. Community Planner attended the Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan Meeting. 
3. PZ Staff met with the property owner of 1004 & 1006 W. College Ave to discuss a Minor 


Alteration Plan submission. 
4. PZ Staff met with Penn State University Staff in relation to parking on the O.W. Houts site. 
5. PZ Staff met with the property owner of Centre Animal Hospital about a potential addition to the 


building on the site. 
6. PZ Director attended the CCEDP Economic Development Summit on Thursday, January 30, 2020. 
7. PZ Staff met to review Sign Ordinance amendments. 


UPCOMING ZONING HEARING BOARD MEETINGS 


1. The Zoning Hearing Board will be met January 28, 2020 to review a variance request for a 
property at 3765 West College Avenue (RA—Rural Agricultural/ COD—Corridor Overlay District). 
The applicant, The Islamic Society of Central PA, is requesting a variance from Chapter 27-701; Ch. 
27-701.C.1; Ch. 27-701.I; Ch. 27-701.H: Floodplain Conservation Regulations. The Zoning Hearing 
Board voted to table the discussion pending a review of the Stormwater plan by the Township’s 
Stormwater Engineer. 








WW PPIINNEE GGRROOVVEE RRDD


S NIXON RD
S NIXON RD


EE PPIINNEE GGRROOVVEE RRDD


RR
R1


C


V


FG


RR


RA


Zoning Districts
Agricultural Research (AR)
General Commercial (C)
Forest/Gamelands (FG)
General Industrial (I)
Light Industry, Research & Development (IRD)
Mobile Home Park (MHP)
Office Commercial (OC)
Planned Residential Development (PRD)
Single Family Residential (R1)


Suburban Single Family Residential (R1B)
Two Family Residential (R2)
Townhouse Residential (R3)
Multi-Family Residential (R4)
Rural Agricultural (RA)
Rural Residential (RR)
Terraced Streetscape District (TSD)
Traditional Town Development (TTD)
Village (V)


ZONING MAP -  V ILLAGE EXPANSION/OVERLAY PGM


±


0 500 1,000250 Feet







WW WWHHIITTEEHHAALLLL RRDD


WW PPIINNEE GGRROOVVEE RRDD


RR


R1


RR


RR


RA


AR


RA


AR


FG


RA


Zoning Districts
Agricultural Research (AR)
General Commercial (C)
Forest/Gamelands (FG)
General Industrial (I)
Light Industry, Research & Development (IRD)
Mobile Home Park (MHP)
Office Commercial (OC)
Planned Residential Development (PRD)
Single Family Residential (R1)


Suburban Single Family Residential (R1B)
Two Family Residential (R2)
Townhouse Residential (R3)
Multi-Family Residential (R4)
Rural Agricultural (RA)
Rural Residential (RR)
Terraced Streetscape District (TSD)
Traditional Town Development (TTD)
Village (V)
Proposed Zoning Changes


ZONING MAP -  MEADOWS,  ROCK SPRINGS,  PSU AR


±


0 950 1,900475 Feet







W WHITEHALL RD


W WHITEHALL RD


W COLLEGE AVE


W COLLEGE AVE


R1


C


IRD


C


RAC


C
RA


RA
R1


RA


R1


RA


RA


Zoning Districts
Agricultural Research (AR)
General Commercial (C)
Forest/Gamelands (FG)
General Industrial (I)
Light Industry, Research & Development (IRD)
Mobile Home Park (MHP)
Office Commercial (OC)
Planned Residential Development (PRD)
Single Family Residential (R1)


Suburban Single Family Residential (R1B)
Two Family Residential (R2)
Townhouse Residential (R3)
Multi-Family Residential (R4)
Rural Agricultural (RA)
Rural Residential (RR)
Terraced Streetscape District (TSD)
Traditional Town Development (TTD)
Village (V)
Proposed Zoning Changes


ZONING MAP -  HARNER FARM PROPERTIES


±


0 400 800200 Feet







W PINE GROVE RDW PINE GROVE RD


WW
CCOOLL


LL EE
GG EE


AA VV
EE


S NIXON RD
S NIXON RD


E PINE GROVE RD


E PINE GROVE RD


SSHHIINNGGLLEETTOOWW NN RRDD


PLAINFIELD RD
PLAINFIELD RD


W WHITEHALL RD
W WHITEHALL RD


RR


C
R1


C


V


R1


FG


RR


RA


Zoning Districts
Agricultural Research (AR)
General Commercial (C)
Forest/Gamelands (FG)
General Industrial (I)
Light Industry, Research & Development (IRD)
Mobile Home Park (MHP)
Office Commercial (OC)
Planned Residential Development (PRD)
Single Family Residential (R1)


Suburban Single Family Residential (R1B)
Two Family Residential (R2)
Townhouse Residential (R3)
Multi-Family Residential (R4)
Rural Agricultural (RA)
Rural Residential (RR)
Terraced Streetscape District (TSD)
Traditional Town Development (TTD)
Village (V)
Proposed Zoning Changes


ZONING MAP - RIDGE OVERLAY DISTRICT


±


0 2,000 4,0001,000 Feet


HUNTINGTON COUN TY







OOLLDD GG AATTEE SSBBUURRGG RRDD


WW CCOOLLLLEEGGEE AAVVEE


BBLLUUEE CCOOUURRSSEE DDRR


I


R1


R2


PRD


IRD


C


TTD
RA


C


TSD


Zoning Districts
Agricultural Research (AR)
General Commercial (C)
Forest/Gamelands (FG)
General Industrial (I)
Light Industry, Research & Development (IRD)
Mobile Home Park (MHP)
Office Commercial (OC)
Planned Residential Development (PRD)
Single Family Residential (R1)


Suburban Single Family Residential (R1B)
Two Family Residential (R2)
Townhouse Residential (R3)
Multi-Family Residential (R4)
Rural Agricultural (RA)
Rural Residential (RR)
Terraced Streetscape District (TSD)
Traditional Town Development (TTD)
Village (V)


ZONING MAP -  INDUSTRIAL


±


0 500 1,000250 Feet





		Zoning_PGM.pdf

		Zoning_RockSprings.pdf

		Zoning_Harner.pdf

		Zoning_ROD.pdf

		Zoning_Industrial.pdf






2020 ZONING MAP AMENDMENTS TIMELINE—DRAFT 
Second Phase of the Zoning Rewrite Project 


 


 


• Staff schedule work sessions with PC and Public 
o Pine Grove Mills (Village District) 
o Rock Springs (Rural Agricultural) 
o Harner Farm Lots (Rural Agricultural) 
o The Meadows (Rural Agricultural) 
o Ridge Overlay District (Rural Residential) 
o Penn State University lands (Agricultural Research) 
o Industrial Zoning District (Northwest corner of Blue Course Dr. 


& W. College) 


2 – 4 months 


• Staff compile input from work sessions 
o Work with PW to update GIS shapefiles and produce draft maps 


1 – 2 months 


• Staff present to BOS 
o BOS provide input and direction to staff on map amendments 
o Staff incorporate input from BOS 
o Work with PW to update GIS and produce final maps for Public 


Hearings 


1 – 2 meetings 


• Public Hearings scheduled for map amendments 
o MPC compliant w/ public notice, post properties under consideration 


for amendments and mailed notice of public hearing to the 
addresses for all properties located within the area being rezoned 


2 – 3 months 


 TOTAL: 6 – 11 months 
 January 27, 2020 draft 


 








MONTHLY TREASURERS REPORT


NOVEMBER 2019







General Fund


$7,683,534
Street Light Fund


$13,336


Hydrant Fund


$56,250


Transportation Improvement 


Fund


$4,144,765


General Obligation Fund


$107,161


Agricultural Preservation Fund


$43,909


Pine Grove Mills Streetlight 


Fund


$20,072


Capital Reserve Fund


$1,016,075


Regional Cap Rec Projects Fund


$1,603,618
Liquid Fuels Fund


$902,951


Park Improvement Fund


$126,490


Police Pension Trust Fund


$5,999,710


Non Uniform 401 Pension Trust


$3,988,475


Tudek Trust Fund


$595,695


Non Uniform 457 Pension Trust


$1,897,421


CASH BALANCES BY FUND - NOVEMBER 30, 2019







Checking


Jersey Shore State Bank Operating (3245) 5,525,069.75


JSSB Flex Plan Checking (8757) 5,198.61


Ameriserv Money Market 2602 260,526.35


Ameriserv CD (0210) (matures 12/3/19)(1/3 of total) 260,472.15


PLGIT General Fund (3017) 559,221.02


PLGIT General Fund CDs (2) (mature 12/30/19 & 3/9/20) 755,826.30


Investments


Morgan Stanley Brokerage Account (@ market) 0.00


JSSB/Voya Brokerage Account (@ market) 317,219.78


TOTAL GENERAL FUND 7,683,533.96


Fund 02 Street Lights


JSSB Checking (4836) 13,335.68


Fund 03 Fire Hydrant


JSSB Checking (4844) 56,250.04


Fund 16 General Obligation


JSSB Checking (4852) 107,160.97


Fund 19 Agricultural Preservation


JSSB Checking (4879) 43,909.17


Fund 30 Capital Reserve


Paypal Account 9,701.99


JSSB Checking (Employee Wellness Sinking Fund)(4909) 13,359.35


JSSB Capital Reserve Checking (3555) 72,753.61


JSSB Checking (Police Equipment Sinking Fund) (1711) 83,045.18


JSSB Checking (PW Equipment Sinking Fund)(4895) 600,714.45


JSSB Checking (Bldg Equipment Sinking Fund)(4887) 236,500.43


Fund 31 Regional Capital Recreation Projects


JSSB Checking (3547) 1,082,619.49


Ameriserv Money Market 2818 260,526.35


Ameriserv CD (0210) (matures 12/3/19)(1/3 of total) 260,472.15


Fund 32 Transportation Improvement


JSSB Checking (3539) 2,307,487.49


PLGIT Checking (3261) & Plus 63,324.60


PLGIT CDs (4)(mature 2/10/20, 3/2/20, 3/2/20, 5/20/20) 1,252,953.93


Ameriserv Money Market 2693 260,526.35


Ameriserv CD (0210) (matures 12/3/19)(1/3 of total) 260,472.15


Fund 33 Pine Grove Mills Street Lights


JSSB Checking (4917) 20,072.03


Fund 34 Park Improvement


Ferguson Township Treasurer's Report


November 30, 2019


Statement of Cash Balances


General Fund


Other Funds







Ferguson Township Treasurer's Report


November 30, 2019


Statement of Cash Balances
JSSB Checking (4925) 126,489.58


Fund 35 Liquid Fuels


JSSB Checking (4933) 72,615.31


PLGIT Checking (3020) 330,335.88


PLGIT CD (3020) (mature 5/20/20) 500,000.00


Fund 93 Tudek Memorial Trust


JSSB Checking (4976) 23,394.70


FNB Investments (@market) 145,716.23


Centre Foundation Investments 426,583.66


TOTAL OTHER FUNDS 8,630,320.77


TOTAL NON PENSION FUNDS 16,313,854.73


Fund 60 Police Pension Trust


JSSB Checking (4941) 6,599.36


PNC Enterprise Checking (9642) 45,422.25


PNC Investments (@market)(includes accrued interest) 5,947,688.66


Fund 65 Non Uniformed 401a Pension Trust


JSSB Checking (4968) 143,327.78


ICMA-RHS Employee Retirement Health Savings Trust (@ market) 83,967.44


ICMA-401 Employer Pension Investment Trust (@ market) 3,761,179.51


TOTAL PENSION TRUST FUNDS 9,988,185.00


GRAND TOTAL 26,302,039.73


Fund 66 Non Uniformed 457 Pension Trust


ICMA-457 Employee Pension Investment Trust (@ market) 1,862,800.55


ICMA-ROTH IRA Employee Pension Investment Trust (@ market) 34,620.37


1,897,420.92


Employee Pension Trust Funds


Employer Pension Trust Funds







Checks Before: 


Bank Reconciliation


Uncleared Checks by Fund


User: eendresen


Printed: 01/20/2020 -  6:36PM


11/30/2019


Fund/Check No. Check Date Clear Date Vendor/Employee No.System AmountVendor/Employee Name


01 GENERAL FUND


 0 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10870 PNC INSTITUTIONAL INVESTMENTS  6,615.26


 0 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11216 VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS 401  15,710.33


 0 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11218 VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS 457  12,327.12


 0 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11381 VANTANGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS-706007 ROTH  273.74


 0 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 10870 PNC INSTITUTIONAL INVESTMENTS  3,307.63


 0 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11216 VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS 401  2,142.46


 0 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11218 VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS 457  6,178.46


 0 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11381 VANTANGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS-706007 ROTH  136.87


 6192 09/29/2017 Uncleared AP 11577 CBICC  2,500.00


 6255 10/13/2017 Uncleared AP 11547 FOSTER DANIEL  250.00


 6727 01/31/2018 Uncleared AP 11597 WITHERS KARYN  15.00


 7254 06/15/2018 Uncleared AP 11738 GREENE HERBERT  25.00


 7622 08/31/2018 Uncleared AP 11756 TOMKEIL PAUL  40.00


 7947 11/15/2018 Uncleared AP 11344 PETERSON INDUSTRIES INC.  684.53


 8001 11/29/2018 Uncleared AP 10720 MORRISON SHAWN  25.00


 8162 01/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10670 MAYER JONATHAN  750.00


 8358 02/28/2019 Uncleared AP 11614 SNAP ON INDUSTRIAL  11.47


 8596 04/30/2019 Uncleared AP 10422 GEISINGER HEALTH SYSTEM  157.47


 8753 06/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10755 NITTANY OFFICE EQUIP C O HON  254.10


 8799 06/28/2019 Uncleared AP 10240 COLLEGIATE PRIDE  INC  171.92


 9001 08/22/2019 Uncleared AP 10263 CORMANS MAIL SERVICE  2,873.11


 9147 09/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11217 FERGUSON TOWNSHIP POLICE ASSOCIATION  420.00


 9176 10/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11217 FERGUSON TOWNSHIP POLICE ASSOCIATION  420.00


 9183 10/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11593 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES  288.05


 9193 10/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10816 PATCTECH  400.00


 9230 10/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11217 FERGUSON TOWNSHIP POLICE ASSOCIATION  420.00


 9233 10/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10539 IRVIN FARMS  24.00


 9237 10/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10565 JOHN TENNIS TOWING  65.00


 9272 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10035 ALS TECHNOLOGIES INC  1,145.00


 9275 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10061 ASFPM  80.00


BR-Uncleared Checks by Fund (01/20/2020 -  6:36 PM) Page 1







Fund/Check No. Check Date Clear Date Vendor/Employee No.System AmountVendor/Employee Name


 9277 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11702 BLUE KNOB AUTO  300.00


 9290 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10374 FEDERAL EXPRESS  178.76


 9291 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11217 FERGUSON TOWNSHIP POLICE ASSOCIATION  840.00


 9295 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11414 GREENE'S LANDSCAPE  600.00


 9297 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11253 INFRADAPT LLC  3,221.44


 9298 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10566 JOHNSON FARM ASSOCIATES  3,540.19


 9299 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10644 LOWES COMPANIES  INC  163.92


 9300 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10762 MARCO  1.41


 9305 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10745 NEWMAN TRAFFIC SIGNS INC  3,543.00


 9310 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10819 PATTON TOWNSHIP SUPERVISORS  59.70


 9311 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10845 PENNSYLVANIA MUNICIPAL HEALTH INSURANCE CO OP  81,684.51


 9312 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10864 PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANCIAL SERVICES LLC  122.01


 9316 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11739 SAHAKIAN ARMEN D.  10,535.82


 9323 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10353 THE EMBLEM AUTHORITY  386.00


 9325 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11132 TW CONSULTING INC  20.55


 9329 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11847 VOYA FINANCIAL  3,000.00


 9334 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11687 YOUR PLUMBING SUPPLY LLC  90.05


 9335 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11848 ZUHLKE JAMES  3,000.00


 9337 11/22/2019 Uncleared AP 11779 PORT MATILDA EMS  3,000.00


 9338 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 10026 ALL IN ONE BACKFLOW SERVICES  96.67


 9339 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11242 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC  63.03


 9340 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11855 ANDERSON INDUSTRIAL MACHINERY  769.80


 9341 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11852 BISH NATHAN  91.12


 9342 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 10122 BOROUGH OF STATE COLLEGE  256.55


 9343 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 10201 CENTRE COUNTY UNITED WAY  35.00


 9344 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 10203 CENTRE DAILY TIMES  143.50


 9345 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 10244 COMCAST BUSINESS  1,050.00


 9346 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 10284 CUSTOM ALTERATIONS  106.40


 9347 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 10297 DAVIDHEISERS INC  357.00


 9348 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 10345 ECKS GARAGE INC  82.99


 9349 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11217 FERGUSON TOWNSHIP POLICE ASSOCIATION  420.00


 9350 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 10554 JARU ASSOCIATES INC  58.00


 9351 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 10568 K  & S DISTRIBUTION  59.80


 9352 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 10676 MCDONALD STEVEN W  60.00


 9353 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11854 MEASE ASSOCIATES  125.00


 9354 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 10701 MILLER WELDING SERVICE  306.20


 9355 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 10724 MOUNT NITTANY MEDICAL CENTER  350.00


 9356 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 10757 NITTANY OIL COMPANY  16,582.00


 9357 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 10819 PATTON TOWNSHIP SUPERVISORS  880.95


 9358 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 10837 PENN TERRA ENGINEERING  INC  250.00


 9359 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11779 PORT MATILDA EMS  500.00


BR-Uncleared Checks by Fund (01/20/2020 -  6:36 PM) Page 2







Fund/Check No. Check Date Clear Date Vendor/Employee No.System AmountVendor/Employee Name


 9360 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 10881 PORT MATILDA FIRE COMPANY  3,500.00


 9361 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 10882 PORTAGE POWER WASH INC  150.00


 9362 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 10955 ROTHROCKS LOCKSMITH  129.00


 9363 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11026 SPRING TOWNSHIP SUPERVISORS  960.65


 9364 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11621 ST MARYS INSURANCE AGENCY INC  625.00


 9365 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11058 STOVER  MCGLAUGHLIN  297.00


 9366 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11729 THE HR OFFICE  2,678.10


 9367 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11159 VERIZON WIRELESS  308.27


 9368 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11173 WALKER  & WALKER EQUIPMENT II LLC  627.85


 9369 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11176 WARRIORS MARK FIRE COMPANY  3,500.00


 9370 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11192 WEST PENN POWER  317.60


 9371 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11194 WEX BANK  4.00


 9372 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11199 WILLIAMS BROTHERS  62.39


 9373 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 10771 WITMER PUBLIC SAFETY GROUP INC  16,613.11


Fund 01Total:  224,415.86


02 STREET LIGHT FUND


 81 03/15/2018 Uncleared AP 11192 WEST PENN POWER  0.29


 114 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11192 WEST PENN POWER  1,333.47


Fund 02Total:  1,333.76


30 CAPITAL RESERVE FUND


 643 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10032 ALLSTEEL  2,840.76


 648 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11332 NTM ENGINEERING INC  10,253.00


 651 11/22/2019 Uncleared AP 10721 MOST DEPENDABLE FOUNTAINS  INC  8,055.00


 652 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 10362 ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING  & DESIGN  LLC  1,779.48


 653 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11332 NTM ENGINEERING INC  13,887.50


Fund 30Total:  36,815.74


32 TRANSPORT IMPROVEMENT FUND


 2017036 10/15/2018 Uncleared AP 10819 PATTON TOWNSHIP SUPERVISORS  9,898.12


 2017067 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11089 TEL POWER INC  104,907.03


Fund 32Total:  114,805.15


35 LIQUID FUELS FUND


 323 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10644 LOWES COMPANIES  INC  430.45


Fund 35Total:  430.45


93 TUDEK PARK TRUST FUND


BR-Uncleared Checks by Fund (01/20/2020 -  6:36 PM) Page 3







Fund/Check No. Check Date Clear Date Vendor/Employee No.System AmountVendor/Employee Name


 20190914 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11214 ZEIGLERS PACKING & CRATING  211.47


Fund 93Total:  211.47


Grand Total:  378,012.43


BR-Uncleared Checks by Fund (01/20/2020 -  6:36 PM) Page 4








MONTHLY TREASURERS REPORT


DECEMBER 2019







General Fund


$7,712,139


Street Light Fund


$11,923


Hydrant 


Fund


$56,316


Transportation 


Improvement Fund


$3,969,066


General Obligation Fund


$6,936,674
Agricultural Preservation Fund


$43,961


Pine Grove Mills Streetlight 


Fund


$20,096
Capital Reserve Fund


$858,315


Regional Cap Rec Projects Fund


$1,586,733


Liquid Fuels Fund


$903,893


Park Improvement Fund


$126,638


Police Pension Trust Fund


$6,123,866


Non Uniform 401 


Pension Trust


$3,776,998


Tudek Trust Fund


$608,335


Non Uniform 457 Pension Trust


$1,912,068


CASH BALANCES BY FUND - DECEMBER 31, 2019







Checking


Jersey Shore State Bank Operating (3245) 5,546,658.85


JSSB Flex Plan Checking (8757) 3,792.67


Ameriserv Money Market 2602 260,741.20


Ameriserv CD (0210) (matures 12/3/21)(1/3 of total) 268,156.08


PLGIT General Fund (3017) 804,488.08


PLGIT General Fund CD (matures 3/9/20) 510,826.30


Investments


Morgan Stanley Brokerage Account (@ market) 0.00


JSSB/Voya Brokerage Account (@ market) 317,476.26


TOTAL GENERAL FUND 7,712,139.44


Fund 02 Street Lights


JSSB Checking (4836) 11,922.60


Fund 03 Fire Hydrant


JSSB Checking (4844) 56,315.92


Fund 16 General Obligation


JSSB Checking (4852) 107,286.48
JSSB 2019 Bond Checking 6,829,387.60


Fund 19 Agricultural Preservation


JSSB Checking (4879) 43,960.60


Fund 30 Capital Reserve


Paypal Account 9,638.22


JSSB Checking (Employee Wellness Sinking Fund)(4909) 13,375.00


JSSB Capital Reserve Checking (3555) (56,439.58)


JSSB Checking (Police Equipment Sinking Fund) (1711) 83,145.69


JSSB Checking (PW Equipment Sinking Fund)(4895) 571,818.03


JSSB Checking (Bldg Equipment Sinking Fund)(4887) 236,777.43


Fund 31 Regional Capital Recreation Projects


JSSB Checking (3547) 1,057,835.75


Ameriserv Money Market 2818 260,741.20


Ameriserv CD (0210) (matures 12/3/21)(1/3 of total) 268,156.08


Fund 32 Transportation Improvement


JSSB Checking (3539) 2,123,808.44


PLGIT Checking (3261) & Plus 63,406.24


PLGIT CDs (4)(mature 2/10/20, 3/2/20, 3/2/20, 5/20/20) 1,252,953.93


Ameriserv Money Market 2693 260,741.20


Ameriserv CD (0210) (matures 12/3/21)(1/3 of total) 268,156.08


Fund 33 Pine Grove Mills Street Lights


JSSB Checking (4917) 20,095.54


Ferguson Township Treasurer's Report


December 31, 2019


Statement of Cash Balances


General Fund


Other Funds







Ferguson Township Treasurer's Report


December 31, 2019


Statement of Cash Balances
Fund 34 Park Improvement


JSSB Checking (4925) 126,637.73


Fund 35 Liquid Fuels


JSSB Checking (4933) 73,131.23


PLGIT Checking (3020) 330,761.88


PLGIT CD (3020) (mature 5/20/20) 500,000.00


Fund 93 Tudek Memorial Trust


JSSB Checking (4976) 26,541.23


FNB Investments (@market) 147,728.91


Centre Foundation Investments 434,065.18


TOTAL OTHER FUNDS 15,121,948.61


TOTAL NON PENSION FUNDS 22,834,088.05


Fund 60 Police Pension Trust


JSSB Checking (4941) 24,749.97


PNC Enterprise Checking (9642) 46,879.56


PNC Investments (@market)(includes accrued interest) 6,052,236.40


Fund 65 Non Uniformed 401a Pension Trust


JSSB Checking (4968) 101.51


ICMA-RHS Employee Retirement Health Savings Trust (@ market) 82,731.27


ICMA-401 Employer Pension Investment Trust (@ market) 3,694,165.31


TOTAL PENSION TRUST FUNDS 9,900,864.02


GRAND TOTAL 32,734,952.07


Fund 66 Non Uniformed 457 Pension Trust


ICMA-457 Employee Pension Investment Trust (@ market) 1,877,351.87


ICMA-ROTH IRA Employee Pension Investment Trust (@ market) 34,716.01


1,912,067.88


Employee Pension Trust Funds


Employer Pension Trust Funds







Checks Before: 


Bank Reconciliation


Uncleared Checks by Fund


User: eendresen


Printed: 01/24/2020 - 11:17AM


12/31/2019


Fund/Check No. Check Date Clear Date Vendor/Employee No.System AmountVendor/Employee Name


01 GENERAL FUND


 0 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10870 PNC INSTITUTIONAL INVESTMENTS  3,307.63


 0 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11216 VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS 401  8,096.33


 0 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11218 VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS 457  6,221.28


 0 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11381 VANTANGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS-706007 ROTH  136.87


 0 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10870 PNC INSTITUTIONAL INVESTMENTS  3,307.63


 0 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11216 VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS 401  8,111.49


 0 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11218 VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS 457  6,221.28


 0 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11381 VANTANGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS-706007 ROTH  136.87


 6192 09/29/2017 Uncleared AP 11577 CBICC  2,500.00


 6255 10/13/2017 Uncleared AP 11547 FOSTER DANIEL  250.00


 6727 01/31/2018 Uncleared AP 11597 WITHERS KARYN  15.00


 7254 06/15/2018 Uncleared AP 11738 GREENE HERBERT  25.00


 7622 08/31/2018 Uncleared AP 11756 TOMKEIL PAUL  40.00


 7947 11/15/2018 Uncleared AP 11344 PETERSON INDUSTRIES INC.  684.53


 8001 11/29/2018 Uncleared AP 10720 MORRISON SHAWN  25.00


 8162 01/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10670 MAYER JONATHAN  750.00


 8358 02/28/2019 Uncleared AP 11614 SNAP ON INDUSTRIAL  11.47


 8596 04/30/2019 Uncleared AP 10422 GEISINGER HEALTH SYSTEM  157.47


 8753 06/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10755 NITTANY OFFICE EQUIP C O HON  254.10


 8799 06/28/2019 Uncleared AP 10240 COLLEGIATE PRIDE  INC  171.92


 9001 08/22/2019 Uncleared AP 10263 CORMANS MAIL SERVICE  2,873.11


 9183 10/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11593 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES  288.05


 9272 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10035 ALS TECHNOLOGIES INC  1,145.00


 9277 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11702 BLUE KNOB AUTO  300.00


 9297 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11253 INFRADAPT LLC  3,221.44


 9335 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11848 ZUHLKE JAMES  3,000.00


 9340 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11855 ANDERSON INDUSTRIAL MACHINERY  769.80


 9349 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11217 FERGUSON TOWNSHIP POLICE ASSOCIATION  420.00


 9366 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11729 THE HR OFFICE  2,678.10


 9372 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11199 WILLIAMS BROTHERS  62.39


BR-Uncleared Checks by Fund (01/24/2020 - 11:17 AM) Page 1







Fund/Check No. Check Date Clear Date Vendor/Employee No.System AmountVendor/Employee Name


 9380 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10016 AFLAC  176.77


 9385 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10085 BASTIAN TIRE  & AUTO CENTERS  525.74


 9389 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10203 CENTRE DAILY TIMES  1,431.68


 9392 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10209 CENTRE REGION PARKS & RECREATION DEPARTMENT  87,146.55


 9394 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11859 COUNTY COMMISSOINERS OF COUTY OF CENTRE CENTRE COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S OFFICE AND 740.00


 9398 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11217 FERGUSON TOWNSHIP POLICE ASSOCIATION  420.00


 9408 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10669 MAXWELL TRUCK  & EQUIPMENT LLC  52.08


 9414 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10745 NEWMAN TRAFFIC SIGNS INC  112.50


 9418 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11700 PETS COME FIRST  300.00


 9419 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10864 PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANCIAL SERVICES LLC  122.01


 9420 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10927 REDLINE SPEED SHINE  280.33


 9425 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11031 STASHAK KARL  144.99


 9428 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11729 THE HR OFFICE  2,152.65


 9435 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10016 AFLAC  176.77


 9436 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10031 ALLIED MECHANICAL  & ELECTRICAL  750.00


 9437 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10035 ALS TECHNOLOGIES INC  1,145.00


 9438 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11242 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC  1,924.66


 9441 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10085 BASTIAN TIRE  & AUTO CENTERS  128.60


 9442 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10122 BOROUGH OF STATE COLLEGE  40,501.25


 9443 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10126 BRADCO SUPPLY COMPANY  286.00


 9444 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10184 CENTRE COMMUNICATIONS INC  1,010.78


 9445 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10185 CENTRE CONCRETE COMPANY  376.93


 9446 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10201 CENTRE COUNTY UNITED WAY  70.00


 9447 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10203 CENTRE DAILY TIMES  654.79


 9448 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11861 COL DU TOURMALET  29,378.76


 9449 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10241 COLONIAL PRESS  115.00


 9450 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10243 COLUMBIA GAS OF PA INC  3,348.77


 9451 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10244 COMCAST BUSINESS  1,050.00


 9452 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10334 DULTMEIER SALES  299.71


 9453 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11737 ECO-MAXX  88.00


 9454 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10374 FEDERAL EXPRESS  21.47


 9455 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11217 FERGUSON TOWNSHIP POLICE ASSOCIATION  420.00


 9456 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10380 FERGUSON TOWNSHIP SUPERVISORS  129,921.93


 9457 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10396 FISHER AUTO PARTS  424.89


 9458 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10409 FRED CARSON DISPOSAL INC.  207.32


 9459 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10491 HINTON  & ASSOCIATES  810.00


 9460 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11833 IRON MOUNTAIN  65.00


 9461 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10568 K  & S DISTRIBUTION  399.36


 9462 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10615 LAUDENSLAGER KEVIN J  81.20


 9463 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10644 LOWES COMPANIES  INC  368.93


 9464 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11704 MADISON NATIONAL LIFE  214.20


BR-Uncleared Checks by Fund (01/24/2020 - 11:17 AM) Page 2







Fund/Check No. Check Date Clear Date Vendor/Employee No.System AmountVendor/Employee Name


 9465 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10762 MARCO  865.84


 9466 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11839 MARCO TECHNOLOGIES LLC  456.30


 9467 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10670 MAYER JONATHAN  750.00


 9468 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10674 MCCORMICK TAYLOR  INC  1,600.00


 9469 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10701 MILLER WELDING SERVICE  20.00


 9470 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11807 MODEL UNIFORMS  488.96


 9471 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11332 NTM ENGINEERING INC  6,918.22


 9472 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11422 PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION INC  71.96


 9473 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10893 PRINT O STAT  INC  800.00


 9474 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10932 RESERVE ACCOUNT  1,000.00


 9475 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10953 ROSE BRIAN  16.24


 9476 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10955 ROTHROCKS LOCKSMITH  1,409.00


 9477 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10973 SAMS CLUB DIRECT  323.34


 9478 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10997 SIGNAL CONTROL PRODUCTS INC  2,575.00


 9479 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11614 SNAP ON INDUSTRIAL  29.45


 9480 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11035 STATE COLLEGE BOROUGH WATER AUTHORITY  125.00


 9481 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11589 STOICHEFF'S AUTO PARTS  267.98


 9482 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11860 SUSAN D. PERKINS BRIAN F. McMAHON &  151.23


 9483 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11678 TET LANDSCAPING, LLC  5,557.50


 9484 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11729 THE HR OFFICE  2,271.30


 9485 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11136 U S MUNICIPAL SUPPLY INC  2,373.12


 9486 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11159 VERIZON WIRELESS  257.16


 9487 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11192 WEST PENN POWER  3,085.17


 9488 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10771 WITMER PUBLIC SAFETY GROUP INC  2,014.00


 9489 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11214 ZEIGLERS PACKING & CRATING  52.50


Fund 01Total:  396,505.65


02 STREET LIGHT FUND


 81 03/15/2018 Uncleared AP 11192 WEST PENN POWER  0.29


 115 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11192 WEST PENN POWER  1,429.27


Fund 02Total:  1,429.56


30 CAPITAL RESERVE FUND


 13 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11632 KEITHS TRUCK SERVICE  29,600.00


 648 11/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11332 NTM ENGINEERING INC  10,253.00


 653 11/29/2019 Uncleared AP 11332 NTM ENGINEERING INC  13,887.50


 655 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10032 ALLSTEEL  18,711.06


 656 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11850 J C ORR & SON INC  36,261.00


 657 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11033 STATE COLLEGE BATTERY OUTLET  25.00


 658 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11857 TRIANGLE FIRE PROTECTION, INC.  3,600.00


BR-Uncleared Checks by Fund (01/24/2020 - 11:17 AM) Page 3







Fund/Check No. Check Date Clear Date Vendor/Employee No.System AmountVendor/Employee Name


 660 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10491 HINTON  & ASSOCIATES  21,035.00


 661 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11582 INSIGHT PIPE CONTRACTING INC  15,078.75


 662 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11332 NTM ENGINEERING INC  3,832.33


 663 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11139 UNIVERSITY AREA JOINT AUTHORITY  23,821.18


Fund 30Total:  176,104.82


31 REG CAP REC PROJECTS FUND


 25 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 10209 CENTRE REGION PARKS & RECREATION DEPARTMENT  26,094.00


Fund 31Total:  26,094.00


32 TRANSPORT IMPROVEMENT FUND


 2017036 10/15/2018 Uncleared AP 10819 PATTON TOWNSHIP SUPERVISORS  9,898.12


 2017068 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11784 PA DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION  132,267.36


 2017069 12/15/2019 Uncleared AP 11834 STATE COLLEGE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT  26,500.00


 2017070 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10819 PATTON TOWNSHIP SUPERVISORS  29,631.04


Fund 32Total:  198,296.52


35 LIQUID FUELS FUND


 326 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10436 GLENN O  HAWBAKER INC  177.00


 327 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10475 HANSON AGGREGATES PA INC  105.05


 328 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10509 C/O HRI INC - AP DEPT BARRETT INDUSTRIES CORP  205.43


Fund 35Total:  487.48


93 TUDEK PARK TRUST FUND


 20190915 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 10644 LOWES COMPANIES  INC  18.02


 20190916 12/31/2019 Uncleared AP 11192 WEST PENN POWER  45.67


Fund 93Total:  63.69


Grand Total:  798,981.72


BR-Uncleared Checks by Fund (01/24/2020 - 11:17 AM) Page 4















































 


FERGUSON TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Regular Meeting 


Monday, January 20, 2020 
7:00 PM 


 
I. ATTENDANCE 


The Board of Supervisors held its second regular meeting of the month on Monday, 
January 20, 2020, at the Ferguson Township Municipal Building.  In attendance were: 
 
Board: Steve Miller, Chairman 


Lisa Strickland 
Patty Stephens 
Prasenjit Mitra 


Staff: Dave Pribulka, Township Manager 
Centrice Martin, Assistant to the Manager 
Dave Modricker, Public Works Director 
Chris Albright, Chief of Police 
Eric Endresen, Director of Finance 
Ron Seybert, Township Engineer 
 


Others in attendance included:  Faith Norris, Recording Secretary; Troy Knecht; John Sepp, PennTerra 
Engineering; Mark Torretti, PennTerra Engineering; Karen Lambert; Jeremie Thompson; Bill Keough; Kevin 
Mullen; Dennis Myers. 
 


II. CALL TO ORDER 


Mr. Miller called the Monday, January 20, 2020, regular meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 
Mr. Miller stated an executive session on a personnel matter will follow this meeting. 
  


III. CITIZENS INPUT  


Mr. Pribulka noted C-NET was absent tonight and will check into providing the audio recording to C-
NET following this meeting.  He noted for everyone to speak clearly into the microphones when talking. 
 
Mr. Mullen, a Patton Township resident and property owner in Ferguson Township, discussed ongoing 
issues he has had with the University Area Joint Authority.  Mr. Miller stated citizens input is to discuss 
topics pertaining to Township business.   
 
Ms. Lambert, a resident who works for Adult Services at Schlow Library, stated she is attending this 
meeting as part of the Leadership Centre County class to learn about local government.  She 
acknowledged that Cathy Alloway was in support of her attendance in the program.  Ms. Lambert 
thanked the Township for their continued support of the Schlow Library and hopes it continues in the 
future. 
 


IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES.   


Ms. Strickland moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the Board of Supervisors’ minutes of 
January 6, 2020, for the Organizational and Regular meetings.  Ms. Stephens seconded the motion.  
The motion passed 4 to 0.  
 


V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 


1. PUBLIC HEARING RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AMENDED AUTOMATED RED LIGHT 
ENFORCEMENT PROJECT FUNDING AGREEMENT WITH THE COMMONWEALTH OF PA. 
 
Mr. Pribulka reviewed the history of the item in for adoption.  Messrs. Modricker and Seybert were 
in attendance to answer any questions. 







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, January 20, 2020 
Page 2 


 
No public comment was noted. 
 
Ms. Strickland moved that the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution authorizing the Chairman 
and Secretary to execute an amended Automated Red Light Enforcement Program Project Funding 
Agreement between the Township of Ferguson and the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.  Mr. Mitra 
seconded the motion. 
 
Discussion followed on a clarifying question from Mr. Mitra.  Topics included how the data is 
gathered or collected to improve performance of the signal lights; program implementation and 
location; consulting services; and potential revenue generated from the project with respect to red 
light enforcement.  It was clarified that the Township is not permitted to have camera enforcement 
for red light violations and the grant name has no relationship to the project.   
 
Roll Call vote on Resolution #2020-05:  Mr. Miller – YES: Mr. Mitra – YES; Ms. Stephens – YES; 
Ms. Strickland – YES. 
 


2. PUBLIC HEARING RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AUTOMATED RED LIGHT 
ENFORCEMENT (ARLE) PROJECT FUNDING AGREEMENT WITH THE COMMONWEALTH OF 
PA. 
  
Mr. Pribulka reviewed the item for adoption as noted in the above discussion.  This is for the 
previous Township funding for ARLE in 2018.  The purpose for this funding would be to implement 
signal upgrades in the Township to digital radar detection technology for improved vehicle 
detection.  Noted was the 80/20% match toward the project.  This is a continuance of the existing 
program to upgrade the remainder of the signal lights in the Township. 
 
Mr. Myers discussed his concerns on the backup at Martin Street/Blue Course Drive intersection 
and whether this project would address that issue.  Mr. Seybert responded to the resident on 
existing budget options that may address the stated cycled protected movement intersection issue.  
The project for authorization tonight does not address that intersection. 
 
Discussion followed on a clarifying question from Ms. Stephens.  Mr. Modricker responded by 
stating the project does not include allowance for emergency vehicles/first responders to change 
the light while traveling through the area.  However, signal lights do have preemption for fire and 
EMS responders. 
 
Mr. Mitra moved that the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution authorizing the Chairman and 
Secretary to execute an Automated Red Light Enforcement Program Project Funding Agreement 
between the Township of Ferguson and the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.  Ms. Strickland 
seconded the motion. 
 
Roll Call vote on Resolution #2020-06:  Mr. Mitra – YES: Ms. Stephens – YES; Ms. Strickland – 
YES; Mr. Miller – YES. 
 


3. AUTHORIZATION OF A PUBLIC HEARING AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CH. 15 
MOTOR VEHICLES & TRAFFIC, PART 4, GENERAL PARKING REGULATIONS,  SECTION 403 
PARKING PROHIBITED AT ALL TIMES IN CERTAIN LOCATIONS; SECTION 404 PARKING 
PROHIBITED IN CERTAIN LOCATIONS CERTAIN DAYS AND HOURS; AND SECTION 409 
RESIDENTIAL PERMIT PARKING. 
 







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, January 20, 2020 
Page 3 


Messrs. Miller and Pribulka reviewed the item for public hearing.  Mr. Modricker reviewed resident 
concerns and the map showing the parking restrictions.  Red areas noted on the map are no 
parking; yellow and green areas require permits; and no more than two requested permits per 
household.  If approved, the public hearing would be scheduled for February 18th. 
 
Ms. Strickland moved that the Board of Supervisors authorize the advertisement of a public 
hearing amending Chapter 15 of the Code of Ordinances for Tuesday, February 18th.  Mr. Mitra 
seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Mitra inquired about parking and limits.  Discussion followed on parking for brief deliveries; 
restrictions; and annual fee per permit (up to 2 permits per household).  Mr. Pribulka noted current 
conditions of the street are functioning as intended.   
 
The motion passed 4 to 0. 


 
4. CENTRE REGION REFUSE AND RECYCLING – CONSIDERATION OF REQUEST TO 


AUTHORIZE EARLIER START TIME FOR REFUSE COLLECTION. 
 
Mr. Pribulka reviewed the history of the item for consideration of an earlier start time between 
Memorial and Labor days of each year.  The recommendation was deferred by the Public Services 
& Environmental (PS&E) Committee until February 2020 to give the Board’s new committee member 
a chance to review with the current Board prior to a recommendation.  Mr. Pribulka stated if a new 
start time is approved for 6:00 a.m. for collection, it would necessitate a new ordinance amendment 
to Health & Safety.  He also recommended that the amendment note refuse collection as an exempt 
item from noise ordinance to be consistent with other municipal ordinances of the Township.  Mr. 
Miller noted the Board did not make any recommendations last year, but did ask for additional 
information from COG to provide other options.  However, other stated options were determined not 
to be feasible. 
 
An expanded discussion followed for new Board members on opposition to the change; source of 
the issue; waste hauler adjusting to new time if approved; and health and safety issues that occur 
during the summer months. 
 
Mr. Keough spoke on behalf of the rural areas of the Township.  Earlier pickup may require residents 
to place trash out the night before and may attract animals to the residential areas.  Discussion 
followed on identifying areas that can have a later 7:00 a.m. pickup time.  Following discussion, it 
was the consensus of the Board to have Mr. Mitra bring the request to COG’s PS&E Committee in 
addition to supporting the earlier start time.   
 
Ms. Strickland moved that the Board of Supervisors support the request from the COG Public 
Services and Environmental Committee to permit refuse and recycling collection to begin at 6:00 
a.m. between Memorial Day and Labor Day of each year.  Mr. Miller seconded the motion. 
 
Discussion followed on the motion and request.  In addition, Mr. Miller requested that the PS&E 
Committee explore with the contractor the possibility of authorizing a notification to residents prior 
to noted high temperature days of the earlier pickup time between Memorial Day and Labor Day 
months of the year.   
 
The motion passed 4 to 0. 
 
 







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, January 20, 2020 
Page 4 


VI. NEW BUSINESS 
 


1. CONSENT AGENDA 


a. 2016-C19 Corl St. Signal Pay App 3:  $6,066.40 
b. 2016-C19 Corl St. Signal Pay App 4:  $43,597.99________________ 
c. 2019-C32a GENERAL Admin Renovations Pay App 3:  $125,463.60 
d. 2019-C32b HVAC Admin Renovations Pay App 1:  $3,533.40 
e. 2019-C32b HVAC Admin Renovations Pay App 2:  $29,707.20 
f. 2019-C32b HVAC Admin Renovations Pay App 3:  10,445.04______ 
g. 2019-C32c ELECT Admin Renovations Pay App 001:  $19,710.00 
h. 2019-C32c ELECT Admin Renovations Pay App 002:  $7,290.00____ 
i. 2019-C32d FIRE Admin Renovations Pay App 1:  $3,600.00 
j. 2019-C32d FIRE Admin Renovations Pay App 2:  $4,500.00_______ 
k. 2019-C32e PLUMB Admin Renovations Pay App 1:  $7,845.52 
l. 2019-C32e PLUMB Admin Renovations Pay App 2:  $2,950.88 
 
Ms. Strickland moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the Consent Agenda.  Mr. Mitra 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4 to 0. 
 


2. REQUESTS FOR VARIANCES/MODIFICATIONS/WAIVERS. 
 


a. Request for Variance – 3765 West College Avenue      
 


Mr. Pribulka reviewed the request, the floodplain boundaries, further analysis and the process.  The 
applicant is the Islamic Society of Central PA. 
 
Mr. Mitra had a clarifying discussion on the road request, floodplain and potential disadvantages.  
A discussion followed regarding the Township’s general no-build ordinance, assessment and 
review efforts.  The request is for a second access to the property for a future secondary use.  A 
study has been provided.  Further review can be done by an outside engineering firm prior to going 
before the Zoning Hearing Board. 
 
Ms. Strickland moved that the Board of Supervisors oppose the request for variance at 3765 West 
College Avenue pending review of the applicant’s floodplain analysis by the Township’s Stormwater 
Engineer.  Ms. Stephens seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4 to 0. 
 
The Board will be updated on the outcome of hearing. 


 
b. Requests for Modification – Harner Farm – Subdivision of Tax Parcel 24-4-67 and Replot of 


Tax Parcel 24-4-67C 
 


Ms. Wargo reviewed the modification request.  Mr. Torretti reviewed the map of the property.  Mr. 
Pribulka reviewed the process and standards in the MPC and ordinance.  Discussion followed on 
the pros and cons of granting the modification. 
 
Ms. Strickland moved that the Board of Supervisors grant the requested modification described in 
the Director of Planning & Zoning memorandum dated January 15, 2020.  Mr. Mitra seconded the 
motion. 
 
Discussion followed on requirements. 
 
The motion passed 4 to 0. 







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, January 20, 2020 
Page 5 


 
c. Request for Modification– West Cherry Lane Sidewalks 


 
Ms. Wargo reviewed the modification request.  Mr. Sepp presented the full land development plan 
that includes the next agenda item. 
 
A clarification was made on the parking lot area and sidewalk area and relocation connection. 
 
Mr. Mitra moved that Board of Supervisors grant the requested modification described in the 
Director of Planning & Zoning memorandum dated January 14, 2020, for sidewalks.  Ms. Strickland 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4 to 0. 
 


3. WEST CHERRY LANE LAND DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
Staff reviewed the land development plan process for new Board members.  Clarification on access 
for future workforce housing was discussed. 
 
Ms. Strickland moved that the Board of Supervisors conditionally approve the West Cherry Lane 
Land Development Plan subject to the completion of the outstanding conditions as described in the 
Director of Planning & Zoning memorandum dated January 14, 2020.  Ms. Stephens seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed 4 to 0.  
 


4. HARNER FARM REPLOT SIDEWALK DISCUSSION 
 
Ms. Wargo reviewed the item for discussion along with the options provided with the agenda.  Mr. 
Pribulka reviewed the building requirements.  Discussion started with maintenance of a bike path 
vs. a sidewalk; and exploring paths with MPO.  Clarification and direction of options were 
discussed.  Discussion followed on concern for possible barrier and who maintains the property.  
Mr. Seybert discussed consideration of a shared-use path for parcel to the north due to not having 
an option in the current plan for a bike lane.  Following discussion, the Board consensus and 
direction for engineering firm on how to prepare the plan was for option B: 
 


That the applicant will install sidewalks as required by ordinance without constructing a bike lane. The 
applicant will widen the proposed turn lanes during construction for future grant funding for any bike lane 
improvements along West College Avenue.  A 15-foot easement will be dedicated to the Township to 
install a future pedestrian/bike path when a connection is identified.  This easement will allow the 
Township to build and maintain the shared use path. 
 


5. PROCLAMATION PROCLAIMING THE MONTH OF APRIL TO BE “PENNSYLVANIA 811 SAFE 
DIGGING MONTH” IN FERGUSON TOWNSHIP. 
 
Mr. Pribulka introduced the proclamation as provided with the agenda. 
 
Mr. Mitra moved that the Board of Supervisors proclaim the month of April to be “Pennsylvania 
811 Safe Digging Month” in Ferguson Township.  Ms. Strickland seconded the motion.  The motion 
passed 4 to 0. 
 
Mr. Miller called for a short recess. 
 


6. PROCLAMATION PROCLAIMING FERGUSON TOWNSHIP’S COMMITMENT TO PARTNERING 
WITH THE UNITED STATES CENSUS BUREAU TO HELP ENSURE A FULL AND ACCURATE 
COUNT IN 2020. 







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, January 20, 2020 
Page 6 


 
Ms. Martin introduced the proclamation as provided with the agenda.  The primary goal for the 2020 
Census is to count everyone only once in the right place.  As a representative of Ferguson 
Township, Mr. Martin was part of a State College complete count committee.  She shared who was 
on the committee and that the consistent message to the community was to emphasis the 
importance of completing the census. 
 
Ms. Strickland moved that the Board of Supervisors proclaim Ferguson Township’s commitment 
to partnering with the United States Census Bureau to help ensure a full and accurate count in 
2020.  Mr. Mitra seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4 to 0. 
 


7. PUBLIC HEARING RESOLUTION REPEALING RESOLUTION 2019-11 AND AUTHORIZING 
THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY TO EXECUTE A RESOLUTION WITH JERSEY SHORE 
STATE BANK, VOYA FINANCIAL ADVISORS, AND PERSHING, LLC DESIGNATING THE 
AUTHORIZED SIGNATORIES ON THE TOWNSHIP’S VARIOUS BANK ACCOUNTS. 
 
Mr. Pribulka reviewed the item for adoption as provided. 
 
Mr. Mitra moved that the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution repealing Resolution 2019-11 
and authorizing the Chairman and Secretary to execute a resolution with Jersey Shore State Bank, 
Voya Financial Advisors, and Pershing, LLC designating the authorized signatories on the 
Township’s various bank accounts.  Ms. Stephens seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4 to 
0. 
 
No public comment noted. 
 
Roll Call vote on Resolution #2020-07:  Ms. Stephens – YES: Ms. Strickland – YES; Mr. Miller – 
YES: Mr. Mitra – YES. 
 


8. REQUEST FOR SUPPORT – STATE COLLEGE SPIKES MINOR LEAGUE BASEBALL TEAAM. 
 
Mr. Pribulka review the support request as provided with the agenda.  The Spikes have provided 
assistants to Ferguson Township as well as other area events and has had a positive impact to the 
local community.  A petition and support has been initiated to help keep the local team.  A 
clarification discussion followed on teams to potentially be eliminated.  Discussion followed on the 
language to add to the support letter; i.e., quality of life, family oriented events and other support 
functions. 
 
Ms. Strickland moved that the Board of Supervisors authorize a letter of support for the State 
College Spikes Minor League Baseball Team.  Ms. Stephens seconded the motion.  The motion 
passed 4 to 0. 
 


9. AUTHORIZATION OF A PUBLIC HEARING ON AMENDING THE FERGUSON TOWNSHIP 
CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER 15, MOTOR VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC, PART 2, TRAFFIC 
REGULATIONS, SECTION 217, SCHOOL ZONES ESTABLISHED. 


 
Chief Albright reviewed the item for authorization.  Mr. Pribulka noted that it is the same chapter 
reviewed in the above item for Rushcliffe Street and this would be authorized for one public hearing 
amendment for both ordinances at a future regular board meeting.  Discussion followed on 
clarification of amendment and motions for the two separate actions of the board for the same topic.   







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, January 20, 2020 
Page 7 


Mr. Mitra moved that the Board of Supervisors authorize the advertisement of a public hearing 
amending Chapter 15 of the Code of Ordinances for Tuesday, February 18th.  Ms. Strickland 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4 to 0. 
 


10. BOARD MEMBER REQUEST – PATTON TOWNSHIP OPEN SPACE PRESERVATION 
PRESENTATION  
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the item on behalf of Ms. Dininni as provided. 


Ms. Strickland moved that the Board of Supervisors direct staff to invite the Patton Township 
Manager or his designee to present information to the Board of Supervisors on Patton Township’s 
Open Space Program and the 62-acre Patton Woods Nature Recreation Area.  Mr. Mitra seconded 
the motion.  The motion passed 4 to 0. 


 
VII. STAFF AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 


 
1. COG COMMITTEE REPORTS 


A. Transportation & Land Use Committee.  Ms. Strickland attended the organizational meeting.  
She reviewed committee appointments and items from the agenda.  This included work items 
for the year; i.e., CCMPO long range plan for 2050; CHIP projects; Harris Township review of 
speed reduction request for Route 45; and outer loop discussion.  
 


B. Ad Hoc Facilities Committee.  Ms. Stephens reviewed the organizational meeting items that 
included a Millbrook Marsh Nature Center (MMNC) boardwalk discussion; COG parking issue 
- short term rental of parking spaces; and sustainability of fleet vehicles.  A lengthy discussion 
followed on the safety, age and structure of the boardwalk.   
 


C. Public Safety Committee.  Agenda was provided in the packet.  Any questions can be 
addressed the next time Ms. Dininni is in attendance. 
 


D. Human Resources Committee.  Ms. Stephens reviewed the organizational meeting items that 
included expanded discussion for the over 50 applications received for the COG director 
position; and COG policy discussion on medical marijuana. 
 


E. Finance Committee.  Mr. Miller reviewed the organizational meeting’s updates that included the 
appointments and budget process.  Replacement of fire vehicles discussion; amendment to the 
regional park loan will be discussed at a future Finance meeting; and Code parking budget 
amendment. 


 


F. Public Services & Environmental Committee.  Mr. Mitra reviewed the organizational meeting 
with updates on the appointments; presentation by Pam Adams on Climate Action process-
objectives on emissions target; solar consultant discussion; refuse collection start time; 
recycling pilots for reducing organic waste; nutrient capacity surcharge; projects at Spring 
Creek Park; and electronic recycling program expanding to accept an electronic card.  


 


2. OTHER REGIONAL REPORTS 


a. Spring Creek Watershed Commission.  Mr. Mitra reviewed items discussed that included the 
election; upcoming meeting on a regional watershed plan at Ferguson Township Municipal 
Building on January 23rd at 1:00 p.m.; and Phase 2 report of One Water Plan.  Mr. Mitra 
volunteered to attend the watershed plan meeting on behalf of Ferguson Township municipality. 


 


b. Joint Parks Capital & CRPRA.  Ms. Dininni was not available to give the report.  Mr. Miller did 
note that the Comprehensive Study Update was complete and will go before the COG General 
Forum next week and then will be referred to municipalities for comment. 







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, January 20, 2020 
Page 8 


 


3. STAFF REPORTS 


a. Township Manager.  Mr. Pribulka reviewed his report as provided with the agenda.  Attachment 
included a thank you letter of support from People’s Choice Festival; there will be a proposal to 
consider at the February 3rd regular meeting on construction management services for the new 
public works facility; Parks Committee and appointment updates; staff members Messrs. 
Pribulka and Endresen attended a pre-audit meeting and noted no large changes are 
anticipated from last year; Ferguson Township fire station needs assessment discussion and 
next steps.  
 


Ms. Strickland had a discussion on the regional fire study.  Mr. Pribulka noted in general the 
Township’s needs assessment and regional fire study are unrelated.  Shared goals and focused 
needs were discussed.  Attraction, attention and location of the volunteer staff were noted.  Ms. 
Dininni is on the committee and can better speak on this subject. 
 


Mr. Pribulka noted the Board’s orientation meeting is this Thursday, January 23rd.  The 
Township has received the GFOA certificate of achievement for the Township’s CAFER audit 
for the ninth straight year. 
 


b. Public Works Director.  Mr. Modricker;s report provided an update on renovations to the 
Township’s Administration building and the new Public Works Maintenance Facility; Stormwater 
Fee Study update; Tree Commission and organizational update; upcoming Podcasts; RFP for 
management services; and year at a glance on maintenance activities. 
 


c. Planning & Zoning Director.  Ms. Wargo updated the Board with the organizational meeting and 
appointments; renovations update; and Zoning Hearing Board will meet on January 28th to 
review the items from tonight’s regular meeting. 
 


d. Chief of Police.  Chief Albright reported on the month of December that was a quiet month and 
year to-date (YTD) statistics.  Overall YTD crimes under more serious crimes [Part 2] were up 
due to more assaults and burglaries; Part 1 crimes were down for 2019; overall calls for service 
were down; and notable incidents update on scams and assaults.  Clarification was made on 
YTD crime statistics. 
 


VIII. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD – none. 


IX. CALENDAR ITEMS – JANUARY/FEBRUARY 
 


a. Coffee & Conversation, Baileyville Community Hall, January 25, 2020, 8:00 a.m. – 9:30 a.m. 
 


Ms. Strickland referenced the State College Spikes agenda item and to where the support letter will be 
sent.  Mr. Pribulka will follow up on representatives to send the letter to. 


 
X. ADJOURNMENT 


 


With no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, Ms. Strickland motioned to adjourn 
the meeting.  The meeting adjourned at 9:40 p.m. 
 


Mr. Miller noted again that there is an executive session following this meeting. 
 


       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
David Pribulka, Township Manager 
For the Board of Supervisors 








 


 


- A Home Rule Municipality - 


 


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
3147 Research Drive •  State College, Pennsylvania 16801 


Telephone: 814-238-4651 •  Fax: 814-238-3454 
www.twp.ferguson.pa.us 


 


   


Memorandum 
 
To: Board of Supervisors 


David Pribulka, Manager 
From: David J. Modricker, Public Works Director 


  
Re: Contract 2020-C13 Street Trees 
Date: January 28, 2020 
 
On Tuesday, January 28, 2020 at 2:00 PM bids were opened publicly for Contract 2020-
C13 Street Tree Planting, and read aloud. The following individuals were in attendance: 
 
Name    Representing 
Lance King   Ferguson Township 
David Modricker  Ferguson Township 
Summer Krape  Ferguson Township 
David Pribulka  Ferguson Township 
John Oleksa   Landscape II 
Tony Luther   Luther Lawn Service 
 
The contract base bid includes 44 trees and is the basis of award. 
 
The following 5 bids were received and are summarized on the attached spreadsheet:  
 
Robert W. Behrer LLC.  $17,073.00 
Luther Lawn Service LLC  $11,094.78 
Landscape II    $13,732.50 
Greene’s Landscape, Inc.  $14,625.00 
Cramer L & C, Inc.   $32,619.54 
 
 
The contract was advertised in the Centre Daily Times and there were 7 plan holders. The 
budget for tree planting in 2020 is $28,350.00. The work for this contract was estimated at 
$15,400.00. The remaining line item fund balance is budgeted for bare root trees to be 
purchased separately and planted by FTPW. 
 
I recommend that the Board of Supervisors award Contract 2020-C13, Street Tree 
Planting, in the amount of $11,094.78 to Luther Lawn Service LLC. 
 
 
File:  Contract 2020-C13 
 







Item 


No Qty Unit Description


Tree size 


(minimum 


caliper) Unit Price Subtotal Unit Price Subtotal Unit Price Subtotal Unit Price Subtotal Unit Price Subtotal


1 5 ea Shingle Oak 1.5" $370.00 $1,850.00 $207.26 $1,036.30 $292.50 $1,462.50 $325.00 $1,625.00 $724.26 $3,621.30


2 7 ea Amercian Basswood 1.5" $367.00 $2,569.00 $226.84 $1,587.88 $272.50 $1,907.50 $325.00 $2,275.00 $724.26 $5,069.82


2 6 ea Ruby Red Horsechestnut 1.5" $439.00 $2,634.00 $294.88 $1,769.28 $397.50 $2,385.00 $325.00 $1,950.00 $840.86 $5,045.16


3 3 ea London Plane Tree 1.5" $370.00 $1,110.00 $218.36 $655.08 $275.00 $825.00 $325.00 $975.00 $724.26 $2,172.78


4 2 ea Dawn Redwood 1.5" $400.00 $800.00 $371.00 $742.00 $275.00 $550.00 $225.00 $450.00 $731.26 $1,462.52


5 5 ea American Yellowood 1.5" $420.00 $2,100.00 $294.68 $1,473.40 $315.00 $1,575.00 $325.00 $1,625.00 $766.24 $3,831.20


6 4 ea Hardy Rubber Tree 1.5" $367.00 $1,468.00 $252.28 $1,009.12 $345.00 $1,380.00 $425.00 $1,700.00 $677.62 $2,710.48


7 6 ea Swamp White Oak 1.5" $372.00 $2,232.00 $207.76 $1,246.56 $292.50 $1,755.00 $325.00 $1,950.00 $724.26 $4,345.56


8 5 ea Northern Catalpa 1.5" $387.00 $1,935.00 $273.48 $1,367.40 $320.00 $1,600.00 $350.00 $1,750.00 $724.26 $3,621.30


9 1 ea Japanese Tree Lilac 1.5" $375.00 $375.00 $207.76 $207.76 $292.50 $292.50 $325.00 $325.00 $739.42 $739.42


44
BASE BID 


TOTAL:
$17,073.00 $11,094.78 $13,732.50 $14,625.00 $32,619.54


Landscape II


Greene's Landscape 


Inc. Cramer L&C Inc


trees


Robert W Beher LLC


Luther Lawn Service 


LLCATTACHMENT 1 - SCHEDULE OF PRICES








CENTRE REGION COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite 3 


State College, PA 16801 
Phone: (814) 231-3077 Fax: (814) 231-3083 Website: www.crcog.net 


 
 


EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
COG Building – Forum Room 


2643 Gateway Drive  
January 21, 2020 


12:15 PM 
 
 


AGENDA 
  


1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair Steve Miller will convene the meeting. 
 


2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Members of the public are invited to comment on any items not already on the agenda 
(five minutes per person time limit, please). Comments relating to specific items on the 
agenda should be deferred until that point in the meeting. 
  


3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
A copy of the minutes of the December 10, 2019, Executive Committee meeting is enclosed.  
 


4. INTRODUCTIONS 
 


The 2020 membership of the Executive Committee is: 
 


Elliot Abrams   Patton Township 
Anthony Fragola  College Township 
Jesse Barlow  State College Borough 
Nigel Wilson  Harris Township 
Steve Miller  Ferguson Township 
Danelle Del Corso  Halfmoon Township 


 
5. COG ARTICLES OF AGREEMENT 


 
The Executive Director will briefly review the COG Articles of Agreement as they relate to 
the Executive Committee. According to the Agreement, the duties of the Committee are: 


 To nominate officers to the General Forum for approval and election. 


 To set the meeting agenda for the General Forum. 


 To annually evaluate the work performance of the Executive Director. 







Executive Committee Agenda 
January 21, 2020 
Page 2 of 16 
 
 


 To refer studies, projects, and questions to the appropriate COG committee. 


 To study and prepare recommendations on topics requested by the General Forum. 


 To declare a local emergency or disaster emergency as defined in the Joint Articles of 
Agreement for the Regional Emergency Management Program. 
 


6. COG MEETING ETIQUETTE 
 
The Centre Region Council of Governments (COG) is committed to an environment in 
which all individuals are treated with respect and dignity. Each individual has the right to 
participate in a professional atmosphere that promotes equal opportunities to be heard and 
to participate in the decision-making process. At the same time, conducting the meeting is 
to be handled efficiently, so the time that people invest at meetings is well spent and 
concludes within a reasonable timeframe. Please respect each other, as well as the Chair 
and their role in facilitating the expeditious conduct of business. 
 
On November 26, 2018, the COG General Forum adopted the enclosed Meeting Etiquette 
Guidelines and Resolution 2018-4. The Committee should be familiar with these 
guidelines. More information, including frequently asked questions and guidelines for 
public comment, can be found on the COG’s website at www.crcog.net  


 
7. NOMINATION OF OFFICERS 


 
This agenda asks the Executive Committee to elect a Chair and Vice-Chair who will also 
serve as the Chair and Vice-Chair of the General Forum. 
 
The COG Articles of Agreement require that the General Forum annually select a Chair 
and a Vice-Chair, and further state that “officers shall be elected at the Centre Region COG’s 
organizational meeting from the membership of the General Forum, and shall hold office for one year 
from the organizational meeting until their respective successors have been duly elected.” The 
Agreement does not recommend a special rotation of officers among the participating 
municipalities; however, the General Forum took action in 1999 to formalize a rotation 
schedule. Subsequently, the COG Chair for 2020 will be from Patton Township and the 
Vice-Chair will be from Harris Township. In subsequent years, the Chair rotation is 
College Township, State College Borough, Halfmoon Township and Ferguson Township. 
 
The Articles of Agreement also require that the two COG officers serve as Chair and Vice-
Chair of the Executive Committee. In accordance with the approved rotation,  
Mr. Elliot Abrams should be elected Chair and Mr. Nigel Wilson, Vice-Chair of the 
General Forum. Members should consider forwarding the following recommendation to 
the General Forum: 
 


“That the General Forum appoint Elliot Abrams as Chair and Nigel Wilson as 
Vice-Chair of the Centre Region Council of Governments for a term beginning 
January 27, 2020 and ending with the General Forum’s first meeting during 
January 2021.” 







Executive Committee Agenda 
January 21, 2020 
Page 3 of 16 
 
 


The Vice-Chair of the COG is also a member of the Centre Region Emergency 
Management Council. 
 


8. GENERAL FORUM MEETING DATES, TIME & LOCATION 
 
This agenda item asks the Executive Committee to confirm the times, dates and locations 
for 2020 General Forum meetings. 
 
During 2019, the General Forum typically met on the fourth Monday of each month at 
7:00 PM at the COG Building or other locations that were specifically requested. This 
schedule seemed to work well and if possible, staff recommends retaining it for 2020.  
 
A potential enacting motion for consideration by the General Forum is:  
 


“That the General Forum adopt the following 2020 meeting schedule with all 
sessions beginning at 7:00 PM. 


 Date  Location  Date  Location 


January 27 COG Building July 27 COG Building 
February 24 COG Building August 24 COG Building 
March 23 COG Building September 28 COG Building 
April 27 COG Building October 26 COG Building 
May 26 Patton Township* November 23 COG Building 
June 22 COG Building December 22 COG Building** 


*Date changed to Tuesday in order to accommodate the Memorial Day Holiday. 
**Date changed to Tuesday due to a municipal scheduling conflict. 


 
9. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING DATES, TIME & LOCATION 


 
This agenda item asks the Executive Committee to confirm the times and dates for 
meetings of the Committee during 2020. 
 
During 2019, the Committee met on the Tuesday prior to the General Forum meeting at 
12:15 PM in the COG Forum Room. If the Executive Committee meetings continue on 
Tuesdays in 2019, the following dates would be scheduled: 
 


January 21 May 19 September 22 
February 18 June 16 October 20 
March 17 July 21 November 17 
April 21 August 18 December 15 


 
In the past, Tuesday meetings have worked well in providing administrative staff sufficient 
time to prepare the General Forum agenda packets that are mailed on Thursdays. 
 


 







Executive Committee Agenda 
January 21, 2020 
Page 4 of 16 
 
 
10. APPOINTMENT OF ALPHA FIRE CHIEFS 


 
This agenda item asks the Executive Committee to review a recommendation from the 
Alpha Fire Company and the Public Safety Committee regarding the appointment of its 
Chief and Assistant Chiefs and to refer this recommendation to the General Forum for 
approval. 
 
During its August 27, 1996 meeting, the General Forum approved an agreement between 
the Centre Region COG and the Alpha Fire Company which defines each entity’s 
responsibilities. Section 2 of the Agreement reads:  


 
“The Company shall select a Fire Chief and Assistants, in accordance with its by-laws. 
The names of these individuals shall be forwarded to the Centre Region COG for appointment.” 


 
During its November 5, 2019 meeting, the Company elected their leaders for 2020. 
To confirm these recommended appointments, the Public Safety Committee recommends 
the following motion to the General Forum: 
 


“That the General Forum appoint the following individuals to the positions of 
Fire Chief and Assistant Fire Chiefs for 2020: 
 


Chief  Jason Troup 
1st Assistant Chief  Tony Berrena 
2nd Assistant Chief  Todd Johnson 
Health & Safety Officer  Svend Pedersen 


 
Because Halfmoon and Harris Townships do not participate in the regional fire 
protection program, their representatives do not vote on this motion: 
 


For informational purposes, the Alpha Fire Company elected the following Corporate 
Officers to serve in 2020: 


2020 Corporate Officers 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


For informational purposes, the 2020 Operations Officers of the Alpha Fire Company are: 


Rescue Captain  Open 
Engine Captain  Rob Nese 


President  Shawn Kauffman 
Vice President  Svend Pedersen 
Treasurer  Ronald Witmer 
Secretary  Ted Gabriel 
Financial Secretary  Brian Bittner 
Trustee  Lyle Domico – serving year 3 of a 3-year term 
Trustee  Joe Wirtz – serving year 2 of a 3-year term 
Trustee  Jeff Martin – serving year 1 of a 3-year term 







Executive Committee Agenda 
January 21, 2020 
Page 5 of 16 
 
 


Truck Captain  Randy Clouser 
Engine Lieutenant  Mike Eckenrode 
Engine Lieutenant  Jude McDowell 
Engine Lieutenant  Matt Speers 
Rescue Lieutenant  Colin Meyer 
Truck Lieutenant  Steve Brown 
Fire Police Captain  C. “Marv” Robinson 
Fire Police Lieutenant  Ted Gabriel 
Fire Police Lieutenant  Joe Wirtz 


 
For informational purposes, the 2020 Chiefs, Safety Officer, Fire Police Captain, and 
Corporate Officers of the Boalsburg Fire Company are: 


 
Chief        Van Winter 
Assistant Chief     Nate Frey 
Assistant Chief    Greg Alters 
Assistant Chief     Eric Garis 
Assistant Chief    Paul Robinson 
Safety Officer      Rob Gordon 
Fire Police Captain    TBA 
President     Ken Corl 
Vice President      Marlin Neff 
Secretary       Aly Baer 
Treasurer      Teresa Weyant 
Trustees      Bud Graham, Randy Weaver, 


Jeff Musser 
 


The Executive Committee should decide whether to refer this appointment 
recommendation to the General Forum for approval from the four municipalities. 
 
Because Harris and Halfmoon Townships do not participate in the regional fire protection 
program and budget, their representatives should not vote on this agenda item. 
 


11. APPOINTMENT OF FIRE MARSHALS AND ASSISTANT FIRE MARSHALS 
 


This agenda item asks the Executive Committee to review a recommendation from the 
Public Safety Committee regarding the appointment of a Fire Marshal and Assistant Fire 
Marshal and refer this recommendation to the General Forum for approval. 
 
If appointed the proposed individuals will serve as Fire Marshals and Assistant Fire 
Marshals for State College Borough and College, Ferguson, Halfmoon, Harris and Patton 
Townships. In Pennsylvania, local fire marshals are authorized to investigate fires, obtain 
and execute search documents, take evidence, and detain and question in the process of 
establishing origin and cause of the fire. This process may or may not result in affecting an 
arrest or prosecution. Above certain thresholds, the Pennsylvania State Police assume 
responsibility for the investigation.   







Executive Committee Agenda 
January 21, 2020 
Page 6 of 16 
 
 


 
The Centre Region Fire Marshal and Assistant Fire Marshals are appointed for two-year 
terms by the General Forum. To proceed with appointments of the Centre Region Fire 
Marshal and Assistant Fire Marshals, the Public Safety Committee asks the Executive 
Committee to refer the following motion to the General Forum for approval:  
 


“That the Public Safety Committee recommend to the General Forum the 
appointment of Mr. Barrett Smith as Fire Marshal and the reappointment of 
Messrs. Brian Bittner, Barrett Smith, Tim Knisely and Tim Townsend as 
Assistant Fire Marshals and the appointment of Robert Nese and Todd Johnson 
all for two-year terms beginning January 27, 2020, and ending with the first COG 
General Forum meeting in 2022.” 


 
Messrs. Nese and Johnson have completed the required Investigator Training and have 
been working the past year as apprentices to the current Centre Region and PSP Fire 
Marshals.  


 
12. PARKS AND RECREATION REGIONAL COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 


This agenda item asks the Executive Committee to take action to refer to the General 
Forum the Parks and Recreation Regional Comprehensive Plan with the request that it be 
received and then referred to the participating municipalities for review and comment with 
the expectation that the Plan will be adopted by a resolution of the General Forum during 
the March 23, 2020 COG meeting. 


 
During its March 27, 2017 meeting the General Forum established the Parks and 
Recreation Regional Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee. The overall responsibilities 
of the Steering Committee were to: 
 


 Prepare a scope of work for the study. During its work, the Steering Committee will 
identify what topics and questions the plan should address. Because 50% of the 
project cost is being paid by DCNR, the scope of work will need to include the 
topics that are a condition of receiving the grant. 


 Prepare a Request for Proposal (RFP). An RFP is a document that will be used to 
solicit proposals for consulting services to prepare the Plan as defined by the scope 
of work. 


 Interview consultants who have submitted an RFP. 
 Review and score all the RFPs received. 
 Prepare a recommendation to the General Forum for an award of a proposal for 


consulting services. 
 Assist the consultant in preparing the Comprehensive Plan. 
 As individual Committee members, keep your board/council current on 


discussions occurring at the meetings of the Steering Committee.  
 







Executive Committee Agenda 
January 21, 2020 
Page 7 of 16 
 
 


Meetings of the Steering Committee were opened to the public and meeting notices were 
publicly advertised in accordance with state law. Committee members are: 
 


College Township  Eric Bernier, Vice-Chair 
SCASD   Gretchen Brandt 
State College Borough  Tom Daubert 
Ferguson Township  Laura Dininni 
Halfmoon Township  Kim Hyeseon 
CRPR Authority  Chris Hurley 
Harris Township  Bruce Lord, Chair 
CRPR Agency   Pam Salokangas 
Patton Township   Susan Wheeler 


 
The approved budget for this project was $75,000 not including the staff expenses 
associated with supporting the Committee. Of this amount, $37,500 was paid by Centre 
Region COG and $37,500 by a grant from the Pennsylvania Department of Conservation 
and Natural Resources (DCNR). During the course of the study process, an additional 
$15,000 was authorized by the General Forum for the purpose of conducting a randomized 
statistically valid survey of Centre Region residents regarding their attitudes about parks 
and recreation. 
 
Using the guidelines provided by the DCNR the Steering Committee prepared a Request 
for Proposals (RFP) for consulting services to prepare the plan. During its June 19, 2018 
meeting the Executive Committee “authorized the issuance of the RFP for consulting services to 
prepare the Parks and Recreation Comprehensive Plan dated June 13, 2018.” During its October 
28, 2018 meeting the General Forum authorized the execution of a contract for preparing 
the Regional Comprehensive Plan to be awarded to YSM/Recreation and Park Solutions.   
  
The Steering Committee met 24 times on this project. The first kick-off meeting between 
the Steering Committee and the consultants occurred on November 6, 2018, and there 
have been eight meetings between the two groups since that time. During this period two 
public forums were held; the first was to receive comments from the general public on 
study areas, and the second was to share results-to-date and receive any additional 
comments. Both occurred at the SCASD high school. 


 
Because DCNR funds were used to finance a portion of the study costs, there are 
procedures that must be followed to bring the project to closure. DCNR requires that the 
Plan be adopted by the municipal governing boards/councils. In lieu of individual 
board/council actions, DCNR will accept a resolution of the General Forum that identifies 
that it is acting on behalf of the municipalities. The Centre Region Parks and Recreation 
Authority must take a similar but separate action.  
 
Correspondingly the COG staff recommends that the Executive Committee consider 
referring the following motion to the General Forum:  
 







Executive Committee Agenda 
January 21, 2020 
Page 8 of 16 
 
 


“That the General Forum, as recommended by the Executive Committee, receive 
the Parks and Recreation Regional Comprehensive Plan as proposed by the 
Steering Committee and refer it to the Centre Region municipalities for 
comment. And, further, that municipal responses be referred to the COG 
Executive Director by March 17, 2020, for distribution to the General Forum 
with the expectation that the Plan be adopted by resolution at the March 23, 
2020 COG meeting by a unit vote of the municipalities.” 
 


The comments received from the municipalities will be included in the Plan as an 
appendix. Once the General Forum and the Authority adopt the plan DCNR will close 
out the project and issue the final grant reimbursement.  
 
Because Halfmoon Township contributed to the cost of the study and to the resident 
survey, its representatives votes on this proposed motion. 
 


13. DCNR GRANT 
 
This agenda item asks the Executive Committee to recommend to the General Forum a 
designated project for a Pennsylvania Department of Conservation and Natural Resources 
(DCNR) grant as it relates to the implementation of the Parks and Recreation Regional 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
DCNR has made available to the Authority a $10,000 grant to complete a project that is 
recommended in the Regional Comprehensive Plan. To receive this grant a local match is 
required. During the 2020 budget process, the Centre Region Parks and Recreation 
Agency (CRPR) requested that $10,000 be allocated to its operating budget as the required 
one-to-one local match. This proposed appropriation was approved by the participating 
municipalities when they adopted the COG budget.  
 
On December 18, 2019, Ms. Salokangas reviewed six project ideas with DCNR via a 
conference call. DCNR gravitated towards three ideas. At the January 7, 2020 meeting of 
the Steering Committee for the Parks and Recreation Regional Comprehensive Plan the 
following ideas that are agreeable to DCNR were reviewed: 
 


a. Conduct a staffing and salary study to review the recommended positions 
within the study report and other positions being recommended by the 
Agency Director. This study could identify job duties, draft job descriptions, 
review the average pay scale for these positions, and create a timeline 
recommendation for implementation. [Core Themes 7 and 13] 
 


b. Conduct master plan updates for the regional parks based on random 
sample survey results as well as the online survey results, the feedback from 
public meetings and key person interviews, and the thorough inventory 
analysis. This could also include reviewing the phasing options, holding 
additional public meetings, and providing 2020 cost estimates. This project 







Executive Committee Agenda 
January 21, 2020 
Page 9 of 16 
 
 


may cost more than the total $20,000 funding that is available, and if so, 
would require additional funds be provided through COG. [Core Themes 
6 and 8] 


 
c. Conduct a Feasibility Study of the MMNC Boardwalk. Sections of the 


boardwalk have been closed to the public due to safety concerns. The 
boardwalk will require short- and long-term repairs and perhaps portions 
may need to be redesigned due to increased water flow and precipitation as 
well as winter freeze/thaw issues. This project may cost more than the total 
$20,000 funding that is available and if so, would require additional funds 
be provided through the Nature Center’s Capital Budget and/or COG. 
[Core Theme 1] 
 


The Steering Committee and the Centre Region Parks and Recreation Authority 
recommend conducting the MMNC Boardwalk Feasibility Study as it meets a critical 
immediate need at the facility. The boardwalk is the key feature for many of the Nature 
Center’s programs. Conducting the Study this year allows the Agency to draft design and 
financial plans for implementing the preferred approach to addressing the problems with 
the boardwalk – complete removal, repairing partial sections or complete replacement. 
Additional funding will be required to conduct this study (approx. $40,000-$50,000). 
 
In order to proceed, the Steering Committee, Parks Capital Committee, and CRPR 
Authority ask the Executive Committee to refer the following motion to the General 
Forum for action:  
 


“That the General Forum recommend to the Centre Region Parks and 
Recreation Authority, ask the Pennsylvania Department of Conservation and 
Natural Resources to approve a project to evaluate the conditions of the 
Millbrook Marsh Nature Center boardwalk and provide recommendations for its 
future to include design recommendations, construction material selection, cost 
estimates, and funding opportunities.” 
 


Because Halfmoon Township did not contribute to the local grant match its representative 
does not vote on this proposed motion. 
 


14. ACTION ON BUDGET AMENDMENT 2020 -1 CRCA PARKING COSTS 
 


The Executive Committee is asked to take action on a budget amendment that has been 
recommended by the Facilities, Public Safety, and Finance Committees during their 
January 14 and 16, 2020 meetings. This agenda item asks the Executive Committee to 
approve a month-to-month purchase order for 25 parking spaces for Centre Region Code 
Administration (CRCA) vehicles at a lot near the COG building. This idea was discussed 
at the November 2019 Executive Committee meeting. 
   







Executive Committee Agenda 
January 21, 2020 
Page 10 of 16 
 
 


Until 2018 the Executive Committee did not have a deciding role in approving budget 
amendments. However, during 2018, in order to expedite the conduct of business, the 
General Forum adopted a new policy for approving budget amendments. Under the new 
policy, the Executive Committee has the authorization to approve budget amendments that 
are below the public bidding threshold (currently $21,600). The 2018 policy reads as 
follows: 


 
Process for Budget Amendments 


For proposed budget amendments related to the Centre Region Council of 
Governments, the Executive Committee can approve budget amendments without 
General Forum approval if: 


1) They are less than the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania’s formal bidding 
threshold (in 2018, that amount is $20,100) as outlined in the COG 
purchasing policy; and 


2) The budget amendment has been recommended by a responsible oversight 
committee (such as the Public Safety Committee) and the Finance Committee. 


Should either of these criteria not be met, then the General Forum must 
approve the budget amendment. 


 
There is currently a shortage of parking at the COG building when there are large meetings 
in the General Forum room. The situation improved when the Centre Region Parks and 
Recreation Agency moved to its new location at 2040 Sandy Drive. Fourteen employee and 
company vehicles were relocated to the new building. 
 
Despite the fewer number of vehicles there continues to be inadequate parking at the 
COG building when there are meetings attended by larger groups. To address this concern 
staff is proposing renting 25 parking spaces in a nearby lot at the cost of $35.00 per month 
(including snow plowing services) - $10,500 annual cost. This is a competitive rental rate.  
The cost would be paid by the CRCA because only its vehicles would be parked on the 
surface lot. The contract would be for two years, but the parties will have the ability to 
withdraw from the agreement after 90 days. The owner is also open to a month-to-month 
agreement based on the issuance of a purchase order. Enclosed is a copy of a map that 
shows the location of the parking area. 
  
The Code Director, Walt Schneider will be present to discuss this proposal. It has been 
endorsed by both the Public Safety Committee and the Finance Committee. All the 
parking expenses will be paid by the CRCA Budget and not involve the expenditure of 
municipal funds. 
 
To proceed the Executive Committee is asked to consider the following motion: 
 


“That the Executive Committee as recommended by the Public Safety 
Committee and the Finance Committee approve budget amendment 2020-1 to 







Executive Committee Agenda 
January 21, 2020 
Page 11 of 16 
 
 


the Centre Region Code Administration Budget as to allow for the month to 
month leasing of 25 parking spaces at a monthly cost of $35 per space including 
snow removal services.” 


 
15. TRICK OR TREAT NIGHT IN SEVERE WEATHER 


 
This agenda item asks the Executive Committee to review a proposed policy for changing 
the date for Trick or Treat Night in cases of severe weather. 
 
During its November 20, 2019 meeting the Executive Committee asked the Public Safety 
Committee for a recommendation on the process for changing the date for Trick or Treat 
in the event of severe weather as was the case on October 31, 2019. 
 
For over 40 years the General Forum has selected the date and time of Trick or Treat night 
for the six Centre Region municipalities. This coordinated approach eliminates confusion 
as to the dates and times for Trick or Treat night in our area. The recommended date is 
identified by the three Centre Region Police Chiefs (from State College Borough, Patton 
Township and Ferguson Township). Included in this discussion is the Director of Centre 
Region Parks and Recreation. Their suggested Trick or Treat night is referred to the 
General Forum for approval.  
 
Most years, Trick or Treat occurs on Halloween night, October 31. However, from time to 
time, Halloween falls on the night of a home game for Penn State University when 
110,000 or more fans may be about. On those occasions, because of safety concerns, the 
Chiefs and the Parks and Recreation Director recommend an alternate date for the 
General Forum to consider. This year Halloween will fall on Saturday, October 31. There 
is an away football game that day with the University of Indiana. 
 
Over the years this system has worked well and there have been few if any, major safety 
issues. However, in 2019 a twist occurred. Trick or Treat night was scheduled to be held on 
Thursday, October 31. Wednesday, the night before, the municipalities were starting to 
receive reports of pending severe weather. By Thursday morning, their forecasts were 
becoming more ominous and by about 10 AM there were tornado warnings in the area. 
 
Until 2019 Trick or Treat occurred on the designated night regardless of the weather. 
Because of the severe public safety issues, the managers and police chiefs thought that the 
date should be changed to Saturday, November 2, 2019. Being that there are no 
procedures or past precedents to follow about how Trick or Trick night should be changed 
once the date was set, the decision-making process from changing the date from Thursday 
to Saturday was not as clear-cut as some people would have liked.  
 
In the end, during the morning of October 31, 2019, the process to change the date 
essentially involved the three police chiefs making a recommendation to the municipal 
managers. Once this approach was identified it worked well. The managers agreed to 







Executive Committee Agenda 
January 21, 2020 
Page 12 of 16 
 
 


change the proposed date by way of the Police Chiefs recommendation and municipal and 
COG resources were used to inform the public that Trick or Trick night was postponed. 
 
During its January 14, 2020 meeting the Public Safety Committee unanimously voted to 
refer the following policy recommendation to the Executive Committee for a referral to the 
General Forum for adoption: 
 


“That the Executive Committee as recommended by the Public Safety 
Committee recommend that in the occasion of severe weather or other event that 
threatens public safety that the Centre Region police chiefs, after consult with 
the Centre Region Emergency Management Coordinator, have the authority to 
cancel the event and are to recommend to the municipal managers an alternate 
date and time for Trick or Treat night.” 
 


The Executive Committee should decide whether to refer the recommended motion to the 
General Forum. 


 
16. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 


 
Mr. Steff will provide an update of COG activities for January 2020 including: Executive 
Director recruitment process, concerns with the boardwalk at Millbrook Marsh Nature (see 
enclosure), Center, and hazmat services. 
 


17. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
A. Matter of Record – Next month’s meeting of the General Forum is scheduled for 


February 18, 2020, at the COG Building. Tentative agenda items include: year-end 
fire report, appointments to the Code Board of Appeals, hazmat services, and 
update on the Millbrook Marsh Nature Center boardwalk. 
 


B. Matter of Record – The time schedule for renovating the vacated Parks and 
Recreation Agency office for use by the Code Agency is: 


First Advertisement – January 5, 2020 (Sunday) 
Documents Available – January 6, 2020 (Monday) 
Second Advertisement – January 19, 2020 (Sunday) 
Mandatory Prebid Meeting – January 21, 2020 (Tuesday) 
Bids Due – 3:30 pm prevailing time, February 6, 2019 (Thursday) 
Bids Opening – 4:00 pm prevailing time, February 6, 2019 (Thursday) 
Public Safety Meeting – February 11, 2020 (Tuesday) 
General Forum Meeting – February 24, 2020 (Monday) 
Notice to Proceed – February 25, 2020 (Tuesday) 
Substantial Completion – May 31, 2020 (Sunday) 
Client move in – June 1, 2020 (Monday) 


 







Executive Committee Agenda 
January 21, 2020 
Page 13 of 16 
 
 


C. Matter of Record – The following is an update of the status of planning and 
evaluation studies currently underway at the COG. 
 


Planning Activity Status 
1 Parks and Recreation 


Regional Plan 
The Plan will be presented to the General Forum during its January 
27, 2020 meeting. During the study process, two public meetings 
were held to solicit comments from the residents and well as a 
randomized mailed survey and an electronic one.  


2 Study of Regional Fire 
Protection Program 


During its November 25 meeting, the General Forum awarded the 
contract for this study to ESCi. The consultants have started to 
work on the study that will identify a future service model for the 
regional fire protection program. The study should be completed by 
July 2020. 


3 IT Study Due to staff limitations, this project did not go forward in 2019 and 
was carried into 2020. There is agreement among COG staff and 
Borough staff (the IT service provider for 4 COG Agencies) that 
this should be a priority work objective for 2020. At this time a lead 
staff member has not been identified. 


4 Code Software Study An RFQ was sent to four software vendors who expressed interest 
in the project and who were screened by the Project Steering 
Committee. Two of the four vendors visited the Centre Region, as 
suggested within the RFQ scope. Vendor proposals are now due by 
January 15th, and vendor presentations are slated to occur during 
the first half of February. 


5 COG Facilities 
Evaluation 


This project will continue to move forward during 2020 with RFPs 
to study the various COG owned and managed parking lots and 
additional studies as needed. The Detailed Budget allocates $30,000 
for this project. 


6 Executive Director 
Recruitment and 
Screening Committee  


The deadline for applications passed in early January with 55 
applications being received. At this time the applicants are being 
narrowed down to determine which candidates will be on the list of 
people to interview.  


7 Solar Power Purchase 
Agreement Working 
Group 


The Working Group has increased in size to 15 entities and at its 
December 22, 2019 meeting the SPPA Working Group 
recommended the cost-sharing agreement be referred to the 
municipalities and approved by February 26. In addition, the 
Working Group finalized the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) and 
authorized its distribution. Subsequent to that meeting date a 
concern was raised that will require the amendment of the cost-
sharing agreement and delay the distribution of the RFQ. 


8 Fleet Management 
Plan/COG Building 
Parking Study 


There is agreement among COG staff and the elected officials that 
this should be a priority work objective for 2020. At this time a lead 
staff member has not been identified. 







Executive Committee Agenda 
January 21, 2020 
Page 14 of 16 
 
 
 
 


D. Matter of Record – The Executive Director is the Right to Know Officer for the 
Centre Region COG. Over time, the responsibilities for receiving and responding 
to RTK requests are being transferred from the Executive Director to the Office 
Manager who has and will continue to receive training in the Right to Know law. 
The following is the level of activity during the last ten years: 


2010 – 19 requests 2015 – 49 requests 
2011 – 20 requests  2016 – 62 requests 
2012 – 32 requests  2017 – 54 requests 
2013 – 41 requests  2018 – 54 requests 
2014 – 40 requests  2019 – 40 requests  


 
E. Matter of Record – At its January 13, 2020 meeting, members of the COG 


Transportation and Land Use (TLU) Committee briefly discussed the COG 
committee structure and if it was time to consider reviewing responsibilities of 
COG committees. The TLU Committee members present requested that this item 
be referred to the COG Executive Committee for consideration sometime in 2020. 
For example, the TLU Committee thought there was overlap with the 
responsibilities of some existing committees and it is a suitable time to examine 
other potential committees as the Region continues to grow. In a similar tenor, 
during its January 24, 2020 meeting the Ad Hoc Facilities Committee unanimously 
voted to suggest to the Executive Committee that when the Articles of Agreement 
are updated the Ad Hoc Facilities Committee be given permanent standing as a 
COG Committee. All the members believed that capital planning, maintenance, 
and budgeting ought to be integrated into COG’s on-going business practices and 
not be viewed as an ad hoc, special, or temporary concept. 
 


F. Matter of Record – At the January 13, 2020, Parks Capital Committee the question 
was asked: “What are the voting privileges of Penn State University’s representatives to 
COG Committees?” Voting procedures for COG Committees are identified in the 
2008 COG Articles of Agreement. Section E Committees, Subsection 1 reads in 
part “Standing Committees shall consist of one representative appointed by each Centre 
Region COG municipality.” Subsection 4, states, “Non voting membership to a COG 
Committee shall be open to any organization designated by the voting membership (for 
example the University).) Consequently, University representatives to COG 
Committee under the 2008 COG Articles of Agreement, considered to be a non-
voting liaison position. That being said, over the years, some of the Committees 
have, informally, allowed their University representative to vote in a spirit of 
collegiality. However, that goodwill is not in compliance with the Articles of 
Agreement. 


 
G. Matter of Record – During its January 16, 2020 meeting the Finance Committee 


approved the purchase of two truck bodies for the fire police vehicles through the 
Co-Stars program at a cost of $110,300 each. At the November General Forum 







Executive Committee Agenda 
January 21, 2020 
Page 15 of 16 
 
 


meeting, the purchase of new chassis ($77,920 for both) was authorized. Because 
this expenditure for the body purchases is anticipated in the 2020 Budget and will 
be based on the Co-Stars program, General Forum action is not necessary. 


 
H. Matter of Record – A Lunch and Learn for the newly elected officials is scheduled  


for Thursday, January 30, 2020 at 12:00 Noon in the General Forum room of the 
COG Building. The focus of the session will be an overview of the COG services, 
organizational structure, funding, and the role of the elected officials.  


 
I. Matter of Record –The following COG employees were recognized for their length 


of service at the end of the year recognition dinner organized by the COG’s 
Employee Relations Committee:  


5 YEAR AWARDS 
Brady Clemens Library 
Charlotte Getson Library 
Denny Harris Fire 
Kylea Hinson Library 
Becca Petitt Admin 
Cindy Stahlman Parks 
Mina Youn Library 
 
10 YEAR AWARDS 
Malinda Hovingh Library 
Clint Kauffman Parks 
Melissa Kauffman Parks 
Jim May  Planning 
 
15 YEAR AWARDS 
Sandy Hayward Library 
 
20 YEAR AWARDS 
Arnie Pelka Code 
Jim Royer Code 
Brian Sampsel Code 
Tammy Strouse Code 
 
25 YEAR AWARD 
Trish Meek Planning 
Michele Valenza Library 
 
35 YEAR AWARD 
Jim Steff Admin 
 
 


 







Executive Committee Agenda 
January 21, 2020 
Page 16 of 16 
 
 
18. TENTATIVE AGENDA ITEMS 


 
The following are agenda items tentatively scheduled for discussion at the January 27, 
2020, General Forum meeting, which will be held in the Centre Region COG Building.  


A. Pledge of Allegiance 
B. Introduction of New Elected Officials 
C. Chair’s Report 
D. Election of Officers 
E. Selection of Meeting Dates, Times, Locations 
F. Appointment of Fire Chief and Assistant Fire Chiefs 
G. Appointment of Fire Marshals 
H. Parks and Recreation Regional Comprehensive Plan 
I. Designation of DCNR Grant 
J. Policy for changing Trick or Treat Night in cases of severe weather 


 
19. EXECUTIVE SESSION 


 
The Committee Chair will convene an Executive Session to discuss a personnel matter. 
Members, please see the enclosure. 
 


20. ADJOURNMENT 








 


 


RESOLUTION NO.____________ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE COUNTY, 
PENNSYLVANIA AMENDING THE 2020 FERGUSON TOWNSHIP OPERATING 
BUDGET BY MODIFYING OR INCREASING EXPENDITURES AS DESCRIBED. 
 


WHEREAS, the Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors adopted the 2020 
Township Operating Budget on December 9, 2019, projecting revenues and expenditures 
for the 2020 fiscal year; and 
 


WHEREAS, Section 7.08 of the Ferguson Township Home Rule Charter provides 
for amendment of the Township Operating Budget after adoption; and  
 


WHEREAS·, the Board of Supervisors declared an amendment of the budget on 
February 18, 2020 and notice of the public hearing was duly and properly advertised. 
 


NOW THEREFORE, the Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors amends the 
2020 Township Budget as follows: 
 


Fund & Account Description Subtotal 
Original 
Budget 


Change 
Revised 
Budget 


30.446.313 
Add Park Hills 


drainage design 
 $0 $150,000 $150,000 


30.409.750 
Add 7% contingency 


for PW garage 
$490,000    


30.409.750 
Add Inspections PW 


garage 
$41,450    


30.409.750 
Add Sewer Permits 


for PW garage 
$25,000    


30.409.750 
Add Construction 
manager for PW 


garage 
$300,000    


30.409.750 Less Original Budget $-500,000 $500,000 $356,450 $856,450 


30.430.760 
Move 2011 Ford 


F550 to Liquid Fuels 
-$121,700    


30.430.760 
Move Skid Steer to 


Liquid Fuels 
-$100,800    


30.430.760 
Move Bomag roller 


to Liquid Fuels 
-$52,900 $275,400 -$275,400 $0 


35.430.760 
Receive Capital 
Reserve items 


 $0 $275,400 $275,400 


      


30.430.760 
Postpone bucket 


truck to 2021 
 $204,000 -$204,000 $0 


      


30.430.750 
Move flail mower to 


liquid fuels 
-$21,400    


30.430.750 
Move heat lance to 


liquid fuels 
-$3,100    


30.430.750 
Move overhead 


luminaires to liquid 
fuels 


-$2,000    







 


 


30.430.750 
Move traffic signal 
LEDs to liquid fuels 


-$4,400 $30,900 -$30,900 $0 


35.430.750 
Receive Capital 
Reserve items 


 $0 $30,900 $30,900 


 
 


RESOLVED this 18th day of February 2020. 
 


       TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
 
 


      ________________________ 
         By:   Steve Miller, Chair 


         Board of Supervisors  
 
 
 
 


[ S E A L ] 
 
 


 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
David G. Pribulka, Secretary 








G.
Ad Hoc Boards.


§ 1-461. Establishment and Purpose. [Ord. 105, 4/13/1976; as
revised by Ord. 374, 1/10/1989]


Ad hoc boards may be established as deemed necessary by the Board
of Supervisors in accordance with the requirements of the ordinances
of the Township and this Administrative Code. Such boards shall be
created only for specific and temporary purposes. The exact purpose
of such boards shall be specified at the time each ad hoc board is
created.


§ 1-462. Powers and Duties. [Ord. 105, 4/13/1976; as revised
by Ord. 374, 1/10/1989]


All ad hoc boards shall be advisory boards and, as such, they shall
be advisory in nature and shall perform no administrative duties. Ad
hoc boards shall have the authority and responsibility to seek findings
of fact, express opinions or make recommendations in the specific
areas of responsibility granted to such boards at the time of their
establishment.


§ 1-461 § 1-462


:1





		G. Ad Hoc Boards.

		§ 1-461 Establishment and Purpose.

		§ 1-462 Powers and Duties.








CENTRE REGION COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
Centre Regional Planning Agency


2643 Gateway Drive, Suite #4
State College, PA  16801


Phone:  (814) 231-3050  Fax:  (814) 231-3083


TRANSPORTATION & LAND USE (TLU) COMMITTEE
COG Forum Room
2643 Gateway Drive


Monday, February 3, 2020
12:15 p.m.


AGENDA


1. CALL TO ORDER – Ms. Lafer will call the meeting to order.


2. CITIZEN COMMENTS


Members of the public are invited to comment on any items not already on the agenda 
(five minutes per person time limit, please). Comments relating to specific items on the 
agenda should be deferred until that point in the meeting.


3. ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES


The minutes of the January 13, 2020 TLU Committee meeting are enclosed.


4. OPEN DISCUSSION FOR COMMITTEE MEMBERS


This time is provided for open discussion of issues by members.


5. 2020 ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS – presented by Tom Zilla


The CRPA staff is proposing to provide an informational presentation at the February 24, 
2020 COG General Forum meeting about road and bridge projects in the Centre Region 
and Centre County that will be under construction in 2020.


The presentation will focus on PennDOT and municipal construction projects that are 
anticipated to result in increased traffic congestion and delays for travelers. Although many 
of the projects to be covered are in the Centre Region, staff will also address key projects in 
other areas of Centre County that will affect travel to and from the Region. In addition, 
staff will report about ongoing efforts to communicate information about the impacts of 
construction activities to the residents, visitors, employers, and businesses.


Staff will provide a preview of the approach to be taken with the presentation, and the 
projects to be covered.







Transportation & Land Use Committee Agenda
February 3, 2020
Page 2


The TLU Committee should receive the information and provide comments to staff to 
assist in completing a final presentation that will be provided to the General Forum.


Action: Recommendation to the COG Executive Committee to include 
the presentation on the February 24, 2020 COG General Forum 
agenda.


Attachment: None


Next Steps: None


6. 2020 U.S. CENSUS UPDATE – presented by Mark Boeckel


As required by the United States Constitution, the U.S. Census Bureau will be conducting 
the 24th decennial census of the country’s population on April 1, 2020. Conducted every 
10 years, the census represents a complete count of all persons in the country. In addition 
to providing valuable demographic and socioeconomic data, Census results help determine 
the number of representatives each state gets in Congress and helps inform where the 
federal government distributes hundreds of billions of dollars on an annual basis.


Over the past two years, the CRPA has been involved in several 2020 Census related 
programs that assist the Census Bureau in their efforts to count everyone in the right place. 
These programs included the Local Update of Census Addresses (LUCA) program, the 
Participant Statistical Areas Program (PSAP), and the New Construction Program. The 
CRPA’s role in these programs is summarized as follows:


Local Update of Census Addresses (LUCA) – Completed in 2018, the LUCA program 
provided municipalities with the opportunity to review and comment on the Census 
Bureau's residential address list for their jurisdiction. The CRPA participated in the 
LUCA program on behalf of College, Harris, and Patton Townships. The CRPA 
provided staff assistance to Ferguson Township with their LUCA submission. State 
College Borough completed their own LUCA submission and Halfmoon Township’s 
addresses were updated by Centre County.


The CRPA submitted updated address lists for College, Harris, and Patton Townships 
in June 2018. These lists incorporated a significant amount of new construction that 
occurred between 2010 and 2018 as well as the removal of numerous addresses from 
the former Hilltop and Penn State mobile home parks.


In September 2019, the CRPA coordinated a final review of changes made to the 
Census Bureau’s residential address lists for College, Harris, and Patton Townships. 
This final review included changes that were made by other government entities and 
through regular census operations.







Transportation & Land Use Committee Agenda
February 3, 2020
Page 3


The CRPA chose to appeal several address deletions in College Township and Patton 
Township. The CRPA provided evidence such as tax assessment records, photographs, 
and details of discussions with property owners to validate why the addresses should 
remain on the Census Bureau’s residential address list.


Participant Statistical Areas Program (PSAP) – The PSAP allowed municipalities to 
review and update selected statistical area boundaries for 2020 Census data tabulation. 
This project was coordinated by SEDA-COG, with assistance from the Centre County 
Planning and Community Development Office and the CRPA. There were no area 
boundary changes suggested for the Centre Region municipalities. 


New Construction Program – Completed in October 2019, the New Construction 
Program provided municipalities with the opportunity to update the Census Bureau’s 
residential address list with living quarters for which construction is in progress during 
or after March 1, 2018 and completion is expected by Census Day, April 1, 2020. The 
CRPA participated in the New Construction Program on behalf of all six Centre 
Region municipalities. Utilizing building permit reports from the Code 
Administration, the CRPA submitted several hundred residential addresses that were 
recently constructed or will be completed by Census Day.  


To help achieve a complete count of Centre Region residents in 2020, the Borough of 
State College and Centre County have established Complete Count Committees that are 
disseminating information to residents about the importance of the Census and the need 
to participate. As Census Day approaches, the CRPA will continue to partner with the 
Census Bureau and local Complete Count Committees to share data and information to 
help ensure an accurate Census enumeration.


On December 19, 2019, the Census Bureau released the 2014-2018 American Community 
Survey (ACS) 5-Year Estimates, which provide demographic and socioeconomic indicators 
at the municipal level. CRPA staff extracted this data for the six Centre Region 
municipalities and provided it via memo in the January General Forum agenda packet. 
Staff will provide the TLU Committee with a presentation that outlines the upcoming 
2020 Census as well as some important demographic and socioeconomic trends from the 
recently released ACS data.


Attachments: None


Action: This item is for information only. Staff will provide a PowerPoint 
presentation highlighting important demographic and socioeconomic trends based 
on recently released ACS data. No formal action is required. 


Next Steps: The CRPA will provide the TLU Committee with future updates on 
the 2020 Census as needed.







Transportation & Land Use Committee Agenda
February 3, 2020
Page 4


7. OTHER BUSINESS


A. Matter of Record – The next TLU Committee meeting will be held on Monday, 
March 2, 2020 at 12:15 p.m. in the COG Building Forum Room. 


B. Matter of Record – The next meeting of the CCMPO Coordinating Committee 
will be held on Tuesday, February 25, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. at the Patton Township 
Municipal Building. Agenda items will include a report from the University Park 
Airport Manager, a presentation from CATA about “mobility as a service”, 
discussion of the draft fiscal constraint analysis for the new Long Range 
Transportation Plan 2050, and discussion of the federal and state funding outlook.


C. Matter of Record – Enclosed is a letter from Maryland Governor Larry Hogan 
directing the Maryland Attorney General to take action against the Commonwealth 
of Pennsylvania for failing to reduce pollution entering Chesapeake Bay via the 
Susquehanna River and the Environmental Protection Agency for failing to enforce 
pollution reductions.


8. ADJOURNMENT







Mon , 13, 2019


Minutes


Borough


1.


5


2. COMMENTS


.


3.


0.


4.


2







13, 2020
2


2, 
2019 . 6 0.


5.


person’s tenure during the Committee meetings before Mr. Cooper retires. He added that he also has a 


. 


6.


COG TLU COMMITTEE
POTENTIAL MEETING DATES – 2020


February 3 August 3


March 2
September 14 (second Monday to accommodate Labor 
Day holiday)


April 6 (joint meeting with the Centre Regional Planning 
Commission at the regular TLU committee meeting time)


*October 5 – (joint meeting with the CRPC at the 
regular TLU Committee meeting time)


May 4 November 2
June 1 December 7


July 6
January 11, 2021
(2nd Monday to accommodate municipal reorganizational 
meetings)


0. 


7.


Committee. Under the COG Articles of Agreement, the TLU Committee’s duties are:







13, 2020
3


8.


2022.


, ,


Review the CCMPO’s Draft Centre County Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) 2050, focusing on 


Use Path; and PennDOT’s maintenance paving projects.


Region’s designation 


Receive a report about CATA’s service planning process for fall 2021. Receive reports about CATA’s 
efforts to advance “Mobility as a Service” activities that enhance the integration of transit with other 







13, 2020
4


“road diet” on Boal Avenue (Business Route 322) in Harris Township and p


, 


.


also review the Centre County MPO’s Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) 2050 before it is adopted in 


.


9.


n


. 


10.


3, 2020


n


2020 







13, 2020
5


. 


s Township for the MPO’s support and assistance in addressing safety concerns along 


8.


13, 2020
1













CENTRE REGION COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite 3


State College, PA  16801
Phone:  (814) 231-3077  ●  Fax:  (814) 231-3083  ●  E-Mail:  jsteff@crcog.net


SOLAR POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENT WORKING GROUP
Centre Region Council of Governments, General Forum Room 


January 22, 2020
9:00 AM


AGENDA


1. CALL TO ORDER


Mr. Buckland will convene the meeting.


2. PUBLIC COMMENT


Members of the public are invited to comment on any items not already on the agenda (five 
minute per person time limit, please). Comments relating to specific items on the agenda should 
be deferred until that point in the meeting.


3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES


A copy of the minutes of the December 22, 2019 Solar Power Purchase Agreement (SPPA) 
Working Group meeting is enclosed.  


4. ELECTION OF OFFICERS


The Working Group should elect a Chair and Vice Chair for 2020. During 2019, Mr. Buckland
served as Chair and Ms. Brandt served as Vice Chair. 


5. MEETING DATE, TIME & LOCATION


The Solar Power Purchasing Agreement Working Group should choose the date, time, and 
location for its 2020 meetings. During 2019, the Working Group met on the fourth Wednesday 
of the month at 9:00 AM in the COG General Forum Room. 


6. MEETING ETIQUETTE GUIDELINES


The Centre Region Council of Governments (COG) is committed to an environment in which 
all individuals are treated with respect and dignity. Each individual has the right to participate in 
a professional atmosphere that promotes equal opportunities to be heard and to participate in 
the decision-making process. At the same time, conducting the meeting is to be handled 
efficiently, so the time that people invest at meetings is well spent and concludes within a 
reasonable timeframe. Please respect each other, as well as the Chair and their role in facilitating 
the expeditious conduct of business.







SPPA Working Group
January 22, 2020
Page 2 of 4


On November 26, 2018, the COG General Forum adopted the enclosed Meeting Etiquette 
Guidelines and Resolution 2018-4.  The Working Group should be familiar with these 
guidelines.  More information, including frequently asked questions and guidelines for public 
comment can be found on the COG’s website at www.crcog.net.


7. REVISED COST SHARING AGREEMENT FOR ENERGY CONSULTANT


During the individual entity solicitor and board/council review process questions arose about the 
need to better define the contract management aspects of the project.  Specifically, who would be 
contracting as the SPPA Working Group is not an entity and there is no lead entity named.  
Centre Area Transportation Authority solicitor’s opinion was that having a single contract 
between 15 separate entities and a consultant was not in the project’s best interests.  His 
recommendation was to either create a separate entity out of the SPPA Working Group 
(anticipated to be a six-month process) or name a lead organization.


At a January 10, 2020 meeting with representatives from OG, CATA, and SCASD this issue was 
discussed and the State College Area School District (SCASD) tentatively volunteered to become 
the lead entity.  The group who attended the meeting felt this process, with SPPA Working 
Group approval, could be accomplished in two months.  The effect of this would be SCASD 
would be the entity contracting with the Energy Service Consultant on behalf of themselves and 
the other 14 entities.  See the enclosed meeting notes for more information.


Since the January 10, 2020 meeting a second question has arisen from the State College Borough 
Water Authority’s solicitor pertaining to the lack of a party’s right to withdraw.  At the time of 
the agenda distribution each entity’s staff is still trying to determine a course of action and find 
common ground.


The Working Group should discuss the proposed change to the process.  At the meeting an 
updated agreement contemplating this change and potentially adding in a termination 
date/clause will be distributed.  The Working Group should review the updated agreement and 
ask questions so they are prepared to approve the agreement at their February meeting.


8. RFQ/RFP FOR ENERGY CONSULTANT SERVICES UPDATE


At the January 10, 2020 meeting where the CATA solicitor questions were discussed and worked 
through, a separate question was raised as to why the SPPA Working Group was issuing a 
separate RFQ and RFP for Energy Consulting Services.  After reviewing the RFQ document it 
was discussed that the RFQ could very easily be changed to an RFP with the inclusion of some 
additional sections such as the scope of work and updating the evaluation criteria. The Micro 
Group initially recommended proceeding with an RFQ to start the learning process and provide 
enough time for all entities to feel comfortable with the prospect of an energy services consultant. 
At this time, the RFQ has been shared with the SPPA Working Group since its November 27, 
2019 meeting and it was approved for release at its December 18, 2019 meeting. The benefit of 
combining the RFQ into an RFP would allow the SPPA Working Group to remain on 







SPPA Working Group
January 22, 2020
Page 3 of 4


substantially the same timeline despite the delays incurred pertaining to the solicitors’ review of 
the Intergovernmental Cost Sharing Agreement.


The Working Group should discuss this change in process and determine if there is value in 
keeping the RFQ and RFP separate or if the two documents could be combined.  The Working 
Group should provide direction to the Micro Group as to how to proceed. The Micro Group 
currently includes: Randy Brown, SCASD; Peter Buckland COG; Gretchen Brandt, SCASD; 
Bruce Donovan, CATA; Jason Grottini, SCBWA; Jesse Barlow, SCB; and Pam Adams, COG.


9. REVISED TIMELINE


Enclosed please find the revised Gannt Chart for the proposed changes to the energy services 
consultant timeline.  It incorporates the changes proposed in the previous two agenda items, the 
need to revise the Cost Sharing Agreement, and recommendation to combine the Request For 
Qualifications and Request For Proposal (RFQ/RFP) processes.


The updated timeline is shown below:


February 3, 2020 SCASD approves their role as lead entity
February 26, 2020 SPPA Working Group endorses Intergovernmental Agreement
February 26, 2020 SPPA Working Group review draft RFQ/RFP
Feb 26 – Mar 24, 2020 Individual entities approve Intergovernmental Agreement
March 25, 2020 Sign Intergovernmental Agreement
March 25, 2020 SPPA Working Group approves & authorizes release of RFP/RFQ
March 27 & March 30 Advertise RFQ/RFP
April 29, 2020 Open Bids from Energy Services Consultants
Apr 29 – May 27 SPPA Micro Group recommends Energy Services Consultant
May 27, 2020 SPPA Working Group reviews, recommends, and refers Energy 


Services Consultant to boards/councils
May 27 – June 23 Boards/Councils endorse hiring an Energy Services Consultant
June 24, 2020 SPPA Working Group recommends SCASD hire an Energy 


Services Consultant
July 6, 2020 SCASD enters into a contract with the Energy Services Consultant 


recommended by the SPPA Working Group
July 10, 2020 Contract is awarded and documents signed by SCASD


10. OTHER BUSINESS


A. Matter of Record – With a growing interest by both the public and local governments in solar 
energy, CRPA staff created a solar energy webpage which can be found under the COG 
webpage: www.crcog.net |CRPA | Sustainability or follow this link for Solar Energy. A link 
to this solar energy page has been added to the SPPA Working Group’s webpage. The solar 
energy webpage is a starting point to help identify the Centre Region as a friendly place for 
solar business and climate action. It includes existing tools and documents on solar energy 
and a link to the SPPA. 







SPPA Working Group
January 22, 2020
Page 4 of 4


B. Matter of Record – At its January 16, 2020 meeting, the PSE Committee endorsed the 
commitment of the Centre Region COG working with SolSmart, which is a U.S. 
Department of Energy funded program that recognizes cities, counties, and regional 
organizations for making it faster, easier, and more affordable to go solar. Their national 
team of experts provides no-cost technical assistance to help communities foster the 
development of local solar markets.


One area of technical assistance that has been identified is working with the National 
Renewable Energy Laboratory (NREL) staff to assist COG staff with the Solar Power 
Purchase Agreement (SPPA). This assistance would complement the energy services 
consultant the SPPA Working Group intends to hire and help with the RFQ/RFI/RFP 
process. This should help keep the consultant’s costs in check and offer another source of 
expertise. 


11. ADJOURNMENT













Serving the Townships of College, Ferguson, Halfmoon, Harris, Patton and the Borough of State College
The Centre Region is a Bicycle Friendly CommunitySM


Centre Regional Planning Agency
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite #4 State College, PA  16801 Phone (814) 231-3050   www.crcog.net


20


1. ALL TO ORDER .


2.


3.


d.


4.
Ms. Adams will 


5.
, 







, 2019
2 3


80% by 2050


Feb 6 and discuss
.


Feb


6.


. 


. 


7.







, 2019
3 3


– 90


8.



https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/GNduNoua2rBThhw6N4PRP9OCSPf6B2ru/playlists/4821/media/525899?autostart=false&showtabssearch=true&fullscreen=false&jwsource=cl






 


Ferguson Township
Proposal for Traffic Signal System Consulting Services


January 23, 2020







Proposal for Traffic Signal System Consulting Services


i


Proposal for Traffic Signal System Consulting Services


Client Name: Ferguson Township


Revision Date: January 23, 2020


Project Manager: Steve Cunningham, PE, PTOE


Prepared By: Steve Cunningham, PE, PTOE


Approved By: Stan Niemczak, PE


File Name: Proposal_2020-01-23


Jacobs Engineering Group Inc.
 
2301 Chestnut Street
Philadelphia, PA  19103


+1.215.569.2900


www.jacobs.com


© Copyright 2020 Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. The concepts and information contained in this document are the property of Jacobs. Use or 
copying of this document in whole or in part without the written permission of Jacobs constitutes an infringement of copyright







Proposal for Traffic Signal System Consulting Services


1. Project Understanding


Ferguson Township is in the process of deploying advanced traffic signal operations at the 20+ intersections 
owned and operated within the Township.  As part of these advanced operations, the Township is advancing 
deployment of data logging, traffic signal performance metrics, updated signal controllers, and a central system 
for processing data and system monitoring.  The backbone for successful deployment of each of these items is a 
broadband communications network between each intersection, to the PennDOT District 2-0 Regional Traffic 
Management Center, and the Ferguson Township building.  


In furtherance of these signal operations goals, the Township applied for, and received, a PennDOT ARLE Grant 
for approximately $500,000, with $100,000 in matching funds provided by the Township.  The grant expires on 
January 9, 2022.  


Based on the above understanding, and supplemented with additional information provided by Ron Seybert, PE, 
Township Engineer, Jacobs offers this proposal to support this advanced traffic signal system through as-needed 
services during project planning, design, deployment, and commissioning.  







Proposal for Traffic Signal System Consulting Services


2. Project Methodology


2.1 Scope


Under this project, Jacobs will perform comprehensive communications network and traffic signal consulting 
services.  Services will be provided on as needed basis, when requested by Ferguson Township.  Deliverables shall 
be determined by the nature of the requested tasks.  Specific approval of all deliverables will be requested by 
Jacobs and approved by Ferguson Township prior to Jacobs initiating work associated with the requested 
deliverable(s).  


This scope of services includes, on an as-requested basis and as the project budget allows, communications 
network and advanced traffic signal system planning, design, deployment and commissioning items such as:


 Project Deployment Planning


 Communications Network Master Planning


 Communications Network Architecture


 Operations and Maintenance Planning


 Field Assessment


 Coordination with utilities for fiber optic pole attachments 


 Coordination with traffic signal equipment suppliers & vendors


 Engineering Support


 Specification writing


 Testing and Commissioning Support


 Cybersecurity 


 Cost Estimating


 Stakeholder coordination


o PennDOT District 2-0 and Central Office 


o Centre Region MPO


o Adjacent Municipalities


o Traffic Signal and Communications Equipment Suppliers


o Broadband Communications Providers 


 System expansion across adjacent municipalities 


 Other items as Ferguson Township deems necessary


2.2 Schedule & Deliverables


As work tasks are assigned by Ferguson Township, a schedule, man-hour estimate, and anticipated deliverables 
will be submitted for each task for review and approval prior to Jacobs initiating work.







Proposal for Traffic Signal System Consulting Services


3. Team


Ferguson Township Project Manager – Ron Seybert, PE, Township Engineer


Project Manager – Steve Cunningham, PE, PTOE


Senior Communications Engineer – Brad Barikian


Senior Traffic/ITS Engineer – Mike Ricciuti, PE


Junior Traffic/ITS Engineer – Amanda Santosusso


Other Jacobs staff may be supplemented as required by specific tasks.   







Proposal for Traffic Signal System Consulting Services


4. Capability and Experience


Jacobs offers a comprehensive understanding of traffic signal design, operations, and communications network 
infrastructure across Pennsylvania.  We have supported PennDOT’s Central Office, and individual Districts 
(including District 2-0) on multiple open-end contracts for over two decades.  Our team’s recent efforts include:


 Development of Traffic Signal Command and Control software requirements to be deployed at each 
RTMC


 Development of Maintenance and Operations requirements for potential state-owned signal equipment


 Green Light-Go Program Management – Southeast Region, which included design of improvements at 
over 200 intersections


 Traffic-signal Standards Development 


 Policy Development, including:


o Updates to Signal-related Publications 46, 149, 191, 408


o Signal Permit Review Process


 District-wide (District 6-0) Traffic Signal Communications and Integration Plan Development and 
Implementation Support


 PS&E Development for dozens of signal improvement projects, totaling over 750 individual intersections 
across the state


 Coordination with Signal Contractors, Equipment Vendors, and Manufacturer Representatives during 
design, construction, and operations


 Outreach to municipalities and other stakeholders


Attached to this document are several project profiles, and resumes for our key staff detailing several of these 
initiatives.  







Proposal for Traffic Signal System Consulting Services


5. Commercial Offer


Compensation Basis: 


 Time and Materials.  Jacobs will utilize actual 2020 salary rates, our audited PennDOT Overhead Rate, 
and PennDOT Profit Factors to calculate hourly billing rates for project staff.  Current billing rates are 
shown in the table below for key staff.  


Compensation for other expenses (travel, reproduction, etc.) will be billed at cost.  


The upset limit for this project is set at $50,000.  Ferguson Township will authorize Jacobs to proceed with 
separate work tasks in accordance with man-hour/cost estimates provided for each separate work task.  As noted 
in Section 2.2, Jacobs will submit an estimate for Ferguson Township review and approval prior to initiating work.  
Ferguson Township will provide this authorization via email, if approved to proceed.  


Name Hourly Billing Rate


Steve Cunningham, PE, PTOE $199.35


Brad Barikian $173.96


Mike Ricciuti, PE $102.61


Amanda Santosusso $74.88


Other Staff as required Actual hourly rate x 2.2803


Billing Rate Derivation:


PennDOT Overhead Rate:  105.805%
PennDOT Profit Factor: 10.80%
Salary Rate Multiplier: 2.2803


Salary Rate Multiplier Calculation:
[ Profit Factor x (1 + OH Rate) ] + 1 + OH Rate
[ .1080 x (1 + 1.05805) ] + 1 + 1.05805
= 2.2803







Proposal for Traffic Signal System Consulting Services


Appendix A. Additional Information


1. Resume – Steve Cunningham, PE, PTOE
2. Resume – Brad Barikian
3. Resume – Mike Ricciuti, PE
4. Project Profile – Green Light-Go Program Support
5. Project Profile – Traffic Signal Communications Support
6. Project Profile – Traffic Signal & ITS Integration
7. PennDOT ECMS Overhead Information
8. PennDOT ECMS Profit Factor Information







Resume


1


Stephen Cunningham, PE, PTOE 
GROUP LEADER – TRAFFIC & ITS ENGINEERING


Since beginning his career, Steve has specialized in transportation 


systems’ design and implementation, traffic signal design, fiber optic and 


wireless communications, construction management, and traffic study 


preparation/review. He has performed microsimulation analysis of existing 


and proposed transportation systems and has extensive field experience 


in highway, bridge, traffic signal, and ITS construction, including 


inspection and construction management responsibilities. He has worked 


on various projects for various public agencies throughout the 


northeastern United States, as well as municipal and private sector 


clients. His engineering and management efforts on numerous design 


and construction projects encompass all aspects of design from feasibility 


evaluations to construction close-out. 


Steve also supports Jacobs’ Mission Critical clients through transportation 


system evaluation supporting site selection and site layouts for world-


scale data centers across North America.  


Steve is certified by the Institute of Transportation Engineers as a 


Professional Traffic Operations Engineer (PTOE), and by the International 


Municipal Signal Association (IMSA) as Work Zone Safety Specialist, 


Traffic Signal Technician (Level 2), and a Traffic Signal Inspector.


Relevant Project Experience


Pennsylvania Department of Transportation, Bureau of Maintenance 


and Operations, Green Light-Go Program Management, 


Southeastern Region.  Steve serves as the Jacobs Project Manager for 


this project specific Open-End agreement. Jacobs is responsible for 


managing PennDOT’s new Green Light-Go traffic signal initiative in the 


District 6 region.  We support the Department through design and 


construction activities on multiple municipal grant projects, ranging from 


multiple-intersection adaptive signal control systems, to simple LED 


signal indication replacements.  In total, we advanced 4 separate PS&E 


packages to construction, encompassing improvements at signalized 


intersections across the District.  Additionally, we work with local 


municipalities and PennDOT on a pilot program for the transfer of 


ownership and maintenance responsibility to PennDOT.  This pilot 


program will be the first time that the Department has owned, operated, 


and maintained traffic signals.  


Pennsylvania Department of Transportation, District 6-0, Traffic 


Signal & Safety Support.  Steve serves as the Jacobs Project Manager 


for this ongoing Open-End agreement in District 6-0.  Jacobs is currently 


supporting the open end contract for traffic signal deployments by 


addressing, diagnosing, and implementing communications to field 


devices throughout the District. We continue to support the network 


infrastructure operations and maintenance along multiple corridors 


throughout the five-county area, providing communications to key 


signalized intersections from the District 6-0 Regional Traffic 


Management Center.  Additionally, we support the District’s Fiber Optic 


EDUCATION/QUALIFICATIONS


B.S.C.E., Civil Engineering, 


University of Delaware, 1998


REGISTRATIONS/


CERTIFICATIONS


Professional Engineer, PA, DE, NJ, 
MD


Professional Traffic Operations 
Engineer (PTOE)


MEMBERSHIPS


AND AFFILIATIONS


IMSA: International Municipal Signal 
Association


ITE: Institute of Transportation 
Engineers


Delaware County Transportation 
Management Association: Member, 
Board of Directors


Pennsylvania State University, 
Transportation Engineering & Safety 
Conference: Executive Committee


OTHER


 Entered Profession: 1998


 Joined Jacobs: 2006







Resume


2


Stephen Cunningham, PE, 


PTOE


GROUP LEADER – TRAFFIC & ITS 


ENGINEERING


inventory database as it relates to traffic signal communications 


throughout the District.  


Pennsylvania Department of Transportation, District 2-0, SR 3014, 
Section N11, Centre County, Pennsylvania
Steve served as project manager and traffic engineering lead on this 
traffic signal and ITS design project, located in State College, PA.  The 
project includes traffic signal upgrades and ITS installations at nineteen 
signalized intersections located along Atherton Street, a key corridor 
serving the State College area.  On-corridor spread-spectrum traffic 
signal communications was designed, deployed, and tested as part of this 
project.  Additionally, Transit Signal Priority was implemented at the 
signals along the corridor, reducing travel times for transit vehicles.  
Seven (7) Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) cameras and two (2) 
Dymanic Message Signs (DMS) were installed to enhance traffic 
monitoring and traveler information.  A GPS-based before/after travel time 
and delay study was completed, and indicated significant traveler time 
and cost savings were realized with the deployment of this project.  


Port Authority of New York and New Jersey (PANYNJ), ITS Master 
Plan Development for Four Facilities
Steve is serving as task manager for the development of Intelligent 
Transportation System (ITS) Master Plans for the George Washington 
Bridge, Lincoln and Holland Tunnels, and Outerbridge Crossing for the 
PANYNJ.  These efforts will culminate with the issuance of individual 
facility Master Plans, detailing the efforts needed to upgrade and/or 
replace each of the ITS subsystems at each facility.  Upon completion of 
this project, the PANYNJ plans to use each of these documents to 
provide the foundation for future ITS deployment projects on each of 
these regionally important crossings.   


City of Sammamish, Washington, 228th Avenue NE Adaptive Signal 


Control Technology Deployment Project


Jacobs is the prime consultant to provide design services for an eleven 
intersection arterial adaptive traffic control system.  Steve serves as the 
adaptive system engineer.  This project includes the provision of plans, 
specifications and estimates for the ASCT and its fiber-optic IP 
communications network.  Steve is responsible for development of the 
adaptive signal specifications and design documentation.  Additionally, 
Steve will coordinate and develop system testing and acceptance plans 
when the adaptive system is commissioned later this year.  


Various Traffic Signal Installations, Statewide, Pennsylvania.
Steve has been project manager for the design of numerous traffic signal 
installations throughout Pennsylvania. He designed all traffic signals in 
accordance with PennDOT standards, utilizing various traffic signal 
analysis software packages, including Synchro, SimTraffic, and Highway 
Capacity Software. He also designed communications methods (fiber 
optic, spread-spectrum radio) in accordance with local preference and 
anticipated performance. He provided coordination efforts between 
PennDOT, local municipalities, and developers (where appropriate) to 
ensure a smooth approval process during the signal design phase. His 
services included traffic signal construction plans detailing conduit sizes 
and locations, wiring information, and additional contractor notes and 
specifications providing a quality construction product, while minimizing 


contractor confusion during the bidding process. 







Resume


Document Number 1


Bradford Barikian
SENIOR SYSTEMS AND TECHNOLOGY SPECIALIST


Brad has over 18 years of engineering experience, specifically 


specializing in the electrical engineering field. He brings a diversified 


background of project experience, from computer programming to 


communications design, with the majority of projects involving security 


and communications systems. He supervises the systems group technical 


staff by leading the development of plans and specifications.


Areas of Expertise


 Bosch CCTV Systems


 Fiber Optic Cable Installation and Testing


 Outside and Inside Plant Design


 OTN Systems


 OSP Insight Outside Plant Software


 Secondary Electrical Power design  


Relevant Project Experience


ITS and Traffic Signal Systems Open End, Philadelphia, PA
Client: Pennsylvania Department of Transportation District 6-0


Brad is currently supporting the open end contract for both ITS and traffic 
signal deployments by addressing, diagnosing, and implementing 
communications to field devices throughout the District. He has supported 
the design for traffic devices such as CCTV, RTMS detectors, travel time 
systems, and dynamic message signs on roadways in and around the 
Metro Philadelphia Area. 


S.R. 0095, Sections ITF & ITC, Bucks and Philadelphia Counties, PA


Client: Pennsylvania Department of Transportation District 6-0


Brad designed the fiber optic communications infrastructure for S.R. 


0095, Sections ITC and ITF deployments.  This included the installation of 


communications hardware for the SONET based network and the 


District’s video sharing system. He is also supporting the ongoing 


maintenance efforts for both of these networks. In this role, Brad co-


authored the District’s fiber optic master plan, which provides guidance to 


combine existing networks and planning for future backbone deployments 


for more reliable backbone architecture. He is providing network support 


and expertise for the Phase I of the master plan under the ITC project.


Telecommunications Strategic Plan, Indianapolis, IN


Client: Indiana Department of Transportation


Brad researched different technologies and mediums that would attain 


INDOT’s objectives for a new communication system. The research 


included wireless systems, such as digital microwave, cellular, and 


spread spectrum solutions. Wire-line systems included fiber optics and 


leased-line solutions. The research was concluded in a technical memo 


that also included costs, throughput and availability.


EDUCATION/QUALIFICATIONS


B.S., Electrical Engineering, Widener 
University, Chester, PA, 1999


MEMBERSHIPS


AND AFFILIATIONS


 IEEE: Institute of Electrical and 
Electronics Engineers


 BICSI


OTHER


 Entered profession: 2000


 Year joined Jacobs: 2000


 Office location – Philadelphia, PA







Resume


Bradford Barikian


SENIOR SYSTEMS AND TECHNOLOGY 


SPECIALIST
North East River Tunnel rehabilitation Project, New York, NY 
Client: Amtrak


Brad is supporting the systems design for communication infrastructure, 
emergency telephones, CCTV and PA systems for Amtrak tunnels being 
rehabilitated due to flood damage. The project incorporates design of 
conduit, fiber optic and copper pair communications infrastructure, 
communication node cabinets, Blue Light phones/system and PA 
systems for both Amtrak and Long Island Railroad. 


County Yard Improvement Project, New Brunswick, NJ 
Client: New Jersey Transit (NJT)/Amtrak


Brad is supporting the design development of fiber optic and copper pair 
communications infrastructure between signal shelters and 
communication demarcations for both New Jersey transit and Amtrak 
systems. The design will also include CCTV and PA systems for the 
vehicle storage yard as well as station systems for a proposed NJT 
station. 


Professional Services Completion Date: 2018
Construction Completion Date: N/A


Betsy Ross Bridge Fiber Optic Project, Pennsauken, NJ 
Client: Delaware River Port Authority


Brad is supporting the design development of communications 
infrastructure across the Betsy Ross Bridge that connects Pa to NJ. The 
design uses “Blown-in” fiber technology requiring the infrastructure to be 
flexible to meet the DRPAs requirement for a scalable fiber optic network 
from the toll administration building, to each gantry location and 
terminating in a substation on the PA side that provides connectivity to 
PennDOT fiber and the other DRPA facilities. 


San Juan International Airport, Terminal B Renovation, Aerostar 


Capacity Enhancement Project San Juan, PR


Client: Luis Marin Munoz


Brad supported Phase I design of this project, which consisted of 
relocating 20 airline networks and systems. This included design of a 
shared data center and the relocation of the airlines leased broadband 
services. Brad led the testing and verification of existing fiber, voice, and 
network cabling by developing a comprehensive connectivity matrix from 
the testing results. He also developed the Phase I drawings for the new 
conduit, fiber optic and copper cable plant where existing infrastructure 
was unavailable. He was the liaison between the airline IT and the 
client/design team. 







Michael (Mike) Ricciuti, PE


 


Michael (Mike) Ricciuti, PE


ITS/Traffic Engineer


Education


BS, Civil Engineering, Virginia 


Polytechnic Institute and State 


University, 2011


Registrations


2016, Professional Engineer (Civil), 


Pennsylvania, PE085584


Years of Experience


With Jacobs:  <1


With Other Firms:  7


Mr. Ricciuti is an intelligent transportations systems (ITS) and traffic 


engineer in the Philadelphia office. He has worked on projects in ITS 


Planning and Design, Communication Network Design, Travel Time 


System technology, and Traffic Signal Interconnection.  His 


background includes the preparation of reports, plans, specifications, 


and estimates for ITS Design and Traffic Signal Interconnection 


projects; ITS Design review; analysis and implementation of travel 


time systems; development of transportation management plans; 


safety studies; and project construction services.


Experience


Delaware River Port Authority, Walt Whitman Bridge PA Corridor 


Rehabilitation ITS Deployment, Camden, New Jersey. (2018-


Present, Ongoing) Intelligent transportation systems (ITS) engineer 


responsible for the deployment along the Pennsylvania approach to 


the Walt Whitman Bridge (I-76) in the city of Philadelphia, 


Pennsylvania from the Schuylkill Expressway/26th Street Interchange 


east to Walt Whitman Bridge. The project provides preliminary, final 


design, and testing of a mainline ITS network that includes closed-


circuit TV cameras, a digital message signage (DMS), variable speed 


limit signage (VSLS), and lane use control signals (LUCS). The project 


also included the replacement of existing fiber optic network cable 


and integrating new ITS devices into existing communication 


network. 


Pennsylvania Department of Transportation - District 6-0, SR 3019 


Section PDB (Passyunk Drawbridge Rehabilitation) ITS 


Deployment, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania (2014-Present, On-going):  


Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) designer responsible for the 


deployment along Passyunk Ave Section PDB in the City of 


Philadelphia, Pennsylvania  from 61st  St to Oregon Ave.  The project 


provides preliminary, final design, and testing of an arterial ITS 


network that includes CCTV cameras and a wireless communication 


system for Drawbridge Operations. The ITS devices will be used to 


monitor traffic conditions on Passyunk Ave along the eastern 


approach to the Drawbridge and allow clearance information to be 


delivered to PENNDOT and the City of Philadelphia during 


Drawbridge opening operations.


Pennsylvania Department of Transportation - District 6-0, SR 0309 


Section PM1 ITS Deployment, King of Prussia, Pennsylvania (2018-


Present, On-going):  Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) 


engineer responsible for the deployment along PA 309 (Sellersville 


Bypass) in the Bucks County, Pennsylvania.  The project provides 







Michael (Mike) Ricciuti, PE


preliminary, final design, and testing of an ITS network that includes 


CCTV cameras, arterial dynamic message sign (ADMS) and a fiber 


optic communication system. The ITS devices will be used to monitor 


traffic conditions along Sellersville Bypass, a pre-established 


emergency detour route for the Pennsylvania Turnpike.  The project 


also includes extending the existing PennDOT fiber optic network by 


installing backbone cable and establishing a new communication 


hub.


Pennsylvania Department of Transportation - District 6-0, SR 0202 


Section 652 ITS and Adaptive Signal Deployment, King of Prussia, 


Pennsylvania (2018-Present, On-going):  Intelligent Transportation 


Systems (ITS) engineer responsible for the deployment along US 


202 (Wilmington West Chester Pike) & US 1 (Baltimore Pike) in the 


Chester and Delaware Counties, Pennsylvania.  The project provides 


preliminary, final design, and testing of an ITS network that includes 


CCTV cameras, arterial dynamic message sign (ADMS) and a fiber 


optic communication system.  The ITS devices will be used to 


monitor traffic conditions along US 202 & US 1.  The project also 


includes extending the existing PennDOT adaptive signal network 


and interconnecting the existing signals along both US 202 & US 1.


Pennsylvania Department of Transportation Central Office, I-95 


Section Girard Avenue Interchange ITS Deployment, King of 


Prussia, Pennsylvania. (2013-Present, Ongoing) Intelligent 


transportation systems (ITS) designer responsible for the 


deployment along I-95 Section GIR in the city of Philadelphia, 


Pennsylvania  from the Girard Avenue Interchange north to 


Allegheny Avenue. The project provides preliminary, final design, 


and testing of a mainline ITS network that includes closed-circuit TV 


cameras, a digital message signage (DMS), and a travel time system 


based on electronic toll collection tag readers. The project also 


provides mainline and arterial ITS deployment along pre-established 


emergency detour routes for I-95, including mainline DMS and full 


matrix arterial DMS which are capable of displaying graphics. 


Emergency detour routes ITS deployment also includes a network of 


CCTV cameras and a Bluetooth travel time and incident detection 


systems.


Pennsylvania Department of Transportation Central Office, SR 


1006 & SR 1027 Section HO4 (Adams Ave Connector) ITS 


Deployment, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania (2014-Present, On-going):  


Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) designer responsible for the 


deployment along Adams Ave Section HO4 in the City of 


Philadelphia, Pennsylvania  from Torresdale Ave to Aramingo Ave.  


The project provides preliminary, final design, and testing of an 


arterial ITS network at a major interchange along the I-95 Corridor 


that includes CCTV cameras, DMS, and an expansion of the 


Electronic Toll Collection Tag Reader based Travel Time System.  







Project Description


Document Number 1


ITS & Traffic Signal 
Design/Integration Support Services


PHILADELPHIA METRO-AREA, PENNSYLVANIA


Project Description/Services Provided


Under three concurrent five-year open-ended support contracts, Jacobs is 
tasked with providing program management services as well as serving 
the role of a systems integrator to assist PennDOT District 6-0 RTMC 
staff in managing, coordinating and facilitating all ITS initiatives in the 
District.  Jacobs is currently providing ongoing support in multiple areas.


RTMC Support services


The majority of tasks under this work order include reviewing and 
providing technical oversight on projects that are scheduled for design 
and construction within the same year.  Hands-on involvement and a 
quick turnaround have therefore been critical to the advancement of these 
programs.  Work assigned under this task has widely varied and has 
required technical assistance in performing numerous ITS-related tasks, 
including the following:  


 Planning and assisting in the development of ITS field equipment, 
including CCTV, VMS, vehicle detectors, travel time systems, and 
weather stations


 Software review, adjustments and integration to existing software and 
control systems


 Support for inspection, evaluation, adjustment and corrective action 
to repair existing ITS equipment and supporting infrastructure as well 
as under new projects


 Reviewing work by other consultants, including constructability and 
peer reviews for ITS-related projects, engineers’ estimate for design 
and/or construction work and review of construction schedules


 Providing multi-disciplinary technical support personnel on an as-
needed basis including, software, communications networking, video 
sharing, ITS and communications design/deployment, and traffic 
engineering


 Conducting technical studies to evaluate ITS, traffic signal system, 
and communications network expansion


 Coordinating with statewide and regional ITS efforts


 Planning, design and implementation of the PennDOT 6-0 Video 
Sharing System.  Currently the District uses Genetec VMS to 
distribute and share video with Local Municipalities, 5 EOCs, Police, 
City of Philadelphia and other State Agencies.


 Helped with planning and developing the Bridging Document for a 
new Regional Traffic Management Center.  The project is a $50M 
facility that is scheduled to go live in 2022.  


 Jacobs has assisted PennDOT District 6-0 in operating the Ramp 
Metering System installed along the I-476 corridor.  The ramp 
metering system along I-476, originally constructed in the 1990s has 


CLIENT NAME


Pennsylvania Department of 


Transportation, District 6-0


JACOBS’ ROLE


Prime


CONTRACT NUMBER


E01271


E02948


E04241


CONTRACT TYPE


Open End


CONTRACT VALUE


$2,000,000 per contract


JACOBS EXECUTING OFFICE/S


Philadelphia, PA


REFERENCE


Manny Anastasiadis


Traffic Operations Manager


610-205-6590


eanastasia@state.pa.us


Pennsylvania Department of 


Transportation


District 6-0 


7000 Geerdes Boulevard


King of Prussia, PA 19406







Project Description


Document Number 2


ITS Design/Integration 


Support Services


PHILADELPHIA METRO-AREA, 


PENNSYLVANIA


undergone significant upgrades through a recent ITS construction 
project.  Jacobs has been tasked with getting the entire system fully 
operational for the first time in its existence.  Jacobs has provided the 
following services:


 District Communications Asset Management Plan - Jacobs is 
responsible for supporting the efforts of the District in developing, 
organizing and documenting the District’s existing communications 
network as well as developing a plan for future regional expansion. 
The primary task included the implementation of a GIS-based fiber 
management system to organize cable and strand allocation so that 
the District may easily manage and update cable plan information.  
This includes the documentation and geolocation of all ITS/traffic 
signal equipment, cable location, cable splicing, and strand 
terminations.  Utilizing this system, PennDOT is able to trace every 
individual strand of fiber throughout their entire regional 
communications network. This work transitioned into the 
development of the District’s Fiber Master Plan which identifies 
logical network expansions and future areas requiring fiber 
connections.  The plan will evaluate the need to expand and will build 
out in a manner consistent PennDOT’s regional goals and objectives.







Project Description


Document Number 1


Traffic Signal and Safety Support 
Services
DISTRICT-WIDE. DISTRICT 6-0


Solutions/Outcome


We tasked with assisting PennDOT traffic signal managers and staff in 


coordinating and facilitating the integration of traffic signal 


communications systems throughout the Philadelphia Metropolitan Area.


We developed and currently maintain the District’s fiber optic 


communications asset management system, which utilizes the 


OSPInSight software to document all communications deployments down 


to the individual strand of fiber.  We utilize this software to assist 


contractors and PennDOT in allocating fiber strands, developing splicing 


plans, and providing as-built documentation for signal interconnection 


projects throughout the region.


At the request of PennDOT, we provide field support services for traffic 


signal systems.  These services include the testing and verification of fiber 


communications routes, terminations and splicing as well as the testing 


and installation of communications equipment.


One of our primary tasks is the troubleshooting of communications issues 


as they arise.  Recently we developed a plan to re-allocate fiber optic 


backbone cable assignments and splicing in order to rectify 


communications outages as well as provide for the long-term system 


expansion throughout Northeast Philadelphia  


CLIENT NAME


Pennsylvania Department of 


Transportation, District 6-0


JACOBS’ ROLE


Subconsultant


Insert contract number


CONTRACT TYPE


Task-Order


JACOBS EXECUTING OFFICE/S


Philadelphia, PA


REFERENCE


Ashwin Patel


Assistant District Traffic Engineer 


– Traffic Signals


610-205-6567


ashpatel@pa.gov


 







Project Description


Document Number 1


Green Light-Go Technical 


Support, Southeastern Region


PHILADELPHIA METRO AREA, PENNSYLVANIA


Project Description/Services Provided


Green Light-Go is Pennsylvania’s statewide municipal signal partnership 
program designed to improve safety and mobility by reducing congestion 
and improving efficiency of existing traffic signal systems. We support this 
initiative with program management, development of traffic signal 
improvements, and municipal outreach.  We developed a Regional Traffic 
Signal Operations and Management Plan with input from the Department, 
involved municipalities, Federal Highway Administration, and DVRPC. 
The plan will identify the goals and objectives of the Department’s regional 
traffic signal initiative envisioned through this program, and follow 
guidance provided by FHWA through several key publications, including 
Traffic Signal Management Plans and Coordinated Freeway and Arterial 
Operations Handbook.  Specific Work Orders under this agreement 
include:


Work Order 1 – Evaluation of all Green Light Go approved grant 
applications.  This work order concluded with recommendations for 
bundling of the 51 projects into four separate construction packages, with 
construction values ranging from $1.4 to $3.0 million. 


Work Order 2 – Municipal outreach and coordination for ownership and 
maintenance transfer of 160 signalized intersections from local 
municipalities to PennDOT.  Tasks include extensive outreach and 
engagement, and coordination with legal representatives for agreement 
negotiation and execution.  


Work Order 3 – Full traffic signal modernization and replacement, ADA 
improvements, and the installation of a Traffic Adaptive System in Bucks 
County, Pennsylvania. The project spanned three municipalities and 15 
signalized intersections, with a construction value of $1.6 million.


Work Order 4 – Traffic signal modernization and upgrades, ADA 
improvements, fiber optic cable installation, and the installation of a Traffic 
Adaptive System in Chester and Delaware Counties, Pennsylvania. The 
project spanned 11 municipalities and 33 signalized intersections, with a 
construction value of $1.6 million.


Work Order 5 – Traffic signal modernization and upgrades, ADA 
improvements, and fiber optic cable installation in Montgomery County, 
Pennsylvania. The project spanned four municipalities and 19 signalized 
intersections, with a construction value of $1.5 million.


CLIENT NAME


Pennsylvania Department of 


Transportation, District 6-0


JACOBS’ ROLE


Prime


Insert contract number


CONTRACT VALUE


$2,000,000


REFERENCE


Ashwin Patel, PE


610.205.6567







Project Description


Document Number 2


Green Light-Go Technical 


Support, Southeastern 


Region


PHILADELPHIA METRO AREA, 


PENNSYLVANIA


Work Order 7 – Full traffic signal modernization, upgrades, and 
replacement, incandescent to LED upgrades, ADA improvements, and 
fiber optic cable installation in four counties of Pennsylvania. The project 
spanned 25 municipalities and 129 signalized intersections, with a 
construction value of $2.0 million.


Work Order 8 – Construction engineering support for projects designed 
under Work Orders 3 through 7.







OV E RHE AD  RATE


Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc. -  004561 Qualifications Package


Type: Corporation DBE Type: SBE:


Fiscal Year End: 09/28/2018 Status: Approved


Report Submitted: 05/09/2019 Expiration: 03/28/2020


Premium Pay: No


Dual Overhead: Yes


Audited: Yes


Office Overhead: 105.805%


Field Overhead: 80.826%


Overtime: 50.00%


Hazardous: 0.00%


Comments: Please see pdf page 28 for revised
PENNDOT Cost Certification
reflecting 3 decimal places


Attachments: 00 FY2018 BIA__PENNDOT_May 9.pdf


Workflow


Status Name Disposition Date/Time


Draft Jay Roth/PennDOT BP-004561 Submit 05/09/2019 05:35:25 PM


Pending David Gaffney/PennDOT Approve 05/10/2019 07:41:02 AM
This rate is subject to audit verification by the Bureau of Fiscal Management. Our acceptance of this overhead rate does not


extend beyond contracts with the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation. Any other entity contracting with your firm is
responsible for determining the acceptability of your overhead statement. Proposals for new agreements that are Federally-


funded should use the above stated rate. If you are party to an agreement that requires you to develop a FAR rate and to
submit a request for a supplement to adjust the Agreement amount, please make your supplemental agreement request


through the appropriate Department Project Manager, using the above stated rate. The terms and conditions of all existing
Agreements remain in full force and effect. An overhead rate for billing purposes must be developed accordingly.


Audit Information


Created By Created On Modified By Modified On


Julie Garber/PennDOT BP-004561 05/09/2019 11:45:48 AM David Gaffney/PennDOT 05/10/2019 07:41:02 AM


You are currently logged in as Steve Cunningham.


Release: 71.1
Session size: 0.1k


PennDOT  |  Home  |  Site Map  |  Help  |  Pennsylvania
Copyright © 2009 Pennsylvania Department of Transportation. All Rights


Reserved.


Wed Jan 08 10:19:12 EST 2020
Official ECMS Date/Time


PennDOT Privacy Policy


home site map help


STEVE CUNNINGHAM


Overhead Rate https://www.ecms.penndot.gov/ECMS/PDTagServlet?action=printerFrie...


1 of 1 1/8/2020, 10:19 AM



scunningham

Highlight







CONSULTANT  PROFI T  MAINT ENANCE


Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc. -   004561 Qualifications Package


Type: Corporation DBE Type: SBE:


Start Date: 10/01/2019


End Date: 09/30/2020


Profit


Class  Percent


A: 15.00%


B: 13.06%


C: 11.87%


D: 10.80%


E: 12.43%


You are currently logged in as Steve Cunningham.


Release: 71.1
Session size: 0.1k


PennDOT  |  Home  |  Site Map  |  Help  |  Pennsylvania
Copyright © 2009 Pennsylvania Department of Transportation. All Rights


Reserved.


Wed Jan 08 10:19:59 EST 2020
Official ECMS Date/Time


PennDOT Privacy Policy


home site map help


STEVE CUNNINGHAM


Consultant Profit Maintenance https://www.ecms.penndot.gov/ECMS/PDTagServlet?action=printerFrie...


1 of 1 1/8/2020, 10:20 AM



scunningham

Highlight







Publication 93 (11-19) 
 


Chapter 3 Selection Process Reference Material Page 3.20 
 


Chart 3.3 defines which line applies to each service. Each firm’s Profit Factors will be calculated based on 
its audited FAR Overhead Rates (not the average). Inorder to achieve accuracy, formulas used to 
develop the curves will be applied, rather than interpolating from the curves.  


Chart 3.3 - MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE FEE  


Service Provided 


Profit added on Direct and Indirect Payroll   


Cost Plus 
Fixed Lump Sum 


Cost per Unit of 
work 


Specific Rate 


Final Design Work and Services for PS&E 
submissions  (B)  (A) --- --- 


Shop Drawing Review,  
Consultation During Construction --- --- ---  (B) 


Preliminary Engineering & Environmental 
Work and Services  (C) --- --- --- 


Conceptual Design for Design-build 
Project  (C) --- --- --- 


Field Surveys only  (C)  (B)  (B) --- 
Studies (Feasibility, traffic, etc.)  (D) --- --- --- 
Bridge Inspection/Analysis  (B)  (A)  (A) --- 
Right-of-Way Acquisitions/ Negotiation 


(C)  --- --- --- 


Photogrammetric Work ---  (B) --- --- 
Repetitive Work & Services --- --- (B) --- 
Utility Designation And Locating --- ---  (C) --- 


Environmental Studies --- --- ---  (C) 
Geotechnical Studies --- --- --- (B) 
Review Activities**  (C) --- ---  (C)  
Highway Occupancy Permit Review --- --- ---  (C) 
Highway Occupancy Permit Inspection --- --- ---  (E) 
Construction Inspection --- --- ---  (E) 
Construction Consultant Management 
Project Manager 


--- --- --- (B)  


* Design Consultant Management Project 
Manager 


 (C) --- ---  (B) 


 
*  Design Consultant Management Project Manager should be used as indicated in Section 2.2.3. 
** For activities under Cost Plus Fixed Fee Method of Payment that function like a Specific Rate of 


Compensation, refer to Section 4.5.3. 
 
If circumstances allow combining phases of work and services under the same Consultant Agreement Part, 
the fixed fee should be weighted in proportion to the direct payroll for individual tasks that can be positively 
identified with the distinct phases.   
 
For a Specific Rate Open End Agreement, an average profit factor can be used for the type of work 
anticipated in the Open End. 


 
 
 
 
 
 



scunningham

Highlight







Professional Services Agreement JEG (Lump Sum) Page 1 of 2 Revised 08/31/09 


 


 


 
 


PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 


AGREEMENT 
 


PROJECT 


NAME: Traffic Signal System Consulting Services 


PROJECT 


NUMBER: TBD 


CLIENT: Township of Ferguson  


ADDRESS: 3147 Research Drive 


State College, PA 16801 


 


hereby requests and authorizes Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. (“Jacobs”) to perform the following 


Services: 


SCOPE OF 


SERVICES: 


Refer to Attached Proposal, dated January 23, 2020.  


 


COMPENSATION to be on a basis of: 
Refer to Attached Proposal, dated January 23, 2020.   
 
 
 
The parties agree to the “Provisions” provided on page 2 of this authorization. 
 


Accepted for TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON  Accepted for JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. 


By: 
  


By:  


Name:   Name:  


Title: 
  


Title:  


Date: 
  


Date:  







 


File:  PSA Provisions – JEG Page 2 of 2 Revised 08/31/09 


PROVISIONS 


1. AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED.  Signing this Agreement shall be 
construed as authorization by CLIENT for JACOBS to proceed with the Services, 
unless otherwise provided for in this Agreement. 


2. LABOR COSTS.  In the event JACOBS’ compensation is calculated by 
reference to JACOBS’ Labor Costs, Labor Costs shall be the amount calculated 
by the number of hours actually worked by each of JACOBS’ employees on 
CLIENT's Project, multiplied by an amount charged for each such employee's 
work, which is calculated by dividing each such employee's annualized, non-
overtime compensation (whether salary or paid to such employee at an hourly 
rate, as the case may be) by 2,080 hours per year. 


3. DIRECT EXPENSES.  JACOBS’ Direct Expenses shall be those costs 
incurred on or directly for the CLIENT's Project, including but not limited to 
necessary transportation costs including mileage at JACOBS’ current rate when 
its automobiles are used, meals and lodging, laboratory tests and analyses, 
computer services, word processing services, telephone, printing and binding 
charges.  Reimbursement for these expenses shall be on the basis of actual 
charges when furnished by commercial sources and on the basis of usual 
commercial charges when furnished by JACOBS. 


4. OUTSIDE SERVICES.  When technical or professional services are 
furnished by an outside source, when approved by CLIENT, an additional 
amount shall be added to the cost of these services for JACOBS’ administrative 
costs. 


5. COST ESTIMATES.  Any cost estimates provided by JACOBS will be on a 
basis of experience and judgment.  Since JACOBS has no control over market 
conditions or bidding procedures, JACOBS does not warrant that bids or ultimate 
construction costs will not vary from these cost estimates. 


6. PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS.  JACOBS shall be responsible, to the level 
of competency presently maintained by other practicing professionals in the 
same type of work in CLIENT's community, for the professional and technical 
soundness, accuracy, and adequacy of all design, drawings, specifications, and 
other work and materials furnished under this Agreement.  If after completion of 
the Services the CLIENT can demonstrate that the Services hereunder fail to 
conform to such standards, JACOBS will reperform the deficient Services at no 
cost to the CLIENT, and JACOBS shall have no liability for repair or 
replacement, construction rework or other costs.  JACOBS makes no warranty, 
expressed or implied. 


7. ADDITIONAL SERVICES.  Services in addition to those specified in Scope 
of Services will be provided by JACOBS if authorized in writing or otherwise 
confirmed by CLIENT.  Additional services will be paid for by CLIENT as 
indicated in any Letter of Proposal, Task Authorization, or such other document 
as deemed appropriate by CLIENT and JACOBS. In the absence of an express 
agreement about compensation, JACOBS shall be entitled to an equitable 
adjustment to its compensation for performing such additional services. 


8. SALES TAX.  In addition to any other sums or amounts required to be paid 
by CLIENT to JACOBS pursuant to this Agreement, CLIENT must also pay to 
JACOBS the amount of any applicable sales, use, excise or other tax with 
respect thereto (other than any general income tax payable by JACOBS with 
respect thereto) as the same may be levied, imposed or assessed by any 
federal, state, county or municipal government entity or agency. 


9. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.  Excluding JACOBS’ liability for bodily injury or 
damage to the property of third parties, the total aggregate liability of JACOBS 
arising out of the performance or breach of this Agreement shall not exceed the 
compensation paid to JACOBS under this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any 
other provision of this Agreement, JACOBS shall have no liability to the CLIENT 
for contingent, consequential, or other indirect damages including, without 
limitation, damages for loss of use, revenue or profit; operating costs and facility 
downtime, however the same may be caused.  The limitations and exclusions of 
liability set forth in this Article shall apply regardless of the fault, breach of 
contract, tort (including negligence), strict liability or otherwise of JACOBS, its 
employees, or subconsultants. 


10. DISPUTE RESOLUTION.  All disputes arising out of this Agreement shall 
be mediated by the parties within a reasonable time after the first request for 
mediation, prior to either party filing a suit in a court of law, provided, however, 
that neither party shall be obligated to mediate prior to requesting injunctive 
relief. 


11. ASSIGNMENT TO RELATED ENTITY.  Notwithstanding anything in this 
Agreement to the contrary, in the event JACOBS is not qualified and licensed in 
the relevant jurisdiction to provide any Services required hereunder, JACOBS 
may, without the consent of any other party, assign all or any part of its obligation 
to provide such Services to an entity related to JACOBS which is qualified and 
licensed to provide such Services in the jurisdiction involved and which is 


contractually bound to JACOBS to provide such Services. 


12. PAYMENT TO JACOBS / INTEREST ON PAST-DUE AMOUNTS.  Monthly 
invoices will be issued by JACOBS for all Services performed under the terms of 
this Agreement.  Invoices are due and payable net 15 days. CLIENT agrees to pay 
interest at the rate of 1½% per month on all past-due amounts, unless not 
permitted by law. Any interest charged or collected in excess of the highest legal 
rate will be applied to the principal amount owing to JACOBS, and if such interest 
exceeds the principal balance of CLIENT’s indebtedness to JACOBS, will be 
returned to CLIENT. 


13. TERMINATION FOR NON-PAYMENT OF FEES.  Without limiting any other 
remedy that may be available, JACOBS may stop work or terminate this 
Agreement if CLIENT has not cured a payment default within 7 days after receipt of 
written notice from JACOBS.  Any failure to make a payment within the time 
required in Article 12 above shall constitute a payment default.  Notice by e-mail or 
fax, followed by overnight courier, shall meet this notice requirement.  JACOBS’ 
right to stop work or terminate this Agreement shall not be waived by JACOBS’ 
continued performance during any period of investigation by JACOBS to determine 
the reasons for CLIENT’s nonpayment. 


14. LEGAL EXPENSES.  In the event legal action is brought by JACOBS to 
enforce any of the obligations hereunder or arising out of any dispute concerning 
the terms and conditions hereby created, CLIENT shall pay JACOBS reasonable 
amounts for fees, costs and expenses as may be set by the court. 


15. CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES.  If this Agreement includes the 
furnishing of any Services during the construction phase of the project, the 
following terms will apply:  (a)  If JACOBS is called upon to observe the work of 
CLIENT’s construction contractor(s) for the detection of defects or deficiencies in 
such work, JACOBS will not bear any responsibility or liability for such defects or 
deficiencies or for the failure to so detect.  JACOBS shall not make inspections or 
reviews of the safety programs or procedures of the construction contractor(s), and 
shall not review their work for the purpose of ensuring their compliance with safety 
standards.  (b)  If JACOBS is called upon to review submittals from construction 
contractors, JACOBS shall review and approve or take other appropriate action 
upon construction contractor(s)’ submittals such as shop drawings, product data 
and samples, but only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with 
information given and the design concept expressed in the contract documents.  
JACOBS’ action shall be taken with such reasonable promptness as to cause no 
delay in the work while allowing sufficient time in JACOBS’ professional judgment 
to permit adequate review.  Review of such submittals will not be conducted for the 
purpose of determining the accuracy and completeness of other details such as 
dimensions and quantities.  (c)  JACOBS shall not assume any responsibility or 
liability for performance of the construction services, or for the safety of persons 
and property during construction, or for compliance with federal, state and local 
statutes, rules, regulations and codes applicable to the conduct of the construction 
services.  JACOBS shall have no influence over the construction means, methods, 
techniques, sequences or procedures.  Construction safety shall remain the sole 
responsibility of the construction contractor(s).  (d)  All contracts between CLIENT 
and its construction contractor(s) shall contain broad form indemnity and insurance 
clauses in favor of CLIENT and JACOBS, in a form satisfactory to JACOBS. 


16. SEVERABILITY.  In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this 
Agreement shall be held illegal, the enforceability of the remaining provisions 
contained herein shall not be impaired thereby. 


17. FORCE MAJEURE.  Any delays in or failure of performance by JACOBS shall 
not constitute breach hereunder if and to the extent such delays or failures of 
performance are caused by occurrences beyond the reasonable control of 
JACOBS.  In the event that any event of force majeure as herein defined occurs, 
JACOBS shall be entitled to a reasonable extension of time for performance of its 
Services under this Agreement. 


18. ELECTRONIC MEDIA.  (a)  As a component of the services provided under 
this Agreement, JACOBS may deliver electronic copies of certain documents or 
data (the "Electronic Files") in addition to printed copies (the "Hard Copies") for the 
convenience of CLIENT.  CLIENT and its consultants, contractors and 
subcontractors may only rely on the Hard Copies furnished by JACOBS to CLIENT. 
 If there is any discrepancy between any Electronic File and the corresponding 
Hard Copy, the Hard Copy controls.  (b)  CLIENT acknowledges that Electronic 
Files can be altered or modified without JACOBS’ authorization, can become 
corrupted and that errors can occur in the transmission of such Electronic Files. 


19. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  Except to the extent any claims alleging 
negligence are asserted directly against any JACOBS employee wherein such 
JACOBS employee shall be deemed a third party beneficiary to this Agreement 
and the protections in favor of JACOBS, there are no third party beneficiaries to 
this Agreement. 


 





		1. Project Understanding

		2. Project Methodology

		2.1 Scope

		2.2 Schedule & Deliverables



		3. Team

		4. Capability and Experience

		5. Commercial Offer






Centre County Metropolitan Planning Organization (CCMPO) 
Coordinating Committee Meeting 


 


Tuesday, January 28, 2020 
 


6:00 p.m. 
 


Please Note the Location:  
Centre Region COG Building 


 
AGENDA 


 
1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
2. Election of Officers for 2020 
 
3. Approval of Minutes:  November 26, 2019 Coordinating Committee meeting. 
 
4. Public Comments:  For items not on the agenda. 
 
5. Special Announcement: 


Appointment of Thomas J. Zurat, Jr., P.E. as the District Executive for 
PennDOT Engineering District 2-0. 


 
6. 2020 Meeting Schedule Amendment: 


Action:  Change April 2020 meeting date. 
 
7. FY 2020-22 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP): 


Review Draft UPWP for adoption 
 Action: Adopt FY 2020-22 UPWP 


 
8. Performance Based Planning and Programming: 
 a. Annual update of safety performance targets 
   Action:  Support performance targets 
 b. Annual reports about Transit Asset Management (TAM) Plans for CATA and 


Centre County Office of Transportation 
   Action:  No action required 
 
9. Harris Township Request for Assistance – Route 45 West Speed Limit: 


Receive presentations from Harris Township and PennDOT District 2-0 
  Action:  Consider policy and staff activities in response to request 
 
10. 2021-2024 Centre County Transportation Improvement Program (TIP): 


Preliminary Draft Highway and Transit Elements 
  Action:  Comments to PennDOT, CATA and MPO staff 
 
11. Member Reports: 


Reports from members about a significant item(s) of interest 
  No action required 
 
12. Announcements 
 
13. Adjourn 
 


  
  


Next Coordinating Committee meeting: 
Tuesday, February 25, 2020 
6:00 p.m. 
Patton Township Municipal Building 







JANUARY 28, 2020 MEETING 
 


ITEM 2 
 


ELECTION OF OFFICERS FOR 2020 
 
Voting members of the Coordinating Committee include: 
 
 Centre County Board of Commissioners   Michael Pipe 
 Centre County Board of Commissioners   Mark Higgins 
 College Township     Eric Bernier 
 Ferguson Township     Lisa Strickland 
 Halfmoon Township     Barbara Spencer 
 Harris Township     Frank Harden 
 Patton Township     Elliot Abrams 
 State College Borough     Theresa Lafer 
 Nittany Valley Planning Region    Doug Johnson 
 Lower Bald Eagle Valley Planning Region  Dave Veneziano 
 Moshannon Valley Planning Region   (open) 
 Mountaintop Planning Region    Ken Hall 
 Penns Valley Planning Region    Dick Decker 
 Upper Bald Eagle Valley Planning Region  Keith Reese 
 Centre Area Transportation Authority   John Spychalski 
 Centre Regional Planning Commission   Jon Eich 
 PennDOT Central Office (Harrisburg)   Larry Shifflet 
 PennDOT District 2-0 Office (Clearfield)  Tom Zurat 
 
Non-voting members of the Coordinating Committee include: 
 
 Pennsylvania State University    Rob Cooper 
 Federal Highway Administration   Matt Smoker 
 Federal Transit Administration    Laura Keeley 
 
The Coordinating Committee should elect a Chair and Vice Chair for 2020. In 2019, Eric Bernier served  
as Chair, and Michael Pipe served as Vice-Chair. 
 
The Coordinating Committee should appoint a Secretary for 2020. Traditionally, the Centre Regional 
Planning Agency (CRPA) Director serves as the CCMPO Secretary. Jim May, CRPA Director, served as 
Secretary in 2019. 
 
 Presented by: Jim May, CCMPO Secretary 
 
 Action:  Elect officers and appoint a Secretary for 2020. 


 
  







 


CCongratulat ions !  
 
On January 2, 2020, PennDOT announced that Thomas J. Zurat, Jr., P.E., has been appointed as the District 
Executive for Engineering District 2-0, effective January 25, 2020 following the retirement of District 
Executive Karen L. Michael, P.E. 
 
Following completion of military service, Tom began his career with PennDOT in 1990 and held various 
positions in the Design Unit of District 2-0. Tom most recently served as the Assistant District Executive 
(ADE) for Design and has represented District 2-0 on the CCMPO Technical Committee for several years. 
Tom has been the key point of contact for the CCMPO staff regarding transportation projects and initiatives 
in Centre County. Tom will now represent District 2-0 on the CCMPO Coordinating Committee. 
 
On behalf of the CCMPO staff and Committee members, congratulations to Tom! Under his leadership, we 
look forward to continuing the successful and long-standing partnership with Engineering District 2-0. 
 


 


 
 


Tom Zurat presents the Route 322/144/45 Data Refresh to the 
Harris Township Board of Supervisors - July 8, 2019 


(Credit – C-NET) 
 


  







JANUARY 28, 2020 MEETING 
 


ITEM 6 
 


2020 MEETING SCHEDULE AMENDMENT 
 
In November 2019, the Coordinating Committee approved the CCMPO meeting schedule for 2020. However, 
following the meeting it was noted that the Coordinating Committee meeting scheduled for Tuesday, April 
28, 2020 falls on Pennsylvania’s primary election day. 
 
Thus, the Coordinating Committee should consider amending the 2020 meeting schedule by selecting an 
alternative date for the April meeting. Potential alternatives include: 
 


 Wednesday, April 29, 2020 
 Thursday, April 30, 2020 


 
April 29 and 30 are the fifth Wednesday and fifth Thursday of the month respectively. 
 
 


Month Committee Day Date Time 


January 
Technical Wed 1/15/20 9:30 AM 


Coordinating Tues 1/28/20 6:00 PM 


February 
Technical Wed 2/12/20 9:30 AM 
Coordinating Tues 2/25/20 6:00 PM 


March 
(optional) 


Technical Wed 3/11/20 9:30 AM 
Coordinating Tues 3/24/20 6:00 PM 


April 
Technical Wed 4/8/20 9:30 AM 
Coordinating    


June 
Technical Wed 6/10/20 9:30 AM 
Coordinating Tues 6/23/20 6:00 PM 


September 
Technical Wed 9/9/20 9:30 AM 
Coordinating Tues 9/22/20 6:00 PM 


November 
Technical Wed 


11/4/20 
Moved because of 


Veterans’Day 
9:30 AM 


Coordinating Tues 11/24/20 6:00 PM 


 
 Presented by: Tom Zilla, CRPA 
 
  







JANUARY 28, 2020 MEETING 
 


ITEM 7 
 


FY 2020-22 UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
 


Review Draft UPWP for Adoption 
 
Adopting the UPWP is one of the key federally mandated responsibilities of the CCMPO. The UPWP lists 
policy actions required of the CCMPO, and staff work tasks to be completed by PennDOT, CRPA, CATA, 
and the CCPCDO on behalf of the MPO. In Pennsylvania, the UPWP covers a two-year period based on the 
state fiscal year (July 1, 2020 - June 30,2022). 
 
A new process is being implemented for preparation of the FY 2020-22 UPWP, which includes additional 
content and format changes. The CCMPO must adopt the FY 2020-22 UPWP no later than January 31, 2020. 
 
In September 2019, MPO staff provided a presentation about the new process and potential priority planning 
tasks. Most of the priority tasks included in the current FY 2018-20 UPWP have been carried forward to the 
new UPWP. In addition, two new tasks of note are included in the Draft FY 2020-22 UPWP: 
 


 Page 17 – under Task II.A. Long Range Transportation Planning 
Prepare a Strategic Plan for the future operations of the CCMPO Committees and staff 


 Page 28 – under Task IV.A. Key Projects 
State College Area Connector Project 


 
For the new UPWP, base funding will increase by approximately 5% from the current UPWP. 
 


UPWP 
Funding 


 


Current 
FY 2018-20 


UPWP 
(annual amount) 


New 
FY 2020-22 


UPWP 
(Year 1 amount) 


New 
FY 2020-22 


UPWP 
(Year 2 amount) 


Base federal/state 
highway funding $196,000 $212,000 $204,000 


Base federal 
transit funding $77,250 $84,000 $80,000 


 
Beyond the base allocation of funding provided by PennDOT, supplemental planning funds are periodically 
distributed through a statewide competitive process. No projects are proposed for supplemental funding at this 
time, but may be requested in the future. 
 
Attached is: 
 


 Draft FY 2020-22 UPWP 
 
The Technical Committee has recommended adoption of the FY 2020-22 UPWP. 
 
The Coordinating Committee should receive a staff presentation and consider taking action to adopt the 
FY 2020-22 UPWP. 
 
 Presented by: Tom Zilla, CRPA 
 
 Action: Adopt the FY 2020-22 UPWP. 
  







JANUARY 28, 2020 MEETING 
 


ITEM 8.a. 
 


PERFORMANCE BASED PLANNING AND PROGRAMMING 
 


Annual Update of Safety Performance Targets 
 
In 2017, PennDOT developed initial performance targets for the federal Highway Safety Improvement 
Program (HSIP) performance measures. PennDOT is required to update the targets annually. By federal rule, 
the CCMPO has 180 days from the date when PennDOT establishes its annual targets to either support 
PennDOT’s targets or establish its own quantifiable targets. 
 
For the initial target setting in November 2017 and the annual update in November 2018, the CCMPO 
supported PennDOT’s targets. 
 
Attached is: 
 


 November 5, 2019 correspondence from PennDOT detailing the statewide performance targets for 
2020 and the CCMPO’s individual targets, if the MPO supports PennDOT’s targets. 


 
Centre County MPO Supporting Values (Targets) for All Years 


(Targets are based on a rolling five-year average) 


Performance Measure 
 


Initial - 2018 Year 2 - 2019 Year 3 - 2020 


Baseline 
2012-2016 


Target 
2014-2018 


Baseline 
2013-2017 


Target 
2015-2019 


Baseline 
2014-2018 


Target 
2016-2020 


Number of fatalities 14.6 17.2 15.0 16.4 15.2 14.9 


Rate of fatalities per 100 million VMT 1.080 1.240 1.102 1.173 1.096 1.049 


Number of serious injuries 37.8 41.3 38.6 41.1 44.0 54.8 
Rate of serious injuries per 100 million 
VMT 2.802 2.979 2.835 2.940 3.173 3.857 


Number of non-motorized fatalities 
and serious injuries 6.2 9.8 8.0 9.5 9.4 13.7 


 
The CCMPO must establish targets by February 27, 2020. 
 
The Technical Committee has recommended that the CCMPO support PennDOT’s targets, noting that the 
MPO does not have the staff resources and technical capacity to establish and monitor its own individual 
targets. 
 
The Coordinating Committee should receive a staff presentation, and consider taking action to support 
PennDOT’s targets for HSIP performance measures. 
 
 Presented by: Tom Zilla, CRPA 
 
 Action: Formally support PennDOT’s 2020 targets for the five HSIP 


performance measures. 
 
Charts illustrating the most recent annual data for fatalities and serious injuries in Centre County are 
illustrated on the next page. 
 
(Continued) 
  







 


 
 


 
 


  







JANUARY 28, 2020 MEETING 
 


ITEM 8.b. 
 


PERFORMANCE BASED PLANNING AND PROGRAMMING 
 


Annual Reports about Transit Asset Management (TAM) Plans 
for CATA and Centre County Office of Transportation 


 
Federal rulemaking required all public transit operators to develop a Transit Asset Management (TAM) Plan 
by October 1, 2018, and to share the TAM Plan with states and MPOs. States and MPOs are not required to 
approve the TAM Plans. 
 
In Centre County, the Centre Area Transportation Authority (CATA) and the Centre County Office of 
Transportation Services (CCOT) are subject to the federal rule. In 2018, CATA prepared an individual TAM 
Plan, and the CCOT was included in a statewide TAM Group Plan prepared by PennDOT. The TAM Plans 
were shared with the CCMPO in October 2018. Both TAM Plans include performance targets and specify a 
reporting process to assess progress in meeting the targets. 
 
In November 2018, the CCMPO approved and executed agreements with CATA and the CCOT to formalize 
each organization’s responsibilities for cooperatively developing and sharing information related to 
transportation performance data, including the selection of targets and documenting progress toward meeting 
the TAM Plan targets. The agreements require the annual reporting of information related to the performance 
targets. CATA and PennDOT provided annual performance information to the MPO staff in fall 2019. 
 
Attached is: 
 


 Summary information about the annual TAM reports for CATA and the CCOT 
 
Staff will not provide a formal presentation, but will respond to questions from the Committee. 
 
The Coordinating Committee should provide any questions to MPO staff. 
 
 Presented by: Greg Kausch, CRPA 
 
 No action required 
  







JANUARY 28, 2020 MEETING 
 


ITEM 9 
 


HARRIS TOWNSHIP REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE 
ROUTE 45 WEST SPEED LIMIT 


 
Receive Presentations from Harris Township and PennDOT District 2-0 


 
At its November 26, 2019 meeting, the CCMPO Coordinating Committee received correspondence from 
Harris Township requesting the MPO’s support and assistance in addressing safety concerns along Route 45 
(Shingletown Road) between the Harris/Ferguson Township boundary and Windmill Road near the Village of 
Boalsburg. Specifically, Harris Township wishes to have PennDOT reduce the speed limit on Route 45 
(Shingletown Road) from 55 mph to 45 mph. 
 
The CCMPO Chair, in consultation with the Coordinating Committee, determined that the request should be 
included on the January MPO Committee agendas for discussion. 
 
At the meeting, representatives from Harris Township and PennDOT District 2-0 will provide more 
information about the topic. 
 
Attached are: 
 


 November 12, 2019 correspondence from Harris Township 
 Summary of legal requirements for establishment of speed limits in PA 
 Summary of comments and questions from the CCMPO Technical Committee 


 
The Coordinating Committee should receive the presentations, discuss the Technical Committee’s 
comments, and consider policy and staff activities that could be taken to respond to the Township’s 
request. 
 
 Presented by: Tom Zilla, CRPA 
   Amy Farkas, Harris Township Manager 
  Tom Zurat, PennDOT District 2-0 
 
 Action: Consider policy and staff activities that could be taken to respond to 


Harris Township’s request for assistance. 
  







JANUARY 28, 2020 MEETING 
 


ITEM 10 
 


2021-2024 CENTRE COUNTY 
TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP) 


 
Preliminary Draft Highway and Transit Elements 


 
PennDOT, CATA, and MPO staff continue to work on the new 2021-2024 Centre County Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP). In September, staff provided a presentation about the financial guidance, 
process and schedule for preparing the new TIP. In November, staff reviewed priority projects for the 
Highway Element of the new TIP. 
 
In December, PennDOT District 2-0 completed the Preliminary Draft Highway Element. In early January, 
CATA completed the Preliminary Draft Transit Element. 
 
Attachments: 


For Transit Element… 
o Transit Element at a Glance 
o Project List Summary 


For Highway Element… 
o Highway Element at a Glance 
o Project List Summary 
o Map of projects 


 
A Final Draft TIP will be presented in March or April. A public comment period and public meeting will be 
scheduled in the early spring, and the CCMPO will adopt the new TIP in June. 
 
The Coordinating Committee should receive a staff presentation about the Highway and Transit 
Elements, and provide comments to assist PennDOT, CATA, and MPO staff in preparing the Final 
Draft TIP. 
 
 Presented by: Tom Zilla, CRPA 
   Greg Kausch, CRPA 
   Tom Zurat, PennDOT District 2-0 
 
 Action: Provide comments to PennDOT, CATA and MPO staff. 
 
  







JANUARY 28, 2020 MEETING 
 


ITEM 12 
 


ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
1. Future Meeting Dates 
 
 a. Technical Committee:  Wednesday, February 12, 2020, 9:30 a.m. 
      College Township Municipal Building 


 Report from University Park Airport Manager 
 LRTP 2050 – fiscal constraint analysis and policy elements 
 Mobility as a Service presentation from CATA 
 Federal and state funding outlook 


   
 b. Coordinating Committee: Tuesday, February 25, 2020, 6:00 p.m. 
      Patton Township Municipal Building 


 Report from University Park Airport Manager 
 LRTP 2050 – fiscal constraint analysis and policy elements 
 Mobility as a Service presentation from CATA 
 Federal and state funding outlook 


 
2. On January 31, 2020, Bill MacMath, Spring Township Manager, and Susan Steele, Halfmoon 


Township will be retiring. Bill and Susan have represented their respective municipalities on the 
CCMPO Technical Committee. On behalf of the CCMPO Committees and staff, we congratulate and 
thank Bill and Susan for many years of service to their municipalities and the CCMPO, and we wish 
them all the best in their retirements! 


 
3. The CCMPO’s Procedures for Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Revisions allow project 


sponsors (typically PennDOT and CATA) to make administrative modifications that change funding 
on the TIP without formal approval by the Coordinating Committee. The Procedures specify that the 
administrative modifications be reported to the CCMPO for information purposes. Attached is a fiscal 
constraint chart illustrating modifications completed for the 2019-2022 TIP since November. 


 
4. Press releases from PennDOT about road and bridge construction projects in Centre County are 


posted on the “Project Updates” page of the CCMPO’s website and shared on the MPO’s Facebook 
page. MPO staff also typically shares PennDOT’s press releases with CCMPO Committee members 
and emergency response providers for projects in their respective areas of the County. For 
information specific to the Atherton Street Drainage/Repaving project, visit PennDOT’s website at 
www.penndot.gov/AthertonStreet. 


 
5. For information about PennDOT’s Local Technical Assistance Program (LTAP) training courses, as 


sponsored by the SEDA-COG MPO, visit http://www.seda-cog.org/transportation/Pages/LTAP.aspx. 
 
6. For information about the PennDOT Connects initiative, visit the Connects support hub at 


https://paconnects.org/ . Information about technical assistance that is available to municipalities 
is posted on the Connects support hub. 


 
7. For information about the “Drive Forward” coalition formed by the Chamber of Business and 


Industry of Centre County (CBICC) with the support of the CCMPO, visit the Drive Forward website 
at www.driveforwardcc.com. 


 
 
(Continued) 
  







8. Attached is a table that provides a status report about the Centre County Board of Commissioners Fee 
for Local Use (vehicle registration fee) Program. 


 
9. CCMPO staff contact information: 
 
 Centre Regional Planning Agency  Telephone: 814-231-3050 
 2643 Gateway Drive   Fax:  814-231-3083 
 State College, PA  16801 
 
  Jim May, Director    jmay@crcog.net  
  Tom Zilla, Principal Transportation Planner  tzilla@crcog.net 
  Trish Meek, Senior Transportation Planner  tmeek@crcog.net 
  Greg Kausch, Senior Transportation Planner  gkausch@crcog.net  
  Pam Adams, Sustainability Planner   padams@crcog.net  
  Marcella Laird, Office Manager   mlaird@crcog.net 
 
 Centre County Plng & Community Dev. Office Telephone: 814-355-6791 
 420 Holmes Street – Willowbank Office Building  Fax:  814-355-8661 
 Bellefonte, PA  16823 
 
  Ray Stolinas, Director    rjstolinas@centrecountypa.gov  
  Mike Bloom, Assistant Director   dmbloom@centrecountypa.gov  
  Anne Messner, Senior Transportation Planner ammessner@centrecountypa.gov  
 
 On the web at www.ccmpo.net  
 
 Like and share the CCMPO’s Facebook page at https://www.facebook.com/centrecountyMPO/ 


for meeting announcements, project updates, PennDOT’s Local Technical Assistance Program 
(LTAP) announcements, District 2-0 press releases, and relevant items from PennDOT’s 
Facebook page. 





